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Modern mobilehome parks are direct descendants of yesterday's

trailer and travel trailer parks, and even with the evolvement of

larger residential mobilehome parks, tenancies have traditionally

been on a month-to-month basis.

Because the month-to-month tenancy was adapted from

conventional apartment rentals to fit mobilehome parks, a series

of laws have developed over the years to protect mobilehome

owners, who own their own units placed on rental land, from

unreasonable eviction or other arbitrary practices.

Today, the

Mobilehome Residency Law protects residents in a number of ways.



Civil Code Section 798.55 (a) requires the park management to
give residents a 60-day written notice of eviction, and Section
798.56 provides the only reasons for which a resident/tenant can
be evicted.

Civil Code Section 798.15 provides a rental agreement shall
include the terms of tenancy, the rent, and the rules and
regulations of the mobilehome park, among other requirements.

Section 798.18 (a) obliges management to offer a mobilehome
owner a rental agreement for a term of 12 months or a lesser term
as requested by the homeowner, or optionally a term longer than
12 months if mutually agreed to by both parties.

Section 798.18 (b) provides that the terms and conditions for
rent and charges cannot be different during the first 12 months
of a rental agreement than the same terms and conditions afforded
to residents on a month-to-month basis.

Advent of the Lease:

In the past both park owners and park residents have been
apprehensive about utilizing long-term rental agreements or
leases.

In some cases, owners of mobilehome parks which exist on
conditional use permits, rather than permanent zoning, normally
do not want to tie up the spaces in long-term leases if the land

can be converted to other and more profitable uses in the future.



In this regard, evicting tenants with long-term leases upon a
conversion - at least in the past - was potentially more
troublesome than removing 30-day tenants.

Likewise, mobilehome park residents, many accustomed to
apartments or other forms of rental housing, have usually been
satisfied with the informal arrangement and simplicity of a
month-to-month tenancy. 2dditionally, those who might
contemplate moving do not want to be tied up with a long-
term lease.

But as newer parks have been developed, accommodating larger
mobilehomes and offering, in many cases, a more permanent
lifestyle, as rents in mobilehome parks have increased, and as
both park owners and residents have become more sophisticated
about their needs, the advantages of long-term rental agreements
or leases have become apparent.

1986 has seen a surge in lease offerings, which may be
attributable in part to the fact that under new legislation,
SB 1352, Chapter 1084 of the Statutes of 1985, effective
January 1, 1986, mobilehome park spaces covered by a rental
agreement in excess of 12 months' duration are exempt from any
local rent control ordinance, at least during the term of the

rental agreement.



Advantages and Disadvantages of the Lease:

There are advantages and disadvantages of a long-term
mobilehome park lease or rental agreement for both park residents
and park owners:

Advantages:

(1) The park resident may gain from a long-term rental
agreement by knowing what his/her long-term rental costs, over
the a period of a lease, exclusive of any increases or pass
throughs in taxes or capital improvements, will be. In contrast,
under month-to-month tenancy, park rents may increase
dramatically, usually with only a 60-day written notice.

(2) Park owners are assured, over the duration of the lease,
of a set and predictable amount of income. Lease income may
provide greater stability, particularly for potential investors
looking to purchase such a park. Many park leases or rental
agreements include pass throughs of additional property taxes or
governmental costs, as well as cost of living increases, so that
the net lease income will remain steady over the period of the
lease regardless of increases in taxes or inflation. Addi-
tionally, under SB 1352, on leases over 12 months' duration, the
lease controls the rental terms, preempting any local rent
control ordinance for the duration of the lease.

(3) Park rents and other terms and conditions of tenancy are

spelled out in the lease. This gives either party the right to



sue for breach of contract if the terms or conditions of the
lease are abrogated.

Disadvantages:

(1) Some park owners feel that leases may prevent them from
increasing rents and making their income property competitive in
the marketplace during times of economic change. The lease also
may subject the park owner more clearly to legal action in cases
of an alleged breach of the lease than under a month-to-month
tenancy.

(2) For residents, a long-term rental agreement may be
seemingly complicated and legalistic. The lease, by its nature,
is offered by the park owner and is usually written by the
owner's attorney. Residents are seldom in an equal bargaining
position with a park owner in offering to negotiate terms or
conditions of such a lease, as the lease is usually offered on a
take it or leave it basis.

Problems:

With the increase in lease offerings has come an increase in
complaints by mobilehome park residents to legislators' offices.
The major complaints can be summarized as follows:

(1) Failure to give park residents sufficient time to review
the lease. A number of park residents have complained that when
they have been offered a lease, they are giveﬁ only a short

period of time, such as one week or less, in which to review and



sign it. Some residents say they need more time to review the
lease or seek the advice of an attorney before signing, since
they do not understand all the provisions of the lease.

(2) Failure to offer a month-to-month tenancy. Other
residents contend that some park owners offer leases as the only
tenancy available and as a substitute for a 30-day or month-to-
month tenancy, which will no longer be offered. 1If true, this
would appear to be a violation of Section 798.18 of the Civil
Code, which provides that a homeowner shall be offered a rental
agreement for a term of 12 months or a lesser period as the
homeowner requests.

(3) Requiring residents on month-to-month tenancy to pay a
higher monthly rent. In a number of cases where leases are
offered, although the park owner gives the resident the option of
remaining on a month-to-month tenancy, the resident is required
to pay a higher rent than if he/she signs the lease for the same
space. This policy may also be affected by Civil Code Section
798.18 (b). Although the rent could differ after the first year,
under 798.18 the question is whether the rent could be different
in the first year of a long-term rental agreement than the rent
on a month-to-month basis, for the same space.

(4) Pass through costs. Mobilehome owners have complained
that in some cases the park owner is passing fhrough all variable

costs, including increases in government fees, taxes, insurance,



capital improvements and maintenance costs, in addition to the

rent. In taking any risk out of the cost side of the equation,
they say, the park owner is guaranteed a straight profit in the
established lease rent. In these cases, tenants contend, they

would be no better off than under a month-to-month tenancy.

These are just some of the complaints on leases which have
been registered with the Senate Select Committee on Mobilehomes
and various legislators by mobilehome constituents.

The purpose of the May 5th hearing is for the Select
Committee to hear testimony from both park owners and park
residents, as well as their representatives, concerning the
issues involved with the offering of long-term mobilehome park

rental agreements and leases.
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SENATOR CRAVEN: Good morning. We will call the Select

Committee on Mobilehomes to order, and I will introduce to you
the lady on my left, Mickey Bailey, who is Committee Secretary,
and on my right, John Tennyson, the Consultant for the Committee.
Some of my colleagues are really expected to attend the meeting
this morning, but, as so frequently happens this time of year,
they are involved with budget subcommittee hearings. Until they
finish that particular chore, they will not join us. Despite the
fact that we will miss their august presence, I think we can
suffer through and do the best we can in their absence.

We have convened today to hear testimony concerning issues
involving mobilehome park leases and long-term rental agreements.
Within the last year more mobilehome parks have been offering
leases or rental agreements of more than one year's duration to
their residents as an option to month-to-month tenancy.

Traditionally, rental spaces in mobilehome parks have been
offered on a month-to-month basis, in many cases only a very
informal arrangement. But as rents have increased over the
years, as parks have become larger, and as residents have
considered mobilehome park living on a long-term residential,
rather than temporary, basis, the relationship of park owners and
residents has become more complex. Hence, the development of the

lease.
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Although leases have been offered in some parks for a number
of years, and there has been a growing trend in this regard
during the decade of the 80's, legislation passed last year, SB
1352, has helped to spur a recent increase in lease offerings.
The bill gives park owners the right to have mobilehome park
spaces exempted from any local rent control ordinance where a
long-term rental agreement of over one year's duration governs
the rents. This gives the park owner an incentive to offer a
long-term lease.

There are advantages and disadvantages to mobilehome park
leases for both residents and park owners. Primarily among those
advantages are that the park owner gains a predictable and stable
income, based on whatever number of years arrangement has been
made. The park resident also benefits in knowing what his or her
rent over the period the lease will be, as opposed to being
surprised by a 60-day notice of a rent increase under a month-
to-month tenancy.

Park owners, on the other hand, often are apprehensive about
being locked in to the terms of a lease, which might otherwise
limit their income during times of rapid economic fluctuation.
Residents too are concerned that they may be locked in to a lease
when their needs change and additionally are concerned about the
inability to negotiate terms of a lease or coﬁtract equally with

the park owner.
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In any case, with the number of lease offerings now being
made, our committee and the offices of many legislators, with
whom I have been in contact, have within the past few months
received many complaints involving lease offerings. Because the
number of these complaints has mushroomed, issues involving
mobilehome park leases have become, at least currently, one of
the hottest topics other than "rent control" or "adult only" in
mobilehome circles. We are therefore meeting today to hear about
some of the problems from park residents and their represen-
tatives, as well as park owners.

The background paper, available up front and, hopefully, you
have seen it, details some of the background and complaints, and
it is there for your perusal.

With this general information in mind to set the stage, let
me state how we will proceed today on our agenda. I will call
upon those listed on the agenda, and when you reach the
microphone here at the table, please state your name and your
address for the record, so that any future information which is
published by the committee, as a result of this hearing, can be
forwarded to you. Without your address, of course, we will not
be able to contact you in the future. Please speak directly into
the mike; keep it as close to you as you can so it becomes
audible. This hearing, I should tell you, is being recorded for

transcription at a later time.
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After all the scheduled witnesses have been heard, we will
take testimony from anybody in the audience who wishes to speak
extemporaneously. However, you must come forward as this mike
does not have the power to pick you up if you are speaking to us
from the audience, so all of your comments should be made here at
the table.

Now, I don't believe there will be any dearth of witnesses.

I have this list here, and we have to vacate the room in a
relatively short period of time, so what I would ask you to do,
please, is try to make your comments as succinctly as possible
and get off so we can get to the next witness. I don't mean to
cut you down so you can't say what you want to say, but try to do
it as compactly as possible.

We will begin by calling on Cliff Rowland from Chula Vista.
Cliff, please. I started with him early this morning. Also, I
should mention that anything you wish to give us, of course
becomes a portion of the committee hearing, and we keep it on
file and if you have written remarks and would care to handle it
the same, that also becomes part of the record.

CLIFF ROLAND: Thank you, Senator. My name is Cliff Rowland.

T live at 1100 - I6 Industrial Boulevard, Chula Vista, Calif.
92011. We had our district meeting the other day, and in about
five minutes I discovered I was selected to come up here to

testify before you, and I am grateful for the opportunity to do
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this. What you just said is almost exactly a thumbnail sketch of
all the problems we have down in Chula Vista. I have here a
letter that you wrote to a constituent concerning Section 798.18,
the two-tier rent structure. This is a terrible, terrible
dilemma in Chula Vista as practically every mobilehome park down
- by the way, I want to say this that I am President of the GSMOL
Chapter in our park, and I'm also President of District 4 in
Chula Vista.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Cliff, let me interrupt you a moment to
introduce one of my colleagues. Senator Bob Presley, who
represents Riverside County, which is of course a county that is
full of mobilehomes and mobilehome residents, so he is very
familiar and obviously very interested in the problems. It is
nice to have you here with us, Bob.

SENATOR PRESLEY: Thank you.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Go ahead, Cliff.

MR. ROLAND: Well, I'm here representing about 50 mobilehome
parks, and almost to the park we have these problems. We have
one park, Happy Hollow Mobilehome Park, that sounds like a happy
place to live. . .

SENATOR CRAVEN: Sure sounds that way.

MR. ROLAND: Yes. They have challenged their park owner by
going to court to challenge 798.18. The Goldeh State Mobilehome

Owners League has given them $1,000 to help them pay their
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expenses, and we in the district are trying to collect money to
help them pay for their legal expenses. So I'm here, hopefully,
to say some little thing, and the rent increase in our park alcne
will show very distinctly the two-tier rent structure.

If you don't sign a lease, you are going to pay 9%. If you
sign a lease, you will pay 7%. We think that's a gross error. I
think it's wrong. I don't think they have the right to do that,
and I have sent a letter to our park manager that when I pay my
rent in June, if they are going to charge me 9%, then I'm going
to see her in court. I'm going to challenge her in Small Claims
Court. My recommendation to you, of all the things we have done,
I'm not going to go into them because I know there are a lot of
people here who wish to talk who will go into all the things I
wanted to say, but our recommendation to you, Senator, is simply
that Section 798.18 (b) be repealed and in its place this be
installed.

"No such agreement shall contain any terms or conditions
with respect to charges for rent, utilities, or incidental
reasonable service charges that would be different from the
corresponding terms or conditions that would be offered to
the homeowners on a month-to-month basis."

SENATOR CRAVEN: So there would be no differentiation.

MR. ROLAND: No differentiation at all, and it would do away

with what these park owners are trying to do to us. Also,
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because of SB 1352, and in the City of Chula Vista, we have a
rent mediation board and the park owners are pushing - you'll see
in my notice of a rent increase there, they are saying we are
required - they are trying to demand that we sign a lease, and
these are tactics that, for reasons unbeknown to us, that keep us
from living a tranquil life. But it seems the park owners are
always jabbing at us trying to make our lives anything but
tranguil in our old age.

Thank you again for this opportunity, and the recommendation
of changing Section 798.18 is from our district.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Thank you very much, Cliff. Next is Marvin
Druckemiller from Sacramento.

MARVIN DRUCKEMILLER: I'm Marvin Druckemiller, an Alternate

Director of GSMOL, and I reside at 10035-46 Mills Station Road,
Sacramento, CA 95827.

My testimony is intended to provide this committee with a
little insight into the inequities introduced by mobilehome park
owners in the form of leases that in effect deprive us the
residents and homeowners of our property rights without compen-
sation. For example, a little over a year ago in Cordovan Mobile
Estates, a mobilehome park in Sacramento County, the park owner
prepared leases so one-sided in his favor that it was almost
unbelievable. One of the principal objectives of the lease,

apparently, was to ensure that the park owner landlord would be
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protected from any county enacted statutes that would impose rent
controls in any form, and that all of the increases he had made
in prior months would be protected from rollback by such a
statute.

Therefore, the first provision of the lease presented us to
sign provided the park owner with that protection and would
ensure that the residents, if they signed, would be deprived of
any benefits under rent control statutes subsequently enacted.

The lease provided for a five or ten year period. The lease
included a provision that the rent, if the mobilehome resident
signed, would go up $15 per month immediately. However, if any
of the residents in Cordovan Mobile Estates decided not to sign
the proffered lease, then the rent would go up an additional $15,
for a total of $30 per month increase. I believe this is a
direct violation of Section 798.18(b). This is discrimination
against a resident homeowner and is obviously unfair intimidation
and coercion.

Shortly after the lease was first presented to us as a
demand, a meeting of park residents in Cordovan Mobile Estates
was held and the residents were informed of their rights to not
sign by the Golden State Mobilehome Owners League. However,
approximately half of the residents in Cordovan Mobile Estates
are elderly living on fixed income who became panic stricken at

the thought of the threatened uncontrolled rental increases which
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would be assessed against them for failure to sign the proffered
lease. Consequently, they rushed to sign the lease even though
it was clearly not in their interest to do so.

It is significant, in my opinion, that after the landlord
heard of the meeting held by the Golden State Mobilehome Owners
League where the tenants were informed of the illegality of this
differential in rents, that the landlord backed away from the $15
penalty. The $15 penalty then was withdrawn and it was loudly
proclaimed by the park owner to the Board of Supervisors of the
County of Sacramento that it was a rent reduction of §15.

On the first of this year, a notification of rent increase
was delivered to the residents of Cordovan Mobile Estates which
provided for a 6% increase for all of those who had signed the
landlord's lease, and a $20 increase per month for all of those
who had not signed the landlord's lease. Again, it is my belief
that this is illegal. The 6% would have averaged approximately a
$10 increase per month for signers versus the $20 for
non-signers.

The landlord bases these increases on the spurious
proposition that increases in the CPI make the increases
necessary. It is significant that although the CPI has now
decreased, there is no decrease in rent contemplated for anyone.
As it turns out the 6% increase will occur each year even if the

CPI decreases continually from month to month and year to year.
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It is my belief and the belief of everyone else subjected to
these inequities that we are being victimized by our captive
status in the mobilehome parks. These unprincipled increases in
rent have resulted in some of the seniors in Cordovan Mobile
Estates having to reduce their purchases of food and medicines.

The landlord is able to exact these rents by reason of a
complete absence of competition. There are no vacancies - no
place to move - no mobilehome parks under construction that we
can afford. We are captives of the park system, and he can raise
rents as he wills. Coupled with the fact that the landowner can
raise rents anytime he chooses is his use of intimidation in
obtaining the signature of these elderly people on these
one-sided leases. It is the well considered belief of everyone
knowledgeable of the mobilehome park situation that there should
be a state law passed that makes these confiscatory leases forced
upon these hapless residents illegal.

The ability of park managements to force the signature of
these seniors to these monstrous leases is well documented. I
have been told that in some parks the seniors were sat down in
front of a tough management team, when they went to the park
office to pay the rent, who insisted they sign the lease as a
condition of remaining in the park. The seniors were told that
the park management would not accept the rent unless they signed

these one-sided leases. The only solution is to provide a state
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law that specifically enables a mobilehome park resident to
withdraw his signature from any lease obtained by threat,
coercion, or by intimidation, and that specifically any lease
signed by any resident at any time is void as a matter of public
policy if it prohibits the benefits of rent control statutes
enacted by the state, county, or city governments.

In conclusion, I would like to say that the mobilehome
residents are systematically being deprived of their basic human
rights and their property rights as homeowners by the workings of
this distorted rental market and these monstrously unfair leases.
The state should provide a gate for those oppressed seniors to
escape from the bondage imposed by these unscrupulous landlords.

Thank you for your kind attention.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Thank you very much. Next is Berniece
Kearns of Rancho Cordova.

MR. BREY (from audience): She isn't here, Senator.

SENATOR CRAVEN: All right. Thank you. From WMA, Craig

Biddle. (no response). Dennis Amundson (no response). Brent
Swanson (no response). OK, I'm confident that they will be here
in time. Norm McAdoo (no response). They must be caucusing.

How about Robert J. Crowe?

ROBERT J. CROWE: I am Robert J. Crowe and I live at

150 Apple Lane, Santa Rosa, CA 95407. Thank you for getting me
on the committee. I notice you have Ormond Britton here. He's a

regional director, and I think you should hear from him as well.
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SENATOR CRAVEN: Well, we may, Bob.

MR. CROWE: Pretty much what has been said already covers our
complaints in our park. We have an owner who came up with a
19-page lease, and we were advised by our attorneys individually
not to sign it. However, a few did. 1In fact, only 15% signed
it, and because the rest of us didn't sign, he raised our rent
immediately by $3.53 because we didn't sign.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Per month?

MR. CROWE: Per month, yes. During the course of the year he
kept coming up with memos to the residents, telling us how
foolish we were not to join the rest of the group who believed in
it, and for new tenants coming in, they were forced to sign the
lease or they couldn't move in. At the present time he has about
25% of the park under lease. The rest of us are not.

And after the first full year I contacted him and met with
him personally and advised him I was going to have to go to Small
Claims Court to get back my $3.53 for the first 12 months
according to the Civil Code. He advised me that it was fine for
me to do that and then he would sue me for disturbing his park
operations. He said it would cost me a lot more than it ever
would him because he lives in Southern California and he would
fly up here and he would probably have to bring his family
because he would be up here for several days ih court. And he

said it would cost me because he could bill everything to me, and
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he said he knew that he could beat me. Well, I'm not in a
financial position to take him on so I backed off a little bit,
but we are very concerned and we feel that the state should be
doing something to really look into these leases and come up with
a lease that is readable, understandable, simple, and not all the
legal activities, because many of these seniors citizens don't
understand it. It's real complicated.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Do you feel that the lease in question here
is any different than a lease you may find outside a mobilehome
park from the standpoint of its complexities?

MR. CROWE: Yes, I do. My lawyers advised me of such. He
said it is outrageous and he can't believe such a lease would
even be presented. He felt it had too many things in it for the
park owner and nothing for us. Any renewal dates are strictly at
his option. He continually raises the rent every year. It's
open from 6% to 12% and any pass through, like he says he is
going to fix the streets at a cost of $50,000, he wants us to pay
for.

SENATOR CRAVEN: As a pass through?

MR. CROWE: Well, that's what he thinks it is, but I don't
see how it can be. 1If the capital improvement is making his park
worth more if he goes to sell it - it doesn't make my mobilehome
worth more for me to sell - so I don't mind paying rent, but I'd

like to know what I'm getting for the money I'm paying.
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SENATOR CRAVEN: I understand.

MR. CROWE: We're just not getting that type of information.
I don't know. Where do you go to find out how to get the Civil
Code enforced? We've written to the Attorney General. He tells
us to see our own lawyer. I've contacted GSMOL headgquarters and
they said to get our own lawyer. If we have to go out and fight
these guys individually, it's going to cost us a lot of money.
our park has 109 spaces; 68 of them are single wide. 60% of them
are widows or widowers, and I would say that 50% of those are on
SSI, along with social security, and they can't stand these
continual raises. I can't see why a park owner can raise the
rent every single year. I've rented a lot of homes and
apartments over the course of my years, and I've never had them
raise me year after year, and they maintained everything. Here
we have to maintain everything.

That's about all I have to say. Thank you very kindly, and I
hope you will hear from Mr. Britton as well.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Very well. Thank you very much. well, I
don't know that Mr. Britton is here now. Mr. Britton?

0. O. BRITTON: Good morning. I saw you down at our meeting

in January.
SENATOR CRAVEN: Oh, yes, well, I get around from here to

there.
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MR. BRITTON: My name is Ormond Britton. 1I'm Director of
Region 2 of the Golden State Mobilehome Owners League. My
address is 825 Champagne East, Calistoga.

In Calistoga there are three mobilehome parks, good sized
parks, and the youngest one is the park in which I live which is
12 years old. All three parks have been operating during this
time on a month-to-month basis, no leases, and everyone has been
quite happy, quite pleased with it. But since 1977 we've been
attempting to get a rent review commission set up for Calistoga.

SENATOR CRAVEN: 1Is Calistoga a city?

MR. BRITTON: VYes, it is an incorporated city. We couldn't
get any cooperation from the city council for some time. In fact
we elected what we thought would be a favorable city council, but
when it came to a vote, it didn't work. So, in 1984 we had
another municipal election, and this time we managed to elect
some city council people who would listen to reason. On June 4,
1984, a rent review commission ordinance was introduced before
the city council. Two weeks later there was a public hearing on
this ordinance. Then in the next month I got a call from the
owner of one of these parks. He was quite upset about this, but
we had a long conversation. He was in San Francisco, and I was
at home. The result was that his park didn't do anything. On
the 7th of August, 1984, there was a first reaaing of this

ordinance, and two weeks later on the 2lst of August it was
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passed unanimously, 5-0, by our council, and it became the law of
the city.

Now in the next month we received notice to the residents in
our park that there would be a meeting between the park owner and
his superintendent regarding a lease offer. Now that notice was
given to us on the 12th and this meeting was held on the 18th,
which is less than a week's notice, and we should have had at
least a month's notice. But we met with management and we
discussed this proposed lease that he had. He said that this was
a lease he had put in in some of his other parks and,
incidentally, he owns 17 parks around California. He's losing so
much money that he keeps buying more and more of them. He
suggested a committee of 10 residents to meet among ourselves and
study over the lease that he had given us. So I went in to join
this committee the next morning and found out from management
that the committee was full. Therefore, I was not on the
committee. Well, on May lst of this last year we received a
letter from the committee of 8, stating that they had studied
this lease and suggested changes which the owner had agreed to
make, and they came up with a 5-year lease.

On June lst of last year there was a notice in the park
bulletin that the leases were available. On July lst there was
another notice that the leases should be returned. On August 1lst

there was a notice that leases go into effect September 1lst. On
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September lst there was a notice that management was forming a
lease communications committee. On November 1lst we were noticed
to return leases signed or unsigned.

Now there are quite a few people who have not signed leases
in this park, and they have no intention of signing them, and on
March 28th we received notice of a rent increase, which is going
to be 4% for residents with leases, $15 across the board for
those without leases. There is no justification for any of these
increases. This increase of $15 across the board ranges from
6.2% to 8% increase, and in this lease that he offered the
residents, he said the increase would be based upon 60% of the
Consumer Price Index. It sounds good on the surface, doesn't it?
But the next clause says there is a provision that there will be
a minimum of 4% and a maximum of 12%. He is tying up these
people for an increase every year regardless of economic
conditions or anything else. There is no provision ever for a
reduction. We think it is quite unjust, and that is the kind of
lease that should not be permitted at all.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Pardon me, sir, may I just ask you how long
have you lived in a mobilehome environment?

MR. BRITTON: Eleven years.

SENATOR CRAVEN: During those 11 years have you ever
experienced a time when leases reduced?

MR. BRITTON: Well, we haven't had any leases.
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SENATOR CRAVEN: Rentals?

MR. BRITTON: No, they haven't, Senator.

SENATOR CRAVEN: So, in other words, what you are referring
to is not any different from that which has been occurring for a
decade?

MR. BRITTON: Quite true, but on the other hand, if you
recall, during this year, two months, there has been a decrease
in the CPI.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Oh, yes, I recognize that.

MR. BRITTON: So in that case there is a possibility that
there should be no increase.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Are the leases couched in such a way that
they may reduce, or does it just say minimums and maximums and
has no reference to the fluctuation?

MR. BRITTON: That's right. It just reads about an increase
and there is no provision in this lease for a decrease.

SENATOR CRAVEN: I see. So, presumably, if the CPI dropped,
they would stay at the lower rate - presumably. Is that correct?
In other words, there would be no change.

MR. BRITTON: No, because this lease guarantees a 4% minimum.

SENATOR CRAVEN: That's what I'm saying, no change beyond the
4%. OK. Very good. So, your feeling basically is that it is a
punitive situation. In other words, you sign the lease or youu

are, in effect, punished by virtue of your payments accelerating.
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MR. BRITTON: Yes, it is very retaliatory.

SENATOR CRAVEN: The other witnesses have said ostensibly the
same thing. You are bearing out their contentions.

MR. BRITTON: Very well. Thank you, Senator.

SENATOR CRAVEN: You are very welcome. Thank you very much.
I notice that some of the gentlemen who we skipped before are now
here, so with that, I will go back and call upon Mr. Craig
Biddle, who represents W.M.A.

CRAIG BIDDLE: Senator Craven and Senator Presley, I

apologize for not being here when you called the witnesses
earlier. We had some bills up in Assembly Housing that we had to
take care of over there.

SENATOR CRAVEN: It's perfectly all right.

MR. BIDDLE: I represent the Western Mobilehome Association.
Our associaticn in delving into this subject matter and your
hearings on this felt that the best way to present the testimony,
I think, would be for four different witnesses: first, the
Executive Director of our Association will give you a little
summary of what our Association has done in connection with
long-term leases over the last few years; and, secondly, a park
owner who has been in the business for a good many years. .

SENATOR CRAVEN: You mean the old gray-haired fellow?

MR. BIDDLE: The old gray-haired fellow, Norm McAdoo. Then,

third, will be Brent Swanson, who is an attorney who has been
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drafting the long-term leases and has been intimately involved
with these leases in the last few years, and, lastly, I would
like to talk about some of the legislative intent of some of the
legislation we have had over the last ten years.

SENATOR CRAVEN: That will be fine.

MR. BIDDLE: Let me start first with Mr. Amundson, who is the
Executive Director of the Association, to tell you a little bit
about what our Association has done with long-term leases in the
last few years.

DENNIS AMUNDSON: Mr. Chairman and members, my name is Denny

Amundson. I've been the Executive Director of Western Mobilehome
Association for the past eight years. About 8 years ago I first
noticed, brand new with the Association, that there was a major
legislative push to foster long-term leases in mobilehome parks.
This was largely the result of pushing, and good pushing, by the
Golden State Mobilehome Owners League. Frankly, WMA at that time
was a little slow toc come on board.

In 1977 Senator Carpenter put in a bill that was sponsored by
WMA that required the offering of one-year leases, and that was
the first time I'm aware of in a state statute. A year later in
1978 in response to complaints that some park owners were very
reluctant about offering these one-year leases and would do so
only if they could charge a premium for them, former Assemblyman

Walt Ingalls put in a bill, AB 3315, establishing that you
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couldn't do that - that you could not charge a premium for
long-term leases.

In 1980 there was a bill by Senator Carpenter that dealt with
the issue of the Subdivided Lands Act and made clear that 5-year
leases for new residents coming in would not require that you go
through the Subdivided Lands Act as long as they were less than 5
years.

Then last year Senator Greene put in a bill that was jointly
sponsored by WMA and GSMOL that exempts any long-term lease of
more than one year from rent control, the idea being that freely
negotiated leases were a much better option than government-
imposed rent controls. We were delighted to see that pass and,
as I said, it was jointly supported by us and the Golden State
Mobilehome Owners League. In response to that legislation the
Association has published a long-term lease manual, which I will
provide you some copies. This was published in November just
prior to the new law taking effect in January, and we made it
available at our annual convention where we had about 1,000
people, and we spent a lot of time with seminars and general
sessions on the concept of long-term leases, educating our own
members. It's a fine document. It's more than just a step by
step manual. It's how to go about long-term leases and how to
negotiate them. It also includes a section on subsidies. We

sponsor a voluntary subsidy program whereby residents who are
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really needy can have special arrangements worked out with them,
and have the park subsidize their rents below what the market
rate would otherwise be. That's also contained in this manual.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Is that very commonplace? Do we run into
that situation very frequently?

MR. AMUNDSON: It's growing and Mr. McAdoo, who will be up
here in a minute, can talk about that in more detail. 1In
addition to that, in January of this year we had six statewide
seminars in different locations throughout the state for our
members, where we got good attendance, and again for the
education of long-term leases - what they are about, why they are
good for both sides, and we truly believe that they are. The
whole purpose of the long-term lease is to provide security for
both residents and for the park, and most of the leases being
drawn up are for a 5-year period, and they are voluntary and they
are negotiated.

Tn the last testimony we heard where there was a lease
offering based on 60% of the Consumer Price Index with a 4% floor
and a 12% ceiling. While it's true in recent times the CPI has
gotten very low, around the 3% mark, it wasn't more than a couple
of years ago when it was up at 18%. So the idea again of the
floor and the ceiling makes some sense. When it is very, very
high, it protects the residents. When it is very, very low, it

protects the park. And, again, it is a freely negotiated kind of
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device. Norm McAdoo, who you will hear next from, has offered
several alternative kinds of leases, and we think very
appropriately so.

The whole subject of long-term leases involves a massive
education program, and that is what the Association is trying to
do. We are trying to educate our members. Every chance that we
get, we tell them that leases are good for both sides and why,
how to appropriately negotiate them. We see this as a give and
take proposition where you give up something to get something
else. It's interesting that mobilehome parks have taken so long
to adopt the concept of long-term leases because it has been here
in almost every other form of real estate. When we negotiate for
our office buildings, we are always offered options of long-term
leases of various lengths. In apartments that's also true, and
mobilehome parks were late in buying this concept, but now we are
fully on board. We support it. We are delighted to have the
opportunity to testify today, and I'd like you to hear from our
other witnesses as well.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Thank you, Denny.

MR. BIDDLE: Next we'd like to have Mr. McAdoo. Your Select
Committee has heard him before, and he will tell you a little bit
about what he has done with regard to long-term leases. He's
made a change as the Association has. He used to be opposed to
them, and now he is in favor of them. He will tell you the types

of things he does in his parks.
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NORM McADOO: Good morning, Senator Craven. It occurred to

my partner and me in the early 80's that we were tired of going
down to city hall with the two of us and 300 residents yelling at
each other. It also occurred to us that we were entitled to know
as they were entitled to know somewhat what their future held.
And the future is hard for all of us to predict. For example,
last year I wouldn't have predicted that my insurance premium
would have gone from $6,000 to $40,000.

In 1984 in five of our parks we sent out a lease offering
letter. We offered the people their choice of one of two
five-year leases. One is straight CPI and government-mandated
pass throughs. The other is CPI with 6% minimum and a 12%
maximum, and the choice was theirs, or they could sign nothing.
At that time we said that if you sign nothing, the first year we
will treat you the same. The second year we probably will not
because if we are going for five years, and you are not willing
to go with us for five years, then after the first year it's open
season, so to speak. Probably a poor choice of words, but I'll
follow through on it.

About 98% of the people did choose to sign the lease. Two or
three elderly women took our lease to an attorney and said which
one shall we sign. The attorney advised them to sign the one
with the minimum 6% and the maximum 12%. The second year rolled

around, and that was when we were hit with the insurance premium
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so I did write a letter and said, "You who signed the lease are
protected from this increase in rent. You who did not, this is
your proportionate share of the increase in our insurance
premium." It was $5 or $6 in addition to the CPI which the rest
of them accepted. And they recognized that they were probably
entitled to pay that much, and they did.

In cur park in Riverside when we opened the park, we put
everybody on 25-year leases, CPI government-mandated pass
throughs. You know, our residents are happy. I feel that if we
commit ourselves for five or ten years, or whatever that commit-
ment is, and they choose not to commit themselves, then they
don't deserve the same treatment. They really don't because I
don't have a crystal ball, I'm taking a chance, and they're
taking a chance too. If they don't choose to take that chance
with me, then if my prices go up and I'm locked into leases, then
I'm going to slap a raise on those who didn't go along with me.
I think that anything where you give somebody a longer agreement,
you are entitled to give them a little discount for that
agreement.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Norm, you probably heard some of the
testimony from the other side. When you look at the option, in
other words to sign a long-term lease or not to, there is a
feeling on the part of those people who have ﬁestified that it

becomes a rather punitive act on the part of the park ownership.
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In other words, say, well, if you don't go on the long-term
lease, we're going to penalize you because you have not done so.
Now, you've covered most of that in your comments, but do you
have any other comment on that or do you want to reiterate what
you said?

MR. McADOO: Well, I don't think it should be a severe
penalty, but I think, certainly, if you offer a long-term lease,
you are both entitled to a better deal. I think the residents
and the owners are both tired of yelling at each other. You
know, who needs all this stuff down at the local level every
Tuesday night?

SENATOR CRAVEN: That goes without saying.

MR. McADOO: You know, you just don't need it. I don't know.
We feel comfortable with long-term leases. Our residents feel
comfortable with long-term leases.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Are your leases tied to CPI?

MR. McADOO: Yes, they are tied to CPI...

SENATOR CRAVEN: With a floor of 6%?

MR. McADOO: Right.

SENATOR CRAVEN: So, in other words, they may not drop below
6% even though CPI may go to 3%?

MR. McADOO: That is correct on both ways. It's the tenant's

option as to which he chooses.
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SENATOR CRAVEN: As I understand it, if the tenant does not
choose to sign a long-term lease, then they have nothing to fall
back on other than the vagaries of the economics of the
situation. In other words, things may go up and they are going
to have to pay their proportionate share of those increases.
Where the people who in effect have gone on the lease are in
effect held harmless from those increases. Am I correct in
assuming that?

MR. McADOO: That's correct, and you should also recognize
that the long-term lease that I sign, and I think this is true of
all park owners, I am obligated under that lease for the term of
the lease. The resident may sell his home or may remove his
home, and with 60 days' notice he is removed from the terms of
that lease. He has that option which I do not have.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Now when I buy the unit which has been
vacated, let's say, am I eligible for the same type of leasing
arrangement or do you renegotiate at a higher scale, or what
would be anticipated?

MR. McADOO: You would be subject to the same terms of the
lease. However, I would bring the base of the lease up to a
current market value at your inception.

SENATOR CRAVEN: I see. So that would mean that the ceiling

and the floor would rise. Am I correct in assuming that?
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MR. McADOO: The base rent would rise to you if that
particular park is not up to a market area where it should be.
But you make that determination when you come in, and then you
are under the same terms as the previous tenant was.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Now, you have a lot of parks. How many
parks do you have, Norm?

MR. McADOO: Seven.

SENATOR CRAVEN: I thought you had more than that. All
right, that's a lot - seven. Now, recognizing that none of us
keep our constituents, regardless of what it may be, happy all of
the time. Would you say that the rental or lease agreements you
have struck with your tenants have worked out well and that they
are generally happy with them?

MR. McADOO: 1It's the best thing we ever did, without a
doubt. It has forestalled a lot of complaints on the part of
residents and all of them. You know, we have always maintained
our properties anyway...

SENATOR CRAVEN: You are a good park operator, and I'm aware
of that. And that may be one of the keys to the situation. In
other words, the people, generally speaking, have been happy with
the arrangement?

MR. McADOO: People know what's going to happen to them in
the future. You know, people, their biggest nervous maker is, "I
don't know what's going to happen tomorrow." If they know by

document, even if it's bad, at least they know.
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SENATOR CRAVEN: In other words, your side of the argument
would be they have an assurance, they know. We used to have in
the Legislature a situation that I guess is somewhat similar.
When Bob Presley and I started in the Senate, we knew we were
never going to get rich because there is not that much money
involved, so we have no right, therefore, to complain about how
much we earn because we knew going in, but cne other thing we
knew was that we were eligible to receive incremental increases,
no more than 5% per annum. But we haven't always received it
because we haven't chosen to do that, but then somebody comes
along who wants to take that away. So that kind of, you know,
destroys the playhouse.

I look upon what you are offering somewhat similarly.

There's a certain assurance as to the fact that it is probably
going to increase, but it may not increase any more than the
given figure. Is that what you have told us?

MR. BIDDLE: That's correct. All right, let me make a couple
of comments, Senator Craven, in connection with the program such
as DeAnza has. Mr. McAdoo might want to comment on those where a
tenant can come in and make application for a subsidy.

MR. McADOO: The DeAnza Corporation, which owns parks across
the United States, deals with this on a one to one basis, very
confidentially between the property manager, not even the on-site

manager, and the resident. If they can't pay the rent, he sits
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down and meets with them. And they have told me that they have
some parks where they are paying more of the tenant's rent than
the tenant is because they have been there a long time. I have
five people in my parks right now that I'm subsidizing. They
couldn't afford the rent raise. I didn't go to anybody. I just
didn't give them the rent raise. And I think you will find that
most park owners are that way. You don't hear a lot about it.
For those who cannot pay, we make a big distinction between those
who can't pay and those who don't want to pay.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Yes, well, there is a great distinction
there. Could you tell us how the subsidy actually works?

MR. McADOO: Well, generally, I just talk to them and see - I
ask for a financial statement - what they have coming and what is
the income and what the expenses are, and I just don't raise the
rent beyond that point. And I have some of them who have been
there for years that way. I just do that until they phase out
and somebody else moves in that space.

SENATOR CRAVEN: There is no lien or anything on their
property?

MR. McADOO: No, there isn't, but that is something that
should be and is available. The state and county do that now.
They put a second or first lien on the property until their death
and then take it back. Most park owners do not do that because I
don't think they want to go through the paperwork to do it. They

would rather just do it.
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SENATOR CRAVEN: Yes, I understand. Senator Presley?

SENATOR PRESLEY: A clarifying question. You say your parks
are under a 25-year lease?

MR. McADOO: Just the one out in your area.

SENATOR PRESLEY: That's a long time down the pike.

MR. McADOO: It was a 5-year lease with 20 one-year automatic
renewals, which they can get off.

SENATOR PRESLEY: You mean five years, then 20 one-year...

MR. McADOO: That's right. We can't give 25-year leases or
we're getting into problems with the real estate "Subdivided
Lands Act" or something. The most we can have is...

SENATOR PRESLEY: I think you said there is a 60-day - the
tenant can break the lease by 60-day notice?

MR. McADOO: Yes. Now, he has to sell his home to somebody
else or remove it, but he's not stuck for 25 years or even 5
years on a lease. I am, but he's not.

SENATOR PRESLEY: You can't break the lease?

MR. McADOO: No.

SENATOR PRESLEY: All right. Another thing I don't
understand are the government pass throughs. What are those
things?

MR. McADOO: Well, if you all decide you are going to put
street lights out on the street outside of my park, and assess

that property for those street lights, then I'll divide it up
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among the folks who live there. Anything the government does to
me I feel is fair, so I'm going to pass it on.

SENATOR CRAVEN: We appreciate the thought that whatever we
may do is fair. That's something for debate at times, I think.
Very good, Norm. Thank you very much.

MR. BIDDLE: Mr. Swanson is next. As he's coming up, Senator
Craven, I'd like to clarify just one thing you talked about and
that's the question of assignability of these leases. Mr.
Swanson may address that, but I don't know if he's going to, but
I would say there are varying provisions in the leases. Some of
them provide that it is assignable, so that if you sell your
coach in the park, the new purchaser gets the same lease that you
do for the balance of that term. Some of them are written that
way. Some of them are written that it's not assignable. If you
sell your coach, this terminates the lease, and they do not have
any rights under it. In the third, some of them say it is
assignable but that the rent will be so much for the new tenant.
I've seen them put out in more different ways than ours.

SENATOR CRAVEN: It becomes very obvious that there is a
certain benign quality that I suppose is existent in some parks
which is not in others, and it becomes pretty much the
personality of ownership or the avariciousness of ownership. I
think I could probably use that word. Some lahdlords, if you

will, or the owners of the park, are more cooperative than
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others. 1It's unfortunate that it isn't closer to being a common
denominator, but I guess that's a little tco much to expect.

MR. BIDDLE: I just thought I'd mention it because I've seen
it three or four different ways, and you're right, each owner or
management wants to deal with their particular park their way.
Let me introduce Mr. Brent Swanson, who is an attorney who does a
great deal of work in Orange County area, Santa Ana. He does a
good deal of work for this area, and has been drafting and
working on the specifics of long-term leases and the legal
problems about them for the last year or two since our
Association has changed its attitude about them and now is fully
supporting them. He will talk a little bit about some of the
legal problems, then I'll talk about some of the legislative
problems that we have. Mr. Swanson.

BRENT SWANSON: Gocd morning, Senator. Our firm has

consistently represented more park owners in California over the
past ten years than all of the other firms specializing in this
field combined. Because of that, we have made it our business to
keep track of the legislation and the various litigations going
on in various parts of the state.

Long-term leases have been offered at a discounted rate, a
rate that was less than what was charged for a month-to-month or
even a 12-month tenancy for a number of years, and the reason

that that has been a common practice even before the Greene bill
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went into effect this year is that because cities and counties
have recognized that long-term leases were exempt from their
local rent control ordinances. Because of that, many park owners
have offered these leases in an effort to protect themselves
against rent control. Our clients have typically been willing to
give up a great deal to get their residents to sign long-term
leases so they could have security against the threat of rent
control, which is a growing, very popular movement throughout the
state and has been for a number of years.

I know of only one case where the issue has been litigated in
the state as to whether it was proper to offer a long-term lease
at a lower rate than that for a 12-month or month-to-month
tenancy. It was a case that we handled in the North San Diego
Court involving a park in the City of Oceanside where the tenants
brought a class action against the park owner because he had
offered a 5-year lease at a substantially discounted rate over
that which he would charge on a yearly basis. The park owner
felt this was consistent with that of most of our clients as he
was attempting to escape the effects of the Oceanside rent
control ordinance that was enacted prior to his offering these
leases. He was ultimately successful. Finally, over the course
of several years, he ended up getting in excess of 75% of the
residents signed up on these leases. We won that case, and we

won it rather handily.
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We won it on a summary judgment motion, which is a pre-trial
motion. Summary judgments are extremely difficult to get. You
are almost never successful in obtaining one. The sole issue in
the summary judgment motion was the legislative intent in
defining this particular statute and whether or not the
Legislature intended in drafting the statute to preclude a
discounted rent being offered on a long-term lease. The court
concluded very clearly that it was not the Legislature's intent -
I brought along a copy of the various legislative intent
documents that we obtained through a service here in Sacramento
that comes over here to the Legislature and pulls all the letters
and speeches and various comments out of your files to show what
the legislative intent and history of a particular statute is.
This was given to the court and analysed extensively by both
sides, and the court concluded in our favor.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Did you represent the organization at that
time?

MR. SWANSON: I represented the park owners, yes, sir.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Who was the Judge in that case?

MR. SWANSON: The Judge was Gilbert Nares.

SENATOR CRAVEN: You were in Superior Court?

MR. SWANSON: In Superior Court, yes, sir.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Mr. Tennyson has a question.
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JOHN TENNYSON: Was that within one year under 798.18, or was

that after the one-year period? If you know what I'm talking
about. In other words, Section 798.18 (b) addresses a difference
in rent after a l12-month period, or, say, one year.

MR. SWANSON: That rate was offered from the very beginning.
It did not kick in at the 13th month.

MR. TENNYSON: Very good.

MR. SWANSON: This case occurred in the spring of 1982, by
the way, and that gets to be an important date as well. You will
recognize, of course, that this litigation went on in Marie
Malone's backyard. It was handled by an attorney who specialized
in representing the home tenants. It was vitally publicized at
the time throughout our industry, both among park owner attorneys
and tenant attorneys. There have not been to my knowledge, and
it could be that I am not aware of a case, but to my knowledge
there has been no other case since that date that has dealt with
this issue.

We have had periodically inquiries and comments from tenants'
attorneys on this issue, but typically, in fact in all cases,
they have been new attorneys who were just getting in the
business for the first time or starting to represent mobilehome
tenants. They have said to us on occasion - this probably
happens once or twice a year - "Gee, you can't do that. This is

the way the statute reads. You can't charge less for rent for a
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long-term lease than you do on a year or less, and I have made to
them on those occasions the explanation that I made to Judge
Nares in this particular case, often even providing them with our
briefs and the legislative history. And I've also said to them
that they should call Maury Priest, and I've told them who Maury
Priest is, that he is the attorney for GSMOL and he is their
lobbyist, and he's in Sacramento and how to reach him. Now I
dorn't know that they called Maury in fact, but I think what that
demonstrates is that at least I was sufficiently confident that
Maurice Priest, and other residents' attorneys in this state who
are more experienced, concurred with me that there was no legal
problem in offering a discounted rent on a long-term lease
because, obviously, if that was not the case, I wouldn't have
directed them to Maury Priest.

We've seen, in fact up and down this state time and time
again, many cities and counties encouraging park owners to offer
these long-term leases at discounted amounts as a way of avoiding
rent control, and in many, many incidents the residents and their
attorneys are involved in those negotiations and discussions, and
not once have we heard an objection from any one of them that
this is in some fashion or another illegal. The basic rule of
law that we lawyvers use in interpreting statutes is to interpret
the statute so as to be consistent with the legislative intent,

and, obviously, the whole purpose of the Mobilehome Residency Law
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is to benefit residents. There is very little in there that
benefits a park owner, in all honesty.

The sole purpose of this statute, and I was around at the
time it first came into being, was to avoid a resident being
charged more for a long-term lease than he was on a month-to-
month tenancy. And this legislative history indicates that that
is the sole concern that the Legislature had. Long-term leases
are, obviously, a good solution to rent control. 1In fact I think
they are the best solution that's available. The Greene bill
recognized this, and I see no reason or purpose to attempt to
construe this statute to come to some different intention. What
the residents are doing, basically, is what I get when I go out
and shop for office space. If I commit myself to a 10 or 20-year
lease, I get a substantially better deal than if I am only
willing to commit to a year or a month-to-month lease. You can
look at it another way. If you would accept the proposition that
it is unlawful to offer a discounted rent for a long-term lease,
then offer the following, which we can do and it will have the
same effect. If I'm a park owner, I can say to my residents, "I
will give you a $500 bonus in cash if you will sign my lease, or
I will give you a free microwave or television or whatever." I
can say to you, "I will give you free rent in the 13th and 1l4th
months of the lease, or I will offer you free rent for the two

months before the lease begins." Or as is very common in parks
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that are filling, particularly in bad market areas, we will say
to you, "Move into my park, move out of his park and into mine,
and I will give you six months free rent." Now, all of those
things would be perfectly legal, even under this literal
interpretation of the statute that some ask you to accept. Yet
all of those things have exactly the same effect as offering $10
less a month rent on a discounted long-term lease. My point is
that, obviously, the statute wasn't intended to preclude the
kinds of things that I have just listed, and I don't think, just
as obviously, that it is intended to preclude the discounted rent
either...

SENATOR CRAVEN: Mr. Swanson, are you close to bringing this
to a conclusion?

MR. SWANSON: Yes. I would just like to say that I have
negotiated long-term leases now for a number of years, all over
the state, for a number of clients, and in many instances GSMOL
representatives, resident attorneys who specialize in
representing residents, and I've not heard them say this. With
respect to the other issues that are raised in your position
paper, I would be happy to address those too as well if you would
like. It's not my impression, and I've not seen a situation
where a resident has been given a week or less to decide whether
or not to accept a lease. 1I've just not seen that. Typically

it's at least six weeks. Commonly, it's a period of a number of
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months. I've not seen situations where only a long-term lease
was offered and not also the 12-month or the month-to-month
lease. In terms of the pass throughs, the typical pass throughs
only cover the things that the park owner has no ability to
control. 1It's not a triple-net lease. The bulk of the operating
expenses of a park are not being set up as pass throughs, so it's
certainly not a situation where the park owner is able to
insulate himself entirely from economic realities and foist all
of the risk upon the tenants. It's just not a reality. Thank
you.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Thank you, Mr. Swanson.

MR. BIDDLE: Just one comment, if I may, Senator Craven, on
this one specific code section. 1It's interesting, I think, when
you have been lobbying 10 or 12 years now, and this one I can
particularly remember as it went through the Legislature because
it was from Jurupa Hills Mobilehome Park in Riverside. It was
Walt Ingalls, and because of my background I particularly
remember the case. It was when Senator Carpenter's bill went
through, which said you had the right to the one-year lease. I
can remember what happened in Jurupa Hills. They didn't want
long-term leases back in those days - this was in 1978 - and the
owner of the park at that time said that if anyone came in and
demanded a long-term lease, their rent was going to be twice as

much. I don't remember the amount. It was like $200 if you
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demanded a lease rather than the $100. I can remember Walt
Ingalls at that time immediately came to me and said, "We can't
do this." I agreed that we couldn't, and I don't know whether I
wrote the words exactly or Denny Kavanagh, back in those days,
who wrote them down, but we specifically put that section in
which is now the .18 section, 798.18, which said you can't do
this. Our wording was you can't have it different. Probably if
we went back and redid it, we were trying to say to Jurupa Hills
you can't charge more. And that's the legislative intent. I
think it is clearly there, and I think Mr. Swanson's arguments
show that. If Mr. Tennyson will examine them, I think that's the
flexibility that we believe is there, the flexibility we have in
the lease. And I think that's what the Legislature has really
said by these bills we have passed, by the Greene bill that was
passed last year, have this flexibility, and always as the bills
have gone through the Legislature, everyone has said this is
voluntary, nothing mandatory. A couple of bills we didn't put in
the language that it must be voluntary. It has always been the
Legislature's attitude in the committee process to have the
maximum flexibility but have it voluntary so it could be
negotiated in the park. I think that's what the legislative
intent will show.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Very good. Thank you both very much. Next

is Mark Goldowitz.
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MARK GOLDOWITZ: Thank you. Good morning. My name is Mark

Goldowitz, and I am an attorney with, and the Executive Director
of, the Contra Costa Legal Services Foundation. With me are
Rozella Mandocino from the Circle S Mobilehome Park in San Pablo
and Dale Clute from the El1 Rancho Mobilehome Park in San Pablo,
who both, at the end of my remarks, will add a little bit from
their personal experiences.

I am here today on behalf of low income residents of
mobilehome parks in the City of San Pablo, and I want to bring to
your attentrion problems that are currently being experienced by
low income mobilehome residents in San Pablo. I think that most
of these problems have been caused by the new Civil Code Section
798.17, and urge the members of this committee to sponsor and
support legislation to repeal that provision.

That provision, Section 798.17, also called the Greene bill,
or previously called the Greene bill, passed last year and allows
leases in excess of 12 months to supersede local rent regulation
protections for mobilehome residents. I think repeal of this
provision is necessary for at least two important reasons: one
philosophical and the other practical.

First, 798.17 establishes a special rule for mobilehome
residents, and treats them as second class citizens. For no
other tenants in the State of California may the conflicting and

less protective provisions of a lease prevail over any local rent
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protection ordinance. Only mobilehome residents suffer this
fate. This conflicts with the fundamental policy statement that
the Legislature made when enacting the Mobilehome Residency Law,
which was that the special problems and circumstances of
mobilehome residents require unique and additional protections
for mobilehome residents, not fewer protections. Given that
correct policy determination, certainly mobilehome residents
should be no less entitled to protections under local ordinances
than any other tenant in the state.

Second, the practical effect, which we have heard some
testimony about earlier today, is to subject mobilehome residents
to unreasonable pressure from park owners who now want residents
to sign long-term leases so local rent protections will not
apply.

For instance, no rent protections are currently on the books
in San Pablo in Contra Costa County, but an initiative ordinance
to establish them is on the ballot for this June 3. Without even
the measure being on the books in an effort to prevent mobilehome
residents from enjoying any protections from the proposed
ordinance, if it should pass, mobilehome park owners in the City
of San Pablo have engaged in a systematic campaign of threats and
intimidation and punitive rent increases, to coerce residents

into signing onerous multi-year leases.
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At the largest mobilehome park in San Pablo, Circle S, where
Rozella Mandocino lives, prior to December 1985, residents had
never been offered a written rental agreement. In November 1985,
mobilehome residents began circulating an initiative petition for
a Mobilehome Residents Protection Ordinance. On December 31,
1985, Circle S sent residents a letter saying that the park would
be closed unless they agreed to sign a long-term lease (see
Exhibit A4).

On January 13, 1986, Circle S sent residents a copy of a
proposed 5-year lease (see Exhibit B). The proposed lease
contained a number of objectionable provisions. Most signifi-
cantly, the lease mandated rent increases for increases in the
Consumer Price Index, and then on top of that, also increases for
any increases in operating costs, thus double charging residents
for the same expenses. The lease also required signers to
falsely state that they had previously received copies of the
Mobilehome Residency Law, which was not true as it had never been
given out to residents, nor was a copy of the law attached to the
lease, as required by the Civil Code.

Park management engaged in a campaign of threats and
intimidation to force residents to sign the proposed lease. The
witnesses that follow me will also testify about this. In
addition to the threats that the park would be closed, residents

were told by management that if they didn't sign the lease, their
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rents could be increased every 60 days and would be increased
more than they would be for those who signed the lease. The
assistant manager at Circle S told residents that if they didn't
sign the lease, they would have to pay subsequent rent increases,
and could possibly lose their mobilehome. She also told
residents that if they did not sign the lease, they were not
wanted at Circle S. Residents were constantly pressured to sign
the lease. These tactics put intense emotional pressure and
stress on park residents, many of whom are elderly and very
vulnerable to this kind of pressure.

Residents who did sign the proposed lease were given a $10
per month rent increase, which was softened by a rebate of
one-half month's rent. The combined effect of the two was that
for the first 12 months of the lease term, the rent increase for
those who signed the lease was only about $3 per month.

Because of problems with the lease, many park residents
refused to sign it. On January 30, 1986, those residents who had
not signed the lease received a notice that their rent would be
increased $25 per month. This notice was accompanied by a letter
frombthe park owner explaining that "this rent increase is only
for those mobilehome owners who have not signed the lease
agreement we have offered park residents. If you have signed the
new lease agreement or will sign it, of coursé, this rent

increase will not apply to your space." (see Exhibit C).
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Thus, residents who did not sign the lease were being forced
to pay punitive rent increases more than eight times greater than
the ones given to those who did sign the lease.

Similar and worse has occurred at other parks in San Pablo.
At E1 Rancho, management called residents in to the office and
insisted that they sign the lease right then. Residents were not
allowed to take a copy of the lease out of the office to show to
a lawyer or friend. At Kimball's Park, residents were given
blank leases and told that they must sign them within three days.

If this pattern of events has occurred in a community which
does not even have a rent control ordinance on the books, I
shudder to think what has been happening and will happen in the
forty communities which do have local rent protections on the
books.

To protect mobilehome residents against these kinds of
practices, I urge you to repeal Civil Code Section 798.17 and to
adopt Mr. Rowland's suggestion of amending Section 798.18 by
striking the language "during the first 12 months of the
agreement."

Thank you very much.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Thank you. Do your friends wish to make a
comment?

ROZELLA MANDOCINO: I'm Rozella Mandccino, and I talked to

some people in our court where they were forced into signing
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these leases and one man right next door to me, who can't even
take care of his own problems, somebody has to do it, was visited
by the manager or the assistant manager. I live right next door
to him, and he can't even read or write or do much of anything.
She got him on the porch and said, "Here, I want you to sign
this." He said that he didn't know that he should. She said,
"Wwell, it's all right; it's all right, baby. You just listen to
me and if I tell you it's all right, it's all right." And she
helped him use his hand to sign it. I sat there in my own
mobilehome watching her through the window and listening to this.
That's the way she got him to sign that lease. He didn't even
know what he was signing. She didn't give him time to get
somebody else who was responsible to help him. There are lots of
others in the court who I have talked to, and they have told me
the same thing. They said if they don't sign the lease, they
will get raised rent and higher rent than I can afford, and so
they are scared. They don't want to sign the lease, but they
sign it because they are afraid.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Rozella, did you sign the lease?

MS. MANDOCINO: No, I didn't get a lease to sign.

SENATOR CRAVEN: I see. You mean they didn't offer you a
lease?

MS. MANDOCINO: They didn't offer me a lease.

SENATOR CRAVEN: So you are still on the old rent schedule?
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MS. MANDOCINO: Yes.

MR. GOLDOWITZ: Rozella was one of the residents in the city
who had been in the leadership of circulating the in?*tiative
petition, and several of those were not even offered leases but
were told they had to pay $25 rent increases. When that notice
came down, we went to court and after filing a lawsuit
challenging the punitive rent increases for those who refused to
sign the lease, the landlord backed down. But if he comes back
at any time, we may have to revive the lawsuit.

SENATOR CRAVEN: I see. So your activism has helped you a
little bit?

MS. MANDOCINO: Yes.

MR. GOLDOWITZ: Although I think it caused quite a bit of
emotional stress.

MS. MANDOCINO: Yes, it did cause a lot because since all of
this I've had back trouble and I've been down on my back since
November. I've always been a well person, and now I'm on pills.
of course, stress will do it - particularly when you are 71 years
old.

SENATOR CRAVEN: I think you are doing very well.

MS. MANDOCINO: Thank you.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Thank you. Dale, do you have something to

say?
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DALE CLUTE: The first time I became aware of the lease was

when I got a notice in my mailbox to please come to the office
and read the lease. So I went there and found that I understood
some of it and didn't understand some of it. I told them I
wanted to take the lease to my lawyer. They told me I couldn't
take it out of the office. So I told them I wasn't going to sign
that damned thing and I walked out. That's all there was to it.
Then about 3 or 4 days later I got another notice in my box to
come up, and I could have the lease to take home and read it,
which I did. It didn't sound good to me so I took it to my
lawyer, and he told me definitely not to sign it. Everything is
slanted their way; nothing is for you whatsoever. So that's the
way it stands now.

SENATOR CRAVEN: So you, therefore, did not sign-the lease?

MR. CLUTE: No, sir, I did not.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Have you had a resultant rent increase?

MR. CLUTE: My rent went up when the new owner bought it in
January by $42 a month.

SENATOR CRAVEN: $42 a month?

MR. CLUTE: That's right.

SENATOR CRAVEN: May I ask what you pay in rental?

MR. CLUTE: Right now I pay $232 for a 10 wide.

SENATOR CRAVEN: I see. So that was quite an increase.

MR. CLUTE: You're telling me!
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SENATOR CRAVEN: Let me just ask you, Dale. Do you remember
the lease well enough to know what it would have been if you had
signed the lease?

MR. CLUTE: Not more than 10% a year.

SENATOR CRAVEN: I see, so it would have been considerably
less than what you have to pay now?

MR. CLUTE: Well, 10% a year...

SENATOR CRAVEN: Say about $25. OK. Is there anything else?

MR. GOLDOWITZ: I just realized that I neglected to give you
an address so we can receive the materials. It is 1017 McDonald
Avenue, Richmond, CA 94802.

MR. CLUTE: Do you want my address too? It's 13401 San Pablo
Avenue, Space 5, San Pablo, California 94806.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Why don't you give us yours too, Rozella?

MS. MANDOCINO: 3613 San Pablo Avenue, San Pablo, Space 8l.

SENATOR CRAVEN: OK. Thank you very much. Next is Ida
Johnson from San Rafael.

IDA JOHNSON: Good morning, Senator Craven. My address is

389 Bryce Canyon Road, San Rafael, CA 94903. I'd like to take a
minute and give you some personal information about me because
it's pertinent to this discussion.

I moved for the first time into a mobilehome park last year
in September. At that time the rent was $315 a month for a

double-wide space. That park was purchased in July by the DeAnza
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Corporation. DeAnza Corporation notified the tenants in November
that there would be a rent increase or roughly 18% or $57 per
month effective January 1lst. The homeowners' association at
Contempo Marin attempted to meet with DeAnza prior to the
effective rent increase and talk about it because we felt that
$57 was a lot of money to raise the rent, and we wanted to know
what we would be getting for $57 a month. DeAnza finally met
with the homeowners' association in December, probably about the
middle of the month to talk. At that meeting nothing was
accomplished except they did say they would meet with us again to
talk about it.

Subsequently, the homeowners and local government supervisors
and city councilmen did meet with DeAnza, with their president
and their lawyers, and we were able to negotiate a decrease or a
respreading of the proposed increase. We finally ended up with
an increase of - it's 12, 12 and 12 over a four-year period.
Everyone is talking about long-term leases and discounted leases.
We were almost forced to sign those leases simply because if -
$57 is a lot of money, $35 is a lot of money, and I'm not just
talking about our population at Contempo Marin. It's broad.
There are retired citizens and there is a diverse population.
We're not just all senior citizens like some of the other parks.
We have different needs and different incomes and for a lot of

the people in the park this increase - and even the leases that
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were offered - have now meant that they have to sell their homes
and move out of the county. If you signed the lease, depending
on which lease you signed, and I think they offered us 5
different leases, we are on a rate structure there. 1In the park
there are 400 units. We're a good sized park. 1It's a big money
producer. There is a structure that there are over 18 different
rents in the park.

I personally signed the lease so that my rent increase for
this year is only $35 per month. Although I pay $35 more, I
don't get anything more from the park. I pay my own PG&E and I
pay my own water, I pay my own gardener. So I don't know what
I'm paying the $35 a month for, and, mind you, I just moved in in
September. So I would know what my expenses were over the next
four years, I was forced to sign the lease. The lease provisions
were almost unconscionable. We were able to renegotiate some of
the terms of the lease. Again, only because local government got
involved because it was DeAnza's position that it was their park
and they didn't have to talk to us. To a certain extent I
understand that. They have money involved, but I, too, have
money involved because I'm paying for that coach. I cannot move
that coach because it costs roughly about $7,000 to $10,000 to
move it. So that makes it not very mobile.

SENATOR CRAVEN: True.
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MS. JOHNSON: When I came into the park, I bought the coach.
I knew nothing about mobilehome parks, nothing about mobilehome
legislation, and all of a sudden I was confronted with all of
these issues and all of these rules and regulations that as the
owner of a conventional home I did not have to deal with. Now
here I am again this morning listening to the association, the
owners, and they are talking about educating their people about
all the things they are doing. That service is not available to
me as a tenant, as a resident, and how do I make decisions
without consulting a lawyer, spending more money to learn what
these rules mean?

SENATOR CRAVEN: I think the education process to which they
have referred was really couched in your direction. Am I
correct?

MS. JOHNSON: No, that material is not available to me. You
are referring to the long-term lease booklet they've done?

SENATOR CRAVEN: Yes.

MS. JOHNSON: That's for park owners. I'm not an owner.

SENATOR CRAVEN: But aren't you given seminars in this field,
throughout the park? Let me address this to the people involved.

MR. BIDDLE: Our seminars, Senator Craven, are for the
members of our association.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Only?

MR. BIDDLE: Yes.
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SENATOR CRAVEN: OK. So what you are saying is absolutely
correct.

MS. JOHNSON: Thank you. The other concern from our park is
that everyone is talking about percentage increases. At the end
of my four years, my rental fee, which is not going to be
improved unless I improve it, will be roughly $450 per month.

SENATOR CRAVEN: By virtue of your lease arrangement?

MS. JOHNSON: My lease arrangement that I voluntarily signed.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Voluntarily?

MS. JOHNSON: Yes, pretty voluntary! I'm very familiar with
our lease because I was one of the people who sat on the
committee to negotiate that lease, and to try to get some
language in it that was favorable to the residents. I had a
stake in the outcome, so I jumped into the battle. We were able
to get the property taxes and those kinds of things halted so
they were not passed through to us, but the basic DeAnza lease -
they were ownership - provided the residents with nothing.
Absolutely nothing. And if you don't sign the lease, in 60 days
they can raise your rent again, so how voluntarily did I sign the
lease?

SENATOR CRAVEN: Probably not very voluntarily. That's it?

MS. JOHNSON: That's it.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Thank you very much, Ms.vJohnson. Next is

Myron Kern from Sonoma.



-55-

MYRON KERN: Good morning, Senator. My name is Myron Kern.

I live at 133 Bear Flag Road, Sonoma, CA 95476. I just realized
that my small problems are relatively small when I hear the
abuses that have occurred in many other parks.

My reason for coming is to present to the committee what I
believe to be a pattern that continues to escalate for those park
owners who abuse their rights as owners, at least they abuse them
in my opinion. I believe that I speak for all park residents who
own their own homes. I'm a member of GSMOL. I believe the park
owners should have a fair return on their investments. What most
park owners - I'd say by far the majority - do not give us any
kind of financial information regarding what constitutes a fair
return. 1Is it 6% on his investment or is it 66%2? I believe that
the committee and the Legislature should incorporate some means
within reason to have the park owners tell the residents what
these increases consist of, what his increases were. A great
number of these park owners, as you know, are corporations, and
it's very difficult for us individuals or even as a group to meet
with a corporation head. Most of them are absentee landlords who
live hundreds of miles away. What I would like to see, if at all
possible, is some legislation that says if we must have increases
- and I'm wondering why all of a sudden in the last ten years
increases have become a way of life. But why? Many times it's
predicated, I believe, on the word you used very judiciously, and

that is avarice.
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In my case I live in Sonoma County, not within any city
limits, and we have been attempting to get a rent review
ordinance through the county. We did succeed a year and a half
ago, but it had no teeth in it. It was a beautiful set-up but
with no teeth, no protection, for the residents, only for the
park owners. In other words, they could hear the complaint and
if they agreed with us, there was nothing that the ordinance
enabled the supervisors or the county to accomplish on our
behalf. So my problems are relatively minor, but I think they
are indicative of a trend of which, Senator, I am sure you are
aware as is Senator Presley. And I think that maybe one of the
greatest problems we face are park resales which result in great
capital gains for the park owners and tremendous increases in the
rent because now the new park owner has a new capital investment
and he wants to recoup his investment as promptly as possible.

Thank you for your time.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Thank you very much, Mr. Kern. Next is Gaye
Gaston from San Pablo.

GAYE GASKIN: First of all, my name is spelled Gaskin, and

I'm with the GSMOL Chapter in San Jose...
SENATOR CRAVEN: Other than that, we have everything right?
MS. GASKIN: Yes. 1It's all right. 1It's Chapter 275.
SENATOR CRAVEN: You have an "e" on Gaye though, haven't you?

MS. GASKIN: You'd better believe it!
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SENATOR CRAVEN: OK. All right.

MS. GASKIN: Well, I moved into a mobilehome park in 1984.

At that time a majority of the residents in the park were in
arbitration with the owners over a large rent increase. So I
moved in, and they have this thing called vacancy decontrol. My
rent immediately went from $274 to $374, and they said we were in
arbitration and once it was settled, you know, we could have a
chance to get in on the action too.

It was settled in February, 1985, and it came out pretty well
for the people who had been in arbitratrion. There was a vacancy
rent ordinance in San Jose at the time, it was 8%, and the sky
was the limit on vacancy decontrol. The lease these people got
together - the majority of the people in the park - was a 7% rent
increase and an 18% cap on vacancy decontrol. So I sat around
and I waited. I got a little note saying we could sign this and
that and it would be made available, so time went by and nothing
happened.

In June of 1985 I got a $95 rent increase so, naturally, I
filed for mediation. Well, in the meantime, mostly due tc what
had happened at our park, the council in San Jose saw the error
of their ways with the old rent ordinance and decided to rewrite
it and change it around somewhat. They rewrote it so there was a
5% limit on rent increases and zero vacancy decontrol. Two days
before I was - well, in August I got my new rent statement which

had added on the new rent, which brought it up to $469...
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SENATOR CRAVEN: $469°?

MS. GASKIN: $469. So we paid the 5%, my husband and myself,
and we waited around to go to mediation. Two days before our
first mediation, I got an offer to sign a lease, which would have
lowered my rent down to $435.90 with an 18% vacancy decontrol
which was written into the lease. Now that wasn't as good as I
could get under ordinance, so finally, after many delays by the
owners, we went to mediation in November, and they didn't show
up. So the mediator found in our favor. Well, naturally, they
appealed. After the mediator awarded us the decision, December
11, 1985, our January rent statement did not reflect anything.

It came in saying I owed $469 and that $381.50 was in arrears for
not having paid the other stuff. I know that is a misdemeanor
according to the City of San Jose. So we went merrily along and
went to arbitration, and after many delays because for some
reason the owners are out of the city, they are down south some
place. Finally, April 30th, the arbitrator said, "I'm making a
decision and will let you know in three or four weeks what my
decision is." 1In the meantime, many of the people who were in
arbitration with me had gotten another rent increase. By this
time it's $150....

SENATOR CRAVEN: Is that $150 a month?

MS. GASKIN: Yes. Next month I will get $150 a month rent

increase, and they keep saying, "Well, sign the lease." And I
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keep saying, "If you give me as good a deal on the rent ordinance
now as you gave the other people on the rent ordinance when they
signed it, you know, the 8%, and now it's 5%, I'll sign it, but
I'm not going to sign something and waive my rights, which is not
nearly as good as I could have under the rent ordinance." And I
anticipate that this will go on until 1989 when their lease runs
out or is renegotiated.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Now the 8% - is this per annum? In other
words, it may increase to that extent but no more than that, it's
capped at 8%. . .

MS. GASKIN: Ho, ho, ho. I think - well, just a second.
Isn't there (inaudible) above the 8% (asking someone in the
audience the question).

GENTLEMAN IN THE AUDIENCE: (Inaudible) .

MS. GASKIN: Come here, Jack, you can answer my questions on
those things.

JACK McKEE: What was your question, Senator?

SENATOR CRAVEN: I asked about the 8% increase. Is that per
annum?

MR. McKEE: No, the 8% is - under the old ordinance, the 8%
was just 8%. In other words, the owner could get an 8% increase
each year, and if he had any excessive expenses, then he could

add that additional cost in.
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SENATOR CRAVEN: Well, the expenses to which you refer would
be what we call "pass throughs."

MR. McKEE: That's right. For example, new loans and things
like that.

SENATOR CRAVEN: I see. So, in other words, this is the City
of San Jose?

MR. McKEE: Yes.

SENATOR CRAVEN: The city in effect caps the increases at
that figqure, 8%, that allows ownership to pass through costs
which may have accelerated?

MR. McKEE: That's right. Now, the current San Jose rent
ordinance only allows 5%, but they can also pass through these
expenses above that currently.

SENATOR CRAVEN: I see, so the rents may not be increased now
more than 5% except for costs which are considered to be pass
throughs

MR. McKEE: Capital improvements, rehabilitation, and...

MS. GASKIN: Arbitration.

MR. McCKEE: In her arbitration, they also asked for the cost
they spent while they were in mediation and arbitration with us.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Well, I would have to think that is probably
legitimate. It may sound somewhat untoward, but I would think

the cost of doing business - do we have this gentleman's name?
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MR. McKEE: I'm Jack McKee, 2151 Oakland Road, Sp. 32, San
Jose, CA 95131. Now, there's one question I would like to ask
also. The owners - I feel this is not really fair to the
mobilehome owners - when they have a capitalization, I can
understand when they have to repair something or if they get
permission from the residents to build a new building or
something to that effect or new sewage improvement, when they
amortize this over a certain number of years, say 5 years, to pay
for it. Then they lay this on us to pay for it. I understand
that. I have no arguments with that. What I have an argument
with is when it is paid for, why doesn't it go back to what it
was before? Do you understand what I'm saying? In other words,
what we do - say, it costs us ...

SENATOR CRAVEN: Oh, I see. Instead of aggragating to take
care of the amortization, once it is amortized to go back to the
base figure that preceded the capital improvements. Is that what
you're saying?

MR. McKEE: That's right. Because what happens is that we
are paying compound interest on this thing forever and ever.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Do you want to make any comment on that,
John?

MR. TENNYSON: (inaudible).

SENATOR CRAVEN: We may ask WMA on that point at a later

time, Jack.
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MS. GASKIN: (inaudible) - the majority of the people are out
of the lease. They are people who signed because they were
scared. They kept seeing this accruing on their rent, and it
scared a lot of people, particularly ones on fixed incomes.

SENATOR CRAVEN: It would scare me.

MS. GASKIN: Yes. Young couples and everything, and they
kept sceing that building up, so they signed the lease. They
were coerced to sign the lease.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Well, it is a subtle kind of coercion, I
believe.

MS. GASKIN: Yes, and so in June my rent will be up to $619 a
month.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Have you ever thought of buying a mobilehome
park? (laughter).

MR. McKEE: We would be very pleased to buy this mobilehome
park.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Well, I think you reach a certain millenium
or point of no return or whatever you want to call it. I have a
park - Marie Malone will be very familiar with it - in our
district which is a very, very beautiful park, probably one of
the finest in the State of California. But the rent schedule
there is so exorbitant, and it's in your general range, that when
they started having this problem, about half of the people left

and went over to where Bob Presley is over in Riverside County.
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You know, everybody wants to live on the coastal shelf down where
we live, and that is where this park is located.

MR. McKEE: Right now, currently, this 18% decontrol is
almost killing us. 1It's very, very difficult to sell a home.

You can see with her rent if they are allowed to collect her rent
at $619 and she sells her home, you add 18% on to that and it's
just out of the question.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Yes, I understand.

MS. GASKIN: Who will be able to get financing for one thing
to move into a park, because they are young couples and older
pecple, and if you can qualify to buy into our park, then you can
buy a house.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Yes. Very good. Well, we thank you both
very much. I would like to take this opportunity to introduce
another one of our colleagues, Senator Paul Carpenter from the
County of Orange, who is a member of this committee and who also
has within his district a lot of mobilehomes. Paul, thank you
for being with us. Next we have Christine Everitt from Portola.

CHRISTINE EVERITT: Good morning, Senator Craven, and members

of the committee. I'm here this morning to - actually, I'm
wearing two hats today - I represent the education and training
chairman of GSMOL, and I'm representing myself as a mobilehome

owner.
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I would like to speak, first of all, to what has happened to
my husband and me living in a mobilehome in regard to rent,
leases and increases. We lived in a mobilehome park. We no
longer live there, but we lived in a mobilehome park that was
sold in 1982. The person, the individuals who bought the
mobilehome park had no idea of what a mobilehome park was like,
had never been inside a mobilehome park, and didn't know what was
involved. Our park at that time was 25 years old and along with
it went - you've heard all the horror stories and you've heard
the whole litany of things that go wrong with the roads, the
lighting, all of those were present in this park. These people
had no experience with septic systems; they didn't know what they
were about. Nevertheless, our rents went from $99 a month at
that time in 1982 to $135. Now, our leases were one year leases
and they had not been looked at or changed or updated or revised
for ten years at least prior to that time. So it seemed that it
was proper that perhaps we should look at the lease, make some
revisions and make them more adaptable or meet whatever the
situation was at that particular time.

The new owners did not know about leases. The park also -
and I do have to give, shall we say "The Devil," and I say the
devil advisedly, WMA their dues. Our park did not happen to be a
WMA park and so the owners were not privilegea to the things that

WMA might have been able to provide for them or tell them about.
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But we had a very interesting Christmas present. On December
25th of 1982 a letter was posted on the bulletin board at the
park which was addressed to the then managers of the park, and it
read - I will only read one paragraph: "It is my understanding
that because of the language of the lease, there is a possibility
that some tenants come January 1, 1983, will not sign a lease at
lease rental terms. If this should occur, then that tenant shall
be on monthly rental terms at $160 per month."

They had raised the rent to $135. If we did not sign the
leases, we would be paying $160 a month.

"You have my permission to make this discussion known to
those tenants who are balking in signing the new lease for 1983."

My husband and I chose not to sign that lease. We chose on
our own to see our attorney and see what could be done about
this. Our park was not organized to where we had an in-park
committee or a homeowners' association at that particular time.
We hired an attorney and had him write a letter. He looked at
things as we presented them, and looked at the lease and there
were several areas in which the people were not in compliance
with the Civil Code, first of all. The attorney wrote these
owners a letter with a copy to the managers asking them to make
changes and asking them if they made changes, brought the lease
up to meet Civil Code requirements, that they should give the

residents the opportunity to sign these leases until the first of
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February. They still did not change the leases, did not change
the wording of the leases, and as a result, we wound up - because
we were pushing this - we wound up, not as Mr. and Mrs. Everitt,
but we wound up as activists and militants. Be that as it may,
we stayed in the park for awhile longer. We did not have to pay
the $160; we were allowed to pay $135, like everybody else who
was going to sign the lease. Most of the people, or many of the
people, did not sign the leases. They did form a committee and
petitioned to have the owners sit down and look at these, revise
them and make them more applicable. I have these things
documented for you for future reference.

At this point in time I would like to speak in behalf of the
residents of mobilehome parks. In my role in education and
training, and I certainly am very happy to hear about the
educational programs that WMA is having. I would like to at some
point in time to be able to attend their training sessions, their
education sessions. I do feel that it is necessary that we do
this, not only that WMA do this but that we do this and are a
part of what they are trying to do with the owners, and in that
way help the residents of mobilehome parks. But in my travels I
have been in many parks in Southern California and some in
Northern California. We're sort of half and halfers. In the
wintertime we're in the south and in the summertime we're in the

north fishing.
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I have to say that, not only in talking to the people in the
parks, not only are we concerned about the senior citizens and
the elderly, but mobilehomes are affordable housing for the
yvoung. We have family parks, we have adult parks, and they all
have economic constraints and with escalating rents and the types
of things that are happening, they all have concerns. We have
various kinds of managers in these parks, some trained, some WMA
trained, and many who are untrained and who know less about
mobilehomes than some of us who moved into them not knowing very
much about them. We have many kinds of owners of mobilehome
parks, absentee owners, corporations, individuals who may own
several parks, and you know how that goes.

Now, on behalf of the residents, I find a great deal of
confusion and fear. Many places have rent control, rent
stabilization, whatever, some type or form of trying to help the
residents with escalating rent problems. The fears stem and the
confusion stems from not knowing which way they really should go.
They don't want to come out from under rent control. That's a
fearful situation. You've heard all morning long testimony to
that effect. They also don't understand the leases and the lease
situation. They don't understand the language of the leases, so
I would submit that some of the things that we must address in
behalf of both the residents and the owners, the length of the

leases, the long-term leases, and by that I mean the rhetorical
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length, not the numbers of years of the long-term leases. But
what are the leases really saying to the people, the language of
the leases? When they go into an office - we'll play this little
scenario - you're going to go in and pay your rent and the
manager says to you, "Here are ten pages of your new lease.
Please sign it before you leave the office. That's something
that if you have any brains, you would not do it. You have to be
able to read it and understand it and agree with it because that
is a contract for you. Now the residents are very concerned
about that. They are concerned about pass throughs. They don't
thoroughly understand all of the pass throughs that come to them,
and I have had people say to me, "They pass through everything
but the kitchen sink and they might do that." That's perhaps
humorous, but maybe not. That's how the people feel. They talk
about their concern about built-in rent increases, and we've
heard something about that today. We also have seen it written

in The Californian where a gentleman said that he had a 20-year

lease with 6% annual increases and another 10% annual increase at
the end of each 5-year period, and this would bring his monthly
rent to $1,169 over this period of 20 years, which is something
that he couldn't afford. And I think we've heard testimony to
that effect this morning.

We know that some of the leases are not in compliance with

the Civil Code. I know that personally, and when I have listened



-69-

to the people in the parks, and they bring these problems, that's
one of the things that we find. They are very concerned, and it
was brought up this morning with assumability or transferability.
Now that can be both good or bad, and it's an issue that needs to
be addressed in a body, like we have here, to help us out there
do the right things. We need to have some period of time, one of
the things that people complain about is the fact that they are
asked to sign a lease while they are sitting there paying their
monthly rent. They need to have time to study it individually or
study it at a resident meeting with the help of their committee.
They need some access to the owner for discussion or review. Now
whatever form that may take - I'm not going to sit up here and
try to talk about things like that - but they do need access to
the owners.

Then the last thing that they say to me is that they really
don't know what recourse they have if they can't live with it.
It may be an attorney; it may be litigation; it means a lot of
expenses and we know that it costs money to move mobiles. We
know that attorneys cost money. But what is their recourse if
they can't live with it, and what happens to them if they sign or
if they don't sign? We know there are only certain grounds for
eviction and not signing a lease is not one of them, but also
coercion is not or harassment is not one of the things that they

can afford to have happen to them.
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So with all of that my message from the field is we must
address some of these issues that I have presented in a way which
will be palatable, fair, eqguitable to both homeowners and park
owners, and that's what I would like to see. I would like to
sometime to be able to work with some of the people from WMA and
see what we can do in the area of education to help our residents
out in the mobilehome parks. Thank you very much.

SENATOR CRAVEN: You're entirely welcome. It appears that we
have about ten more people to testify, and I think you have heard
what is not only a common denominator in the testimony on the
part of the tenants, but it has a certain redundant aspect to it,
not to in any way denigrate what you have said, but just to make
the point that we are hearing somewhat the same thing from each
witness, so those of you who follow now as witnesses hopefully
you will try to - if it's to say the same thing, do it briefly,
or if it's a new item, fine. ©Next Willard Hicks from Rialto.

WILLARD HICKS: Senator Craven and members of the committee,

my name is Willard Hicks. I am a mobilehome owner and reside in
the Rialto Villa Mobilehome Park located at 250 North Linden,
Space 202, in Rialto. I am sort of a novice at this mobilehome
living. I've lived in a park for some 7 years. I agree with
you. I've listened to a lot of testimony this morning, and much
of the area that I have covered in my prepared report are things
that have already been said. 1I'd just like to make a couple of

observations.
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SENATOR CRAVEN: Please do.

MR. HICKS: One of the things that strikes me as being - what
the WMA is attempting to do, in my opinion, is where there are
rent control laws existing, they are now coming in with leases
trying to really dilute the forces as we see it. People they can
get to sign the leases, of course, will in their minds dilute the
effort for those who have been so active in seeking rent control
laws.

In the City of Rialto where I reside we do have a rent review
ordinance, and it has been very effective. We are experiencing
the same thing. We are experiencing coercion and intimidation,
and particularly the older citizens. And I think they are the
ones we must be so very, very concerned about. Some of them, of
course, have great difficulty even writing a check on the first
of the month for the rent, let alone go into a 10 or 15 page
lease that they know absolutely nothing about.

We don't negotiate these leases with the owners necessarily.
We negotiate with management, and seldom do we see the owners.
Perhaps the owners are immensely concerned about the welfare of
the people in a park. It is certainly not exhibited by the folks
that we deal with, the managers or management companies if you
will.

So one other thing I want to say is that in all of these

leases there is one thing that hasn't been discussed, and that's
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the fact that we know that at some point during the term of that
lease disputes are going to arise about the language contained
therein. Who is going to make the decision? The person who
wrote that lease or gave you that lease is going to draw a
conclusion as to what that language means. They are going to
interpret the language and the ordinance, and if we as residents
disagree with it, we have no alternative but to seek legal help.
And there are few who can do that, who have the wherewithall or
the necessary funds to do it.

But to sum up very briefly what my experience has been and
what those I have worked with towards rent control, the gentleman
who owns the 7 parks put it very succinctly. "Those who do not
sign the lease we consider it to be an open season on them."

Thank you very kindly.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Thank you very much, Mr. Hicks. Next is
Arlene Barnhart. I have no address for you, Arlene, so when you
get up here, if you would be so kind, please tell us from whence
you have come.

ARLENE BARNHART: My name is Arlene Barnhart. I'm an

Associate Director of GSMOL, but I live at 15432 Tulsa Street,
Mission Hills in the San Fernardo Valley. I basically work with
the parks that are in the City of Los Angeles. There are about
50 of them within the San Fernando Valley confines. However,

about three months ago I received a telephone call from a person
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in a park called Indian Hills Mobilehome Village in Chatsworth.
It happens to be in the unincorporated area of Los Angeles
County. She informed me that they had heard the City of Los
Angeles was going to be annexing that little small section up in
the corner below the Simi Freeway and bounded on the west by
Ventura County into the city, that there were going to be some
hearings before a Planning Commission. I proceeded to attend
those two meetings with the people from this park, and the
Planning Commission of the City of L.A. has accepted an OK for
the annexation of this particular area. The basic residency in
it is this park. There is very little other residency. There is
a school, a church being proposed, and that type of thing but
very little residency other than this park.

After dealing with them on this annexation we have yet to
find out exactly when this will be done by the Los Angeles City
Council, and I'm hoping to work with them to get a proper base.
We do have a good rent control ordinance in L.A. City, and I
would like to see these people come in under it, but the owner of
this park last year presented them with a lease and again this
year, even to those who have already signed a 5-year lease last
year. He has turned around and sent them another one, so the
contract they signed last year is not even in effect and many of
them did not sign and many of them signed it.under duress. I am

just concerned that this is trying to spoil the efforts of these
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people and the rights of these people to come in under L.A. City
rent ordinance and have an amenable rent increase. We have a 3%
floor, an 8% top.

I also serve on a mobilehome task force for L.A. City, and we
are trying to get some new parks built, trying to find some
spaces for those who are being evicted under conversion, so we
are trying to deal with some issues in the city, and I would like
to see this park be able to come in on a proper base. Their rent
is very high. I live in a newer park, brand new in 1978, and
I've lived there since the beginning. I pay just under $260 a
month. I have no charges for pets. I have no excess charges for
anything. We have a very nice park, and I wish other people
could have it as good, but these people already are paying
anywhere from $290 to $390 and more a month for a 10-foot wide,
40 or 50-foot length, an older park, and many of them are senior
citizens. Therefore, I am here in support of them. There is
one other resident here who will be speaking more directly about
their lease in a few minutes, but I just came in support of them
and I would like to see a way that this park could come into the
city on annexation under the city rent control and not be forced
to sign a lease that would negate the rent control to them.

Thank you.
SENATOR CRAVEN: Thank you very much, Ms..Barnhart. Next is

Lyn Morrow, Region 5 of GSMOL.
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LYN MORROW: My name is Lyn Morrow, and my address is 1925-87

East LaVeta, Orange, CA 92666. We face the some kind of problems
down in the City of Orange where we have the management company
which represents the park owners of two parks. You've heard most
of the testimony, and mine would probably be no different except
that I got a lease from one of the parks, Park Royale, which I
thought was exceptionally creative because the percentage rate
that was charged was not based on the base rent, but was based on
what they considered to be a comparable rent. In their lease it
says this space rent is $342, but the comparable rent for your
space is $422, so when they institute the percentage increase,
they increase it by the comparable instead of the actual rate. I
thought that was particularly creative.

Also, something else that we never seem to address, and I
don't have any reason why not. We never talk about gross
receipts in our parks. I live in a small park. It's 86 paid
spaces, and as a conservative estimate, I figured that our park
would take in probably $352,000 for this year just in gross
receipts. The owner of the land, according to the lease
agreement that I have, that was signed with the lessor, gets 20%
of that. I went to the city and checked on the taxes, and his
taxes will be less than $20,000 a year. It seems that leaves him
$265,000 for the end of the year to just pay expenses whatever
they may be or profits if they are. As such, the percentage

increases just keep adding on to that.
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I was able to sit down, after having 64 out of 69 leases in
my park signed, and renegotiate and get some benefits back for
our people. I was able to lower the percentage from 6% down to
5%, and I also was able to eliminate the 15% increase at the end
of the 5th and 10th years. Many people in my park were unaware
of the fact that at the time when they signed the lease, it was
indeed a 15-year lease because of the way it was written into the
lease and hidden down in about paragraph 5. They were surprised
when we started discussing the 15% provision.

Also, we were concerned about the condition of the space in
there because our park is on a landfill and has suffered some
subsidence, and I was able to get an amendment into that so if
there was a subsidence problem, you could at least make it known
in the lease to the park manager.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Mr. Morrow, you obviously have been very
successful in taking care of some of the items that arise, but in
your experience has any park organization, loose as they may be,
upon the proffering of a lease agreement, have they retained
attorneys to interpret the lease forms, so everybody chips in and
pays for the cost of the attorney, which shouldn't really be that
much, to examine a lease, and then can advisé them in a general
sense? Do you find that that happens in parks at all?

MR. MORROW: Yes, we did that in our park, and we were

advised that there really wasn't much we could do. Our attorney
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did mention the fact that he thought there was some problem with
the legality of the $10 discount for a long-term lease over a
one-year lease, but he said the options we had were either the
one-year lease or the long-term lease or a month-to-month. And
at the back of the one-year lease, in the last paragraph in
capitalized letters it says that at the end of the term of this
lease you will be on a month-to-month tenancy and that we can
raise the rent to any amount we deem appropriate.

In my park we took a survey in 1984, and 75% of our people in
my park are on social security and for 72% of them this is all
that they have to live on.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Let me just ask you, those people who are on
social security, obviously those benefits don't increase and if
they do, it's hardly an appreciable increase, and if that's
totally what they are depending upon, in your judgment, what is
their future?

MR. MORROW: Well, the future for two of the people in my
park right now is that they are going to have to sell their
mobilehomes and find other places to live. This was one of the
things I brought out in negotiations with the management company
and the City of Orange. The fact was that social security for
last year was only 3.1%, and they were basing their increase on
the Consumer Price Index for the Los Angeles-Anaheim area which

was about 4.5% for last year. I even tried to get them to let my
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percentage float. I said let's make it 1% above the CPI and let
it float. 1If it goes up, I'll gamble. If it goes down, you
gamble. That wasn't acceptable to them, but we did get them to
lower the annual percentage increase from 6% down to 5%.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Had you prior to today heard of park
ownership underwriting certain of the tenants who may tend toward
indigency?

MR. MORROW: No, I've never heard of this. 1In the
negotiations our management company said that if there were
certain circumstances, they might be able to give some of our
tenants relief, but they didn't tell me how they were going to
administer that program.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Well, that sounds like it may be the same
thing that was discussed earlier.

MR. MORROW: Well, I didn't know how they were going to do it
either because how do you approach somebody in the park and ask
them if they want subsidized rents? Some of these older people,
you know, this is all they have to cling to.

SENATOR CRAVEN: I think it probably has to stem from the
other direction. I think I have to go to you as the owner and
say, "Look, Lyn, I just can't spend another nickel." Then have
to depend upon your good offices to try to help me. That it?

MR. MORROW: Yes, that's it. Thank you.



-79-

SENATOR CRAVEN: Thank you, Mr. Morrow. Next is Art Johnson,
who is from Sacramento.

ART JOHNSON: May I stand here?

SENATOR CRAVEN: If you feel better there, please do. We may
not vote for your bill, but...

MR. JOHNSON: Well, Senator Craven, I feel better standing
here because then I can get up and run quicker if the flak gets a
little too hot.

SENATOR CRAVEN: You are familiar with the environs of this
building, I know.

MR. JOHNSON: Yes, about 12 years worth. Senator Craven and
members of the Senate Select Committee on Mobilehomes. My name
is Arthur Johnson. My wife and I live in a mobilehome. We are
located in Southwind Mobile Estates here in Sacramento. I
represent a group of residents in Southwind, and we are very
thankful for this opportunity to present our views to your
committee.

I sit back and feel very sympathetic for you, Senator. I
think you have your problems already. I don't want to add too
much to them. Unfortunately, I have a lot of my dialogue that I
have to erase because you have already gone through it, and I
don't think you want to hear the story for the 4th time.

SENATOR CRAVEN: No, probably not.
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MR. JOHNSON: We do have cause for concern in Southwind
Mobilehome Park. John told me to be specific, so I'm being
specific. Preliminary to complaints, and we know what complaints
amount to sometimes, we have lived in this park now for six
years. We have enjoyed our stay there very much in Southwind.

We have the best possible neighbors. The living environment is
enjoyable and comfortable, and people visiting us say that it is
a very nice park. We enjoy showing them the park. So that's the
nice thing about the park.

However, the proposed lease to the residents of Southwind has
posed several concerns to the residents of Southwind Park. It
has met with overwhelming contempt by the members of Southwind.

I don't know of a person or a person who knows of anybody who is
satisfied with the lease that has been proposed, but I'm not
going to go through the terms of the lease because you've already
discussed all of them. We have discussed those pretty well.

I suppose my remarks deal mostly with a personal relationship
between manager/owner and park resident which probably has not
been dealt with enough, which may be the solution to many
problems. It may be the solution to many problems. My letter
that I got from the manager of Southwind says in part about the
lease. 1In proﬁoting the lease, the statement was made there were
several advantages, elimination of potential expensive legal

mediation or arbitration, costs on both sides, and maybe mcst
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important of all the elimination of lengthy, unsettling fights
every yvear. To me this is a kind of a series of incredible
statements. Southwind advertises itself as a prestige, adult
community. Southwind that alleges it screens all applicants to
be people of good report. Southwind whose management demands
observance of many rules and regulations to make the park high
guality. Why should there be lengthy and unsettling fights? Why
should we, as honorable people, as residents be placed in a
position where only arbitration can be resorted to? Are we
considered to be such an unreasonable group of people that we
will not listen to reason? Many occupants of Southwind are or
have been persons of business acumen, who have negotiated in the
commercial world and fully subscribe to a reasonable profit being
made. We also know that profit-making goes from reasonableness
to blatant greed. Let's go first to the Consumer Price Index.
I'm going to have to paraphrase that a little bit, but using the
San Francisco-0Oakland Price Index, I checked that out for a
5-year period pertaining to my specific payments. My prices on
my rental space went up 47.6%, the CPI for San Francisco-Oakland
went up 35%, and California-wide it went up 32%.

I'm far from convinced that the various items aggregated in
the cost index bears a reasonable relationship to those
identifiable in operating a mobilehome park. I would like to see

that there is a relationship that's used, and perhaps we can
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defend it, but I don't see a relationship. We're good enough to
write checks, make payments and contribute to the aggregate
wealth of LEASCO, but we're not good enough to talk to. We are
subjected to a myriad of rules and reqgulations about maintaining
our homes, but we're not good enough to be recognized with the
fact that it is our own investment and our own homes, maintaining
our homes in very high standards that keep their price and value
level so the owner can reap a handsome profit.

I hope you appreciate the situation from the following. 1In a
meeting with Keith Casenhiser, Harry Foulks, who is sitting right
back there with me, a Southwind resident took this note from a
statement by Mr. Casenhiser, who is a party to LEASCO management,
stating approximately this: "Under present law without being in
a locality without rent control we are legally entitled to charge
all the traffic will bear and that is what we intend to do."

That is the attitude of the ownership at Southwind toward the
residents of the park - charge all the traffic will bear. 1Is it
any wonder then that there are now 35 homes in Southwind up for
sale? This is by actual count on May 3rd. It is clear that the
owner has the strong upper hand in bargaining. We can't take it
or leave it. 1It's an euphemism to say "take it or leave it." We
cannot. You heard testimony here today that we can't take it or
leave it, and somehow or other they tell you that it is a free

market, and it isn't. The bargaining is not in the marketplace
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where reasonable men can differ and compromise to arrive at a
mutually agreeable solution. Our hands are tied behind us.
Ransom payments are going to be higher and higher. Sooner or
later every mobilehome home will be sold. Will the charges be
all the traffic can bear? I suspect the "For Sale" signs are
going to stay up for a long time.

The ancients, and for countless centuries, used the number of
cattle to index a person's wealth. Today it is mobilehome park
spaces. Cattle had no voice in management. Neither do we.

Will the WMA attempt any corrective action, or by inaction
silently applaud what is taking place?

Even so, this lease proposal has accomplished one thing in
Southwind - we have jcined in a common cause, and to use an
expression of profound meaning, created a "community of
adversity." It was so with the Israelites when Pharoah increased
their burden to a point where after a series of events, they were
let out of Egypt - only to be followed by greedy Pharoah, who
subsequently drowned in the Red Sea. Perhaps there is some
wishful thinking there.

Thank you very much, Senator. (applause) Thank you for
taking the time to listen to us this morning. We think we have a
right to be considered as human beings. I think there is a
personal relationship that needs to be concerned and considered

and perhaps these problems would vanish.
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SENATOR CRAVEN: Thank you very much, Mr. Johnson.
Unfortunately in all of this activity we deal with perhaps the
most fragile, as well as precious, commodity that is with us, and
that is the human personality and there are no two that are the
same. Some people are very benign in their attitudes, very
accommodating and really, in a way I suppose, very loving.

Others are not. They are very, very hard, cold and steely in
their approach and attitudes, but trying to legislate those
personalities is an impossibility, as you well know. So you have
to try to approach the problem by virtue of legislative effort
and that is not necessarily easy or a panacea as the case may be,
and that has to be drawn very, very delicately in order to give
equal say and balance to both sides of the issue. That requires,
well, it requires testimony on the part of people like yourselves
today from both sides of the aisle. That's why we have these
hearings - to try to develop perhaps a thread or a common
denominator that we can utilize that will serve the best
interests of the greatest number. Next is Pat Lowery. Good
morning.

PAT LOWERY: Good afternoon, Senator. . .

SENATOR CRAVEN: Oh, I'm sorry. It is afternoon.
MS. LOWERY: and members of the committee. I am Pat Lowery.
My address is 11401 North Topanga Canyon, Chatsworth, CA 91311.

I'm a resident of Indian Hills Mobilehome Park. Mrs. Arlene
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Barnhart spoke before about the park that is going to be annexed
by the city - this is the park.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Oh, you're in that park?

MS. LOWERY: Yes, sir. I will begin with the first long-term
lease that we were offered in 1985. The homeowners were offered
the lease at that time and the terms at 6% going up to 12% was
the maximum that could be charged. It was mostly offered to the
people who - the people were just then coming off county rent
control - they were the first members of the park that were hit
with this lease. The ones who did not sign were sent letters
telling them that if they did not sign the lease, that their rent
would be raised immediately up to the present, what they
considered the present market value of the park. I have letters
stating that rent was actually increased on these people 46% or
$120, and they could do nothing about it. They élso were offered
no other lease but the long-term lease. This lease actually is a
25-year lease. Each five years it can be renewed at the option
of the park only. They have no say whatsoever whether they want
to sign it. . .

SENATOR CRAVEN: The renewal is vested only in the ownership?

MS. LOWERY: Yes. They were also asked at that time - or
told at that time - to sign a statement saying they were offered
their choice of leases when in fact none existed. I was also

offered one of these long-term leases in 1985, and I refused to
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sign it. On April 24th of this year I was offered another 5-year
lease, which is actually a 30-year now, at 4% per year. But at
the end of each 5-year period it will go up 15%. Four days later
on April 28th a letter was sent to me and a lot of the other
residents in the park telling me that now I would get a higher
increase in rent as of the same date of July 1lst. I was told,
first of all, on July 1lst in the lease my rent would be $395 a
month. Four days later when I got the letter, it said on July
lst my rent would be increased to $417 a month, with no
explanation as to why. I did write a letter to the owner asking
if this was a computer error because the second was a
computerized letter. I have received no written reply. I asked
for a written statement to be attached to the lease as to what my
rent was going to be. I have received no written statement as to
what my rent was going to be. The manager did stop me and
attempt to explain, and I told her that I would prefer to have it
written as I prefer to have everything written. She said the
owner probably would not write anything for me.

Some of the homeowners in the park who did sign the 25-year
lease last year have now been asked to sign the new lease this
year. There is a clause in our lease that says we, the
homeowners, cannot change any terms in the lease, but the lease
can be changed at the owner's discretion any time, which is what
he has chosen to do. So we don't even have any protection in our

park.
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SENATOR CRAVEN: I'm just wondering, based on what you said,
what good is a lease. . .

MS. LOWERY: That's right. . .

SENATOR CRAVEN: . . .if it can be changed? 1In other words,
presumably, the lease should offer to you certain protections
which you may rely upon, but there is no reliance if they in fact
have the option and the prerogative of making changes.

MS. LOWERY: If you would like to read this, sir. . .

SENATOR CRAVEN: No, that's. . .

MS. LOWERY: I mean within one year's time he changes the
entire lease again and adds more clauses to it, of more things
that we are going to have to pay for, and takes away more of our
rights.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Yes.

MS. LOWERY: One of the things that he takes away now is that
if we do not sign this long-term lease, we are not permitted to
vote on the capital improvements in the park. We will still have
to pay for them, but we can't vote on them.

There is something else in our lease. We are an older park
and I know that we are going to be getting new sewers in the
park. The owner of our park has let the roads go. There are
large cracks in the roads. This new lease that is being sent
around now he wants us to pay for the roads. Now that's not

supposed to be. We are not supposed to pay for roads. He is
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supposed to maintain the roads. He knows they are going to be
dug up with the sewers, so now he just put it in the lease that
we are going to have to pay for that also.

I also have statements and letters from some of the other
residents in the park. This owner has sent rent increase notices
with only 20 days notice to people. He also sent one person in
the park a rent increase notice as of July 1st, and he has a
letter from last year that says he will not be increased until
October, 1986. Our owner's word is nothing. Even if we have it
in writing, he goes right back on it, and I have statement after
statement. I have letters from tenants saying that if they do
not sign this lease, their rent is going to go up 19.9%. That's
the highest I've gotten so far from people in the park, and they
are still coming in. We have panic in the park, people are just
terribly afraid, and it is just a horrible situation. I don't
like living in a place where there is such fear and seeing such
terror on people's faces when I walk around and look at my
neighbors. 1It's awful. 1It's a sad place to be.

I think that's about the end of it. I just hope, sir, that
you and your committee will be able to help, not only our park,
but all of us to have a better way of life. This is what we all
want. We understand that the owners have a right to make money,
but we have a right to live and keep our homes, and the way it is
going, none of us will have a home pretty soon. Thank you for

your time, sir.
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SENATOR CRAVEN: Thank you, Ms. Lowery. Mrs. Del Carmichael
or Mr. Gene Stone. This is obviously Mrs. Carmichael.

DEL CARMICHAEL: I'm going to make this very short because if

you are as hungry as I am, I think it's time we. . .

SENATOR CRAVEN: Well, I'll tell you. I just went out and
took a bite of a doughnut.

MRS. CARMICHAEL: Oh, that's where you went. Senator Craven
and all the members of the Senate Select Committee, my name is
Del Carmichael. My husband and I reside in Rancho Paso
Mobilehome Park, Theater Drive, Paso Robles, California, County
of San Luis Obispo.

I have been given permission to read a letter written by one
of our members and a few notes from myself added to it, which
addresses many of the reasons that we cannot sign the lease
offered to us in our park. I will present this letter to you
after the meeting, and in which you will read about Measure A.
This is referring to an existing ordinance in the unincorporated
area of San Luis Obispo County, voted on in June of 1984 by all
of the members in the county. And before I go on I would like to
give you this ordinance to read if you like.

Also I am President of GSMOL Chapter 1551 at Rancho Paso, and
I have been appointed Associate Director for Region 8. I taped
this on the machine so it takes me approximately 6-1/2 minutes to

read this.
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SENATOR CRAVEN: Go.

MRS. CARMICHAEL: While mobilehome parks have been in
existence for many years, the entire concept is still in its
infancy. It is clear that the profiteer has been awakened to the
enormous financial potential at his fingertips. How?

Buy a fully developed mobilehome park; proffer a long-term
lease with dominant park-owner benefits prevailing; intimidate
the vulnerable mobilehome owners who, in the majority, are
retired and on a fixed income; intimidate, stretch and test
current laws; feel secure in the percentages - how many
mobilehome owners will undertake the financial burden of a
lawsuit, or relocate their mobilehome? The long-term lease is
the perfect tool.

The long-term lease is worth its weight in gold to a park
owner. New park owners thus circumvent, in our case, Measure A;
assure a captive income as there is no such thing as a vacancy
factor in a fully developed park; the park, with its nice
long-term signed leases, can now be turned over within a
relatively short period of time at a substantial profit.

All of this can be accomplished before the wheels of justice
stir into action, leaving the mobilehome owner to wonder how much
of a rent increase the new owner, the next owner, will demand.

The phenomenal growth of mobilehome parks has matured without

benefit of sufficient laws pertinent to its unique situation. We
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cannot and must not be considered in the same category as that of
an apartment or home renter. We have a substantial investment in
our homes which, contrary to the term "mobile," are not mobile
any more. Oh, yes, it can be relocated, but at a great expense
and with resulting problems making it impractical.

It is a shame that the mobilehome owner is still desperately
in need of government assistance. Rent control may have its
inadequacies, but it's the only protection left to us.

Now we're being presented with the long-term lease strategy.
We firmly believe that tactics being used and the unrealistic
leases being presented by the current wave of mobilehome park
realty speculators will ultimately cause the complete
deterioration of the mobilehome parks for the senior citizen who
has come to love this unique and affordable type of residence.

We believe and agree that a park owner should realize a
profit on his investment, but it should be a reasonable profit.
Don't take advantage because of the difficulty in moving our
homes.

I would like to pass on just a few of the items from a very
complex lease offered by our new park owner:

A 5-year lease with five 5-year automatic extensions added to
the base period. The extensions renegotiable by park owner only.
In other words, a 30-year lease. Later modified, a l0-year lease
with four 5-year automatic extensions added to base period unless

either party gives 3-month notice.
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Base rent:

1. Annual adjustment by 90% of the Consumer Price Index for
the 5-year lease; 100% of the CPI for the 10-year lease.

2. Owner intends to install water meters, and has installed
water meters, and homeowner shall be billed for the usage.

3. Prorata share of all common area water and gas used in
the park.

4. Prorata share of the increase in the actual expenditures
made in any calendar year for the following:

a. Repairs and maintenance, labor, sewer system (we now have

our own plant), water system, grounds and equipment.

b. Supplies, janitorial, pool and spa.

c. Taxes (property).

d. Insurance.

e. Trash.

Homeowner's prorata share of any capital improvements - the
"cost" of capital improvements consist of actual cost of capital
improvement plus interest relating to borrowing the amount of
such cost. 1It's an open-ended lease. Turn over your checkbook!

This is not even the tip of the iceberg. I have sent you
copies of our lease and of our rules and regulations. Please
read No. 7 of the lease and 5(a) of the rules, and you will see
the unfairness the owner has put on those of us who wish to sell

our mobiles. The space rent goes up almost monthly. Could you



-93-~-

call that fair or reasonable? That's for those of us who want to
sell.

In concluding, Senator Craven and members of the committee,
the only way to get a comprehensive view of the mobilehome
owners' fears and problems would be to hold a hearing, hopefully,
in each county, and I'd be happy to assist you in setting up
those hearings. Thank you for the opportunity to address you
today and for the consideration we hope will be given to your
studies on long-term leases, and that your final conclusion will
be long-term leases must be fair and reasonable for the
mobilehome owner. Thank you very much. (applause).

SENATOR CRAVEN: Thank you, Mrs. Carmichael. I think you
actually did it in less than 6-1/2. Next we have Adele Babcock.
Good morning.

ADELE BABCOCK: Good afternoon, Senator.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Oh, I keep saying good morning, I'm sorry.

MS. BABCOCK: OK. This has been so interesting. I really
don't know what to say. I mean, I have heard problems - I
thought we had problems in our park. No way! Like our lease,
they didn't fill it in. They wanted us to sign it, and then they
would fill it in. I told them no.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Good for you.

MS. BABCOCK: But we have - oh, I didn't give my name and

address, did I?
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SENATOR CRAVEN: Do you want to do it now?

MS. BABCOCK: Yes. I live at 103 Klamath, Pittsburg, CA
94565, The Meadows Mobilehome Park. All I can say is this is it.
I never knew that people had so many problems.

SENATOR CRAVEN: You've never been to one of these hearings
before?

MS. BABCOCK: This is my first time. There really is nothing
I can say except that I have learned a lot.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Well, that's good.

MS. BABCOCK: We have 350 mobilehomes in our park, and the
only thing they are doing wrong there is they rent out the space
according to the lot, how deep the lot is. . .

SENATOR CRAVEN: According to the size of the lot?

MS. BABCOCK: That's right. So they have a single
mobilehome, then they have a double, and they are one right on
top of another.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Well, we have some legislation that affects
that issue too, as a matter of fact.

MS. BABCOCK: And that's how we're being charged for rent.

SENATOR CRAVEN: I see. Do you have long-term leases in your
park?

MS. BABCOCK: Oh, no.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Not at all?

MS. BABCOCK: No.
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SENATOR CRAVEN: Well, you're kind of the old school when it
comes to leases. You pay monthly rental?

MS. BABCOCK: Yes.

SENATOR CRAVEN: And how frequently do they raise your rent?

MS. BABCOCK: Every year. Now this year we had a $20 a month
raise. For me, that would be 9.6%, but I can't tell about
anybody else's because the lots are different.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Yes, they are a different base figure. I
understand. We appreciate the fact that you came down, Adele.

MS. BABCOCK: I enjoyed it.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Good, I'm happy that you did.

MS. BABCOCK: Thank you very much

SENATOR CRAVEN: You are very welcome. All right, now we
will ask Marie Malone, who is President of GSMOL, to make her
presentation. Oh, you've got a different list than I have.
Well, if that be the case, will you wait a minute, please?
John and I are operating from different lists. I have a Jim
Phillips. He just left. All right, I timed that very well,
didn't I? Margaret Yakes? Margaret, are you here? Very good.
Margaret, you were in the office earlier this morning. I've been
waiting for you, Margaret.

MARGARET YAKES: You have a good memory.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Well, it's hard to forget those blue

stockings you have on.
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MS. YAKES: I like them too.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Very attractive.

MS. YAKES: Good afternoon, Senator.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Good afternoon. 1I'll get it right this
time.

MS. YAKES: My name is Margaret Yakes, and I live at
4205 Bouquet Way, Space 33, Sacramento, CA 95834.

SENATOR CRAVEN: What part of Sacramento is that?

MS. YAKES: 1It's in the Natomas area. After I have heard all
these horror stories I think possibly I should sing or tell a
joke because people have much larger problems than we do. The
thing I would like to bring out is what our rents have been based
on. I have an unacceptable lease, long-term lease, here that is
17 pages and LEASCO's song and dance on why we should sign it.
I'm also Vice President of GSMOL Chapter 1024. The proposed
lease which we have refused to sign at Garden West Mobile Estates
base rental charges on the Consumer Price Index for the San
Francisco, Oakland, Alameda, Contra Costa, Marin and San Mateo
Counties. Sacramento County is approximately 80 miles north of
the San Francisco area in northern California and we are still
considered a major agricultural area, not a metropolitan area.

If any rent should be compared, it should be within the community
and the county, not an outside area. Comparable rent adjustment:

the lease stated that our rent should be $200 per month in the
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year 1985 as we were historically much too low. The $200 a month
would be a start as a catch-up by this, but this was not even
including any improvements, just a flat need for more money. If
a 5-year lease was signed, the rent would have been $9 a month
less than for the person who either signed a month-to-month
tenancy or one-year lease. This is absolutely contradictory to
Caifornia Civil Code Mobilehome Residency Law dated January 1,
1986, which states in paragraph 798.18(b), "No such agreement
shall contain any terms or conditions with respect to charges for
rent, utilities or incidental reasonable service charges that
would be different during the first 12 months of the agreement
from the corresponding terms or conditions that would be offered
to the mobilehome owner on a month-to-month basis."

The 5-year lease stated that any government services,
insurance and property tax would be prorated to each home upon a
60-day written notice. Capital improvements will be passed on to
each home. The lease will provide water as the well is
available, but should we want to change to city water, we will
pay for the installation and then monthly water charges.

A TV system now is available. Channels 3, 31, 6, 40, 10, 12
and 13. If a new system is installed, we pay for the
installation and then will pay monthly TV charges. All these
will be pass throughs to all tenants. We do not own the park,

but we're being forced to upgrade its facilities without any
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recourse or having any tax write-offs. The automatic renewal of
this 5-year lease would be automatically extended another 60
months except that all the rent increases that have taken place
in the first 5 years should be capped by 15% at the commencement
or the extension term. This could continue to a maximum of 25
years. Five years is not practical for seniors 65 or older, let
alone 25 years. And Mr. McAdoo is the rare park owner that
mobilehome owners dream of being able to negotiate one's rent
with.

And I would like to read a letter that was written by one of
our tenants. "Dear Honorable Sirs: In March, 1985 our park,
Garden West Mobile Estates, was purchased by an entrepreneur from
the Bay Area that owns several other parks. He first presented
us with a $41 rent raise with no improvements, just simply that
he needed the money. Also he offered the residents a long-term
lease, 17 pages to be exact, that was so complicated that one had
to hire their own lawyer to get the facts before signing. It was
written in terminology so difficult to comprehend that we were so
intimidated that even when LEASCO tap danced to us, we didn't
understand it. This lease was expressly to confuse the average
resident. The only person to benefit would be the owner and
because of the pass through clauses, he could do exactly what he
pleased concerning rent raises. As I remember, however, and I

might stand corrected, the rents would be judged by CPI
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adjustments to the rents in the Bay Area. They could better
spend their time and their money having meetings regarding rent
gouging of people on fixed incomes. Yes, Virginia, there is not
a nice word for rent gouging. It's still the same old story -
the little people are the scapegoat. Rent control would be
defunct for those who are intimidated into signing a long-term
lease. 1In less than three years my space rent has gone from $143
to $196.25, and this does not include utilities, garbage, sewage,
and yet to come, $6.01 for the owner's insurance. We are in a
Catch-22 position. The rent is too high, and it is not feasible
to pay $5,000 to move and then where do we even go? We want rent
control, not rent gouging, by entrepreneurs from the Bay Area.
Respectully, a resident of Garden West Mobile Estates.”

Thank you for hearing me, sir.

SENATOR CRAVEN: You're entirely welcome. Thank you very
much. Now, Marie, having heard all this testimony, I will, of
course, be expecting you to solve the whole problem.

MARIE MALONE: Thank you. I apologize, Senator, for being

late this morning. As you know, I was at another meeting. . .
SENATOR CRAVEN: Don't be.
MS. MALONE: . . . but I was very, very pleasantly surprised
to hear my name announced by Mr. Brent Swanson as I walked in the
back door. I don't know whether I should be pleased or not,

because I don't know what he said before.
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SENATOR CRAVEN: We were planning ruffles and flourishes for
you.

MS. MALONE: Unfortunately, but I hope fortunately, you now
have the story from all sections of California as to what is
happening to that wonderful term "lease." As you know, I am a
very strong proponent of long-term leases, and as you also know,
I live under a beautiful one of 18 years' length. I am also a
strong proponent of purchasing the park, and have spent over four
years in trying to work with the park owners and their
association so that we could bring stability and equality into
the community of the mobilehome parks.

I think if we just take a minute, let's look at why this is
happening. And I would like to offer to the committee this
document that you may wish to look at as one of the bases of why
we are facing what we are facing today. We used to be known as
an opportunity investment. Mobilehome parks have always been
that, and they have always been kind to the park owner and up
until the last few years a reasonably kind and a wonderful place
to live for residents.

But something has happened. We are no longer an opportunity
investment. We're a speculator's investment, and the book I want
to give to you today is just the basis of that, not coming from
GSMOL, but coming from the words of the people who are selling

the investment. This one happens to be put out by E. F. Hutton,
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and it is the name of the DeAnza Corporation real estate program,
and no one needs even my bifocals to be able to read it. It very
clearly states in here to the investors who are going to invest
their money in mobilehome parks that they will triple your
investment in seven years.

Now, an investor who invests expects that money to triple in
seven years. Where is that money going to come from? It has
only one source, and that is the residents in mobilehome parks.
The current owners who are sitting out there, and many of them
have been in this business a long time, and they were not
tripling their money in seven years, began to look around not
just at the DeAnza Corporation - I could run down the list, there
are many more who are doing the same thing. And they say, "Hey,
what's the matter with me? I'm crazy. I'm sitting here making a
lower percentage return on my money, and all these wise guys are
coming in here and tripling their profits. I must get mine up to
that market value." And so throughout all the parks.

And rent control has sprung up all over California. If you
doubt my word, the WMA just took a survey on it, and they tell me
that it's in almost the majority of areas of California today.

As this progresses, rent control is going to multiply because the
one thing the mobilehome people will do is survive. What is the
solution to this? I can't wholly blame the park owner, who has

been in the business a long time sitting there and saying, "No,
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I'm going to be noble. I'm not going to take a higher profit to
get the market value." I don't know the legislation that could
stop this from happening. I really don't. I do not have the
answer.

Because you see, as you know, I have worked six years to get
the people to buy their parks to bring a solution to this
problem, and I have lived in fear of the day when something might
damage that program, that would stop it and halt it. The same
companies that are buying parks from the park owners are now
competitively out there in the market against us, those residents
who are trying to buy. The most recent example that we lost was
around $2 million that they have gone above the normal price of a
park. And the residents of the park are trying to meet that
additional $2 million, but will that company or corporation
rather again add another $1 million to it? It is a point of no
return, and it's a double edged sword because the residents must
come up with that money somehow because if they don't, not only
are they going to pay that additional $2 million, they will pay a
profit on top of it to the corporation that takes it. It seems
like it's almost a dead end canyon, and the only thing, the only
solution that I can see at the moment is an interim solution of
an all-out effort for local rent control to hold this thing until
the Legislature, somehow in your wisdom, can come up with scome
type of legislation that will place sanity back in the mobilehome

park business. Thank you. (applause).
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SENATOR CRAVEN: Fine. Thank you very much, Marie. Well,
ladies and gentlemen, I think we have now gone through our
witnesses. Let's see how many we had.

(Voice from Audience): You haven't had me yet.

SENATOR CRAVEN: We've had 22. Are you going to speak?

(Voice from Audience): Yes. Just a few minutes. My name
wasn't on the 1list.

KATHY DOMINICK: I'm Kathy Dominick from Galt. Philadelphia,

remember?
SENATOR CRAVEN: Oh, of course. How could I forget?

MS. DOMINICK: My telephone number is - or rather my address.

SENATOR CRAVEN: We don't plan to call you.

MS. DOMINICK: OK. Don't call me, I'll call you.
604 Pringle, #38, Galt, CA 95632, and that's Three Palms
Mobilehome Park. We have two other parks: Galt Mobile Estates,
I guess I represent myself and a few others that are too lazy to
come up here and speak. But we just got notice of a $20
increase. I fought for a long time to get rid of, I did away
with my garbage service because I had to put food on their table.
I only get $398 plus a little more, about $500, and I couldn't
live on it so I did away with the garbage because I didn't have
enough to put in there every week, but they éharge you whether

you do or not, so I told them I was moving, planning to move, the
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garbage service. So one year I didn't pay. I just did it. Took
my own garbage somewhere else, a friend of mine.

All of a sudden the City Council found out there were people
in the city not paying their garbage service, and there happened
to be eight of us in the park, and I thought I was the only one.
So to make a long story short, they said we would have to pay it.
We went to Council meetings, and they put it on the owner, so
along comes March, April and May, and he gives us a notice that
it's going to be $20 rent raise. He put it as $7 for garbage,
CPI $10.50, and $2.50 for insurance. So I wondered what that
was, and so I called the office and asked the manager - not the
manager of the park, but the owner's office - and asked him what
the $2.50 insurance was, and they said it is liability insurance.
I said I have my own liability insurance on my home, and I'm not
about to pay yours. They said I would or I'd find out why. And
I didn't this month. When I paid my rent, I deducted the $2.50.
Sent them a note along with it. So whether I get an eviction
notice or not I won't know for a couple of days.

But anyway, something has to be done for little people like
me in that park. There's a new park opening up that wants a
3-year lease and $175 to $195 rent. Ours now will be $172 plus
gas and electric and the next thing will be water service. But
now I'm back to having to pay the garbage again, I suppose. But

you know how many times I've written you and how many times I've
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been talking, and I've had the For Sale sign in my window for
four years. I haven't had any luck selling. . .

SENATOR CRAVEN: But you're still glad you left Philadelphia,
aren't you?

MS. DOMINICK: Well, yes. In a way. I still have family
there.

SENATOR CRAVEN: We kid about this because I, too, am from
Philadelphia.

MS. DOMINICK: So I think that rent control of some kind is
the only answer. Now on May 27th we are having an all day
session on this rent business for the parks down there - in the
City Council.

SENATOR CRAVEN: To establish what, an ordinance?

MS. DOMINICK: An ordinance about the garbage and about the
rents.

SENATOR CRAVEN: I think you're dead in the water on the
garbage. I experienced the same thing when I first came to
Sacramento. I didn't eat at home. I live by myself so I really
didn't have any garbage to speak of, and I'll be very honest
about it and be very frank. What little garbage I had, I used to
take with me in a bag, and when I'd go to get gas, I'd put it in
the dumpster. All of a sudden they said, "You're a resident here

so you pay." And really the charge is rather high...
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MS. DOMINICK: Even the homeowners down there - see, we
weren't the only ones, even the homeowners were griping about it.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Well, now I create as much garbage as I can
so I get my money's worth.

MS. DOMINICK: But, anyway, I mean it's nothing to sneeze at.
When you only have $500 and you have to pay rent, gas and
electric, you can't even buy a new piece of furniture, you know.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Very understandable.

MS. DOMINICK: I'm 75, and now I have to go to work to make
some more money if I can get a job. And you know the Green Thumb
program. They're trying to get me a job, and I'm glad that Marie
is our President now. I think she's doing a good job.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Yes, she is.

MS. DOMINICK: You see, the thing down there, the people who
live in that park have never lived in mobilehomes before. I have
lived in them when they were trailer parks, when your rent was
only $50 or $100 for everything. They are afraid to speak up and
say anything, so I get myself in trouble getting them all to say
don't do this and don't do that.

SENATOR CRAVEN: I kind of get the impression today,
listening to a lot of the witnesses, that those people who would
have been the activists have really done pretty well. They have
helped forestall some increases and some actions, and I get that
impression so it can't be too bad. There comes a time when you

have to stand up for yourself and what you believe in.
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MS. DOMINICK: Well, you know us Philadelphians...

SENATOR CRAVEN: That's right. Yes.

MS. DOMINICK: So they call me their Fiery Leader.

SENATOR CRAVEN: That's right. Remember Ben Franklin, but he
never lived in a mobilehome park.

MS. DOMINICK: OK, Senator Craven. Do what you can.

SENATOR CRAVEN: I will do my best.

MS. DOMINICK: And I'll pass the word on down.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Very well. Thanks.

MS. DOMINICK: And they'll say, "Those legislators don't do
nothing; what's the use of going?" So I'll tell them there is a
use.

SENATOR CRAVEN: Well, we could use a kind word.

MS. DOMINICK: Thank you.

SENATOR CRAVEN: I'm very big in Galt. They don't vote for
me there, but...

MS. DOMINICK: How do you know they don't?

SENATOR CRAVEN: Well, if they do, they have a little bit of
a problem, I think. All right. Now is it safe to say we're
going to wrap this up? That being the case, Mickey, John and
myself, as well as Senator Carpenter and Senator Mello and
Senator Bob Presley, who joined us for a good portion of the

proceedings this morning thank you very much for being with us.
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It is as we said a very, very difficult problem, and the
heartfelt testimony which we have received from the tenants, as
well as the very sincere and expert testimony we received from
WMA, is most appreciated. Hopefully, we can lock into the
problem and see if we can come up with some solutions. I think
you should remember what Marie said because I think she hit it
right on the head. The whole milieu has changed, and what
started out rather innocuously has, in fact, taken on a different
connotation, and how we deal with that, we really don't know.

But we're going to look at it certainly, and we'll probabkly call
on both sides to assist us as we see whether we can, in fact,
correct a situation which seemingly is unsavory.

But I want to thank all of you for coming, and I really
appreciate it. We look forward to these meetings because, as you
know, they are generators, generally, of legislation. Out of
hearings like this, we try to put together something that will
solve the problem, problems which you bring to our attention. So
we are most appreciative and thank you very, very much.

(applause).
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CONCLUSION

Letters, sample leases, and other material submitted by both
park residents and park owners for this hearing have been
voluminous. With all this information several points are
apparent.

First, as in the past, mobilehome park residenté are unhappy
with rent increases.

Two, numerous parks in California are now offering long-term
leases of more than one year, and most of these leases include
annual rent increases over the life of the lease tied to a cost
of living index or other indices.

Third, few park owners have offered leases in the past, and
the great volume of mobilehome park leases now being offered is
the result of SB 1352 (L. Greene), legislation effective January
1, 1986, which exempts mobilehome park spaces covered by
long-term leases of over one year from any rent control
ordinance.

Four, in most jurisdictions where rent control exists,
residents would rather remain on a month-to-month tenancy or
short term lease of less than one year because they feel their
rent, in the long run, will be less under a rent control
ordinance than under the terms of a long-term lease which has

built in rent increases.



In California leases or the issues involving mobilehome park
leases have become entwined with the issue of rent control. Rent
control is an anathema to park owners, but many park residents
feel that rent control is their only protection from
ever-escalating rents.

Long-term leases do offer an opportunity to resolve the
impasse over rent control if the lease is a fair agreement which
has benefits for both parties. Unfortunately, many park
residents believe that leases are simply a device used by the
park owner to circumvent rent control and that the leases are
one-sided and not the result of any mutually agreed to contract.

Many park owners and residents are polarized on the issues.
Some park residents feel that leases should not include any rent
increases throughout the life of the lease, but that rents should
be fixed. Some park owners insist that annual cost of living
rent increases in the lease remain at a higher percentage rate
than is currently the cost of living index and would "pass
through" most variable costs, such as property taxes, liability
insurance premiums, cost of maintenance, capital improvements and
the like.

Additionally, although testimony at the hearing would
indicate that at least most members of the Western Mobilehome
Association approach the issue of leases from a professional
basis, apparently there are some park owners who have used veiled

or direct threats or intimidation in an attempt to get tenants to
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sign their leases. These tactics only serve to make park
residents more suspicious about the desirability of signing
leases to begin with.

What action can be taken by the Legislature in terms of new
bills or laws regulating leases is questionable. Many park
owners as well as residents would hesitate to recommend that
government step into the process of dictating terms and
conditions of private contracts, including lease agreements.

There are already several provisions of law on the books,
including those in the Mobilehome Residency Law, which affect
leases.

Section 798.18(a) provides that, "A homeowner shall be
offered a rental agreement for (1) a term of 12 months, or (2) a
lesser period as the homeowner may request, or (3) a longer
period as mutually agreed to by both the homeowner and
management." Clearly this provision would require the park
owner/manager to offer the resident, if he or she requests it, an
agreement of 12 months or a lesser period, (presumably
month-to-month). If the park owner refuses to offer a resident a
month-to-month tenancy, as has been alleged in several cases, it
would appear that the resident would have grounds for legal
action against the park owner under this subsection.

Another subsection, 798.18(b) is the subject of some
controversy. It provides that, "No rental agreement shall

contain any terms or conditions with regard to charges for rent,
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utilities, or incidental reasonable service charges that would be
different during the first 12 months of the agreement from the
corresponding terms or conditions that would be offered to the
homeowners on a month-to-month basis." Many homeowners cite this
subsection as authority for prohibiting a park owner from
offering a lease, at least in the first year of the lease, at a
lower monthly rental than a month-to-month tenancy.

Park owners, on the other hand, point out that the
legislative history of this subsection (AB 3315 Ingalls, Chapter
1032 of the Statutes of 1978) would indicate, rather, it was
meant to prohibit the park owner from charging a premium for a
lease, that is charging more for a rental agreement of 12 months
or longer than would be charged the tenant on a month-to-month
basis. Park owners contend that a 1983 Oceanside Superior Court
case upholds their position, although further litigation in this
regard may be possible.

Legislation could be considered to prohiit a difference in
rent, but would the Leéislature want to deny those who wish to
sign a lease the ability to receive a lesser rent? Apartment and
commercial leases are often offered at a reduced rate for those
willing to commit to a longer term lease, rather than only month
to month. It's a quid pro quo. The landlord gets the assurance
that the tenant is committed to paying the rent for the period of
the lease, while the tenant gets a reduced rate from that which

he/she would have to pay under a month-to-month tenancy.
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But where leases are proffered to existing month-to-month
tenants with the admonition, as has been alleged, that, if they
don't sign the lease, they will incur not only higher rents but
continued rent increases, a sort of "open season" on month-to-
month tenants, then park owners are walking the fine line of
retaliation. How the park owner, who plays the game fair and
square, can be permitted to offer leases at a discount, as is
often done for other kinds of rentals, and at the same time
prevent the park owner who is less than honorable from
intimidating his tenants in this fashion, is difficult to
determine. Perhaps a one-year grace period, as some have
interpreted 798.18(b), would be the best compromise.

Another area which may be open to legislative consideration
would be modification of the recently enacted Senate Bill 1352,
which exempts long-term leases in mobilehome parks from local
rent control ordinances. (Civil Code Section 798.17).

Requiring that park owners allow residents a certain minimum
time to consider the lease before signing it, prohibiting an
increase in rent for those who choose not to sign for a one-year
grace period, requiring the park owner or management to meet with
residents or a resident organization representative concerning
such a lease, among others, are possibilities for placing
conditions on the exemption of a mobilehome park lease from rent

control under 798.17.
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However, any changes in 798.17 may tend to discourage park
owners from offering leases in the first place, and leases, if
fairly negotiated and agreed upon, can benefit both park
residents as well as park owners.

In summary, since the issues involved in the offering of
mobilehome leases will not be easily resolved, perhaps they need
further investigation.

One final point is, however, clear. Where mobilehome owners
have come together and formed homeowner associations to meet and
work with the park owner as a group, they have been the most
successful in resolving problems and coming closer to a mutually
agreeable lease. Alternatively, the only immediate remedy to
abuses or violations of existing law is through civil action in

the courts.

# # &
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ITI. SB 1352 (L. GREENE)
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TO THE CHAIRMAN






Western Mobilehome Association

May 7, 1986

Senator William Craven
State Capitol

Room 3070

Sacramento, CA 95814

Dear Senator Craven:

Thank you for your courtesy extended to WMA at your recent hearing on
long-term leases. Norm McAdoo, Diana Wilks, Brent Swanson and I
appreciated the opportunity to testify.

Through the course of the hearing you heard a great deal of negative
testimony from GSMOL chapter leaders and park residents. In listening to
their comments its clear that there is much confusion and fear about
long-term leases. While WMA has done an outstanding job in educating its
own membership, we have obviously not spent enough time in educating
residents about the benefits of long-term leases. We firmly believe that
carefully prepared leases present one of the best ways to provide
long-term security to both park owners and residents. We are extremely
concerned that the abundance of negative testimony at your hearing might
lead the committee to think that the lease program is a failure. This is
simply not the case.

While there is always some initial fear about any new program, we have
found that if long-term leases are explained in simple terms and there is
adequate time to review and negotiate changes, then they will receive
widespread acceptance in mobilehome parks. In many parks, owners have
been able to achieve 100% participation of the residents.

Unfortunately, the thousands of residents who are happy with their leases,
did not show up to testify at the hearing. In addition, there were
numerous instances of distortion and misrepresentation of facts during the
hearing.

In order to be able to respond to these mis-statements, we would like to
request a full transcript of the hearing as soon as it is available. We
will then provide a written commentary and analysis of the testimony
including WMA's recommendations to help resolve those problems that may
need attention.

1121 L Street, Suite 400 * Sacramento, CA 95814 + (916) 444-8847



Senator William Craven
May 7, 1986
Page two

Again, thank you for your courtesy and support.

guidance is greatly appreciated.

Cordially,

Dennis G. Emundson

Executive Director

Your oversight and



PO 81 oords se Mot dn Ui — saeunos
28911 puone 01 Anunyoddo sy ssiu ) o

‘uoIssuLIad
UM INOA 1M AJUO pudlle Aeur dJaseuem
TUIPISAT INOY “SIdUMO Yred swoyapqow
J0J pIpuaiuy Ajureuriid aae SIeUIIS ISIY|,

(anea Oz$ ) uonedisigod
pred gum 99d) popiaodd o [1Im gorgm "Soses|
U0 [BNUBW Mol S VM STIRUTLIIS DU 0] 1X07 a4,

PI21) oY1 Ul asNIdX0 [B10adS yim JIR1s VIAM
pue s1aumo aed ‘sAoudone :sieuoissojodd An
-Snpul SNOLIBA apnjoul sdoyeadq “Jeuiwos sy ut
UIAIG UOITRWLIOJUT TUQLIND O] SSI 01 PIOJIR 1. UBD
NOA “9DURUIPIO [0JTU0D JUDL B Jopun s yded 1noA
10U 10 JaylayAy “adriueape Inok o1 Anuniaoddo
SIYT 98N 01 MOY NOA JORIT [[IM SIRUILOS 98Iy pue
‘STUAUWSOAUT JNOA JOAD [0J1U0D UTRFI 01 sueaw
U1 JUM NOA apiaodd mel 01R1s Ul Sagduryd oy,

‘weddodd 20uRISISSE [RIUAL AIRTUNJOA B dUnonpuod
J0] SAUIIPING JIA0D [[IM JRUIWIS JU) “UoIIppe U]
STUIPISAL JNOA YUM suoneounuiuod yaed-ur dn
198 01 Moy pue “Yied anoA ur weddodd oseop way
-3U0] B SurdopoAop Jo spogroul g [[im poapnjou]

suoIsiaodd sy ynm Ajdwon
noA djoy pue uone[siga] 12Ul MOTAN [[IA SIRUIUS
A8V, “SOIUBUIPIO [0JTUOD TUIT [BOO] JO SUOISIA
-0dd o1 wodj 1oduoy Jo sy 7| Jo siuowoadge
ASeY| WIar-duop 1dwaxd LYY | AdenuRp 9AN
-09JJ9 UoNRISIFo] duissed ur [njssadons sem VM
AIUDIIY "SISLI] WLIVT-GU0] U0 SIRUTILIOE OS] 1)
=10 01 pasead S1UONRIOSSY JWOYI[IGON UIIISIAN

SIUIUWIIITY ISLI|
ULID | -SU0]

"0019-18€ (FIL)

10 L+88-+11 (916) :S201J0
TUIWILIIA0T) [RIOT VIAM 92U [[eD
‘SIRUIWIS ISIY] U0
UONCULIOJUY IV 1INJ 10,]

PIRAQINOY INYNIYIRIN GFGE
WodmoN toeIayQ

orag WodMaN — 9861 ‘€z Atenuer

19a01S 18I N OF LT
NPA} oSOp ey

IS0 UL — 986] ‘9] Adenuep

199G [ 008
wuyp Aeprjoq pzey jonden)

oludweIOrg — 9861 ‘¢l Alenuep

DALI(] PURIS] JOGIRH (8]
PURIS] JogdRH uoedoys

0891(] ueS — 9861 ‘+1 Alenuep

uvoliea 21zl
BZR[ (] [QMIY UIDISIMm 1809

SANN UBA — 986] ‘FI Adenuer

URILIDILA\ PUR (]
uo iy odtdwryy puequj
OuIpJIRILINg UBS — 9861 ‘6 Adenuer

"99) UONRIISIZI
Ul papnIoul JJe [EnURU 9SBI| pue youn'y
wd 0gy
18 PUd pue "ur'e ()():6 18 U1gdoq SIeujwos [y

suoneoso’]

weadodd vourisisse
[P1Id B Funonpuoy pue gutuuelg [

asodang [

JDUR|SISSE [PIUAd AIejuUnjop

MOTAN
wopqodd 10 uonedunuwwod yed-uy ]

uonedIunuIuwo)
uonenosoN ]
yoroadde oy Jupo( [

ISP [NJSSADINS B J0J dulziueai() [

weisodd asesr]
I | -suorg e surdojara(

sysnodyi-ssed [

SJUAUNSNIpE IR 1ONIB N
sjuaunsnipe uonejuy
Juy o1sey ]

SISLI'T JO SIUAUI[] VISey

[OJTUOD TUAd
0 S103]J9 9AINONIISAp OYT WOd] Uo1109704d | []

SIUD AR []

ISEI| WLID[-SU0'] Y] JO SNHJUIY

SISLI'| ULID[-SU0']
wnnoLLINY



-4 -

ADVANCED RESERVATIONS REQUESTED
PLEASE RETURN THIS FORM WITH YOUR CHECK

Reservations (@ $60 per person (members) b
Reservations (@ $250 per person (nonmembers) S
Name 1 Owner 7 Manager
Park
\ddress
City State Zip
Membership No. Phone | }
Check location vou wish to attend:
] San Bernardino — Jan. 9 (] San Diego — Jan. 14 1 San Jose — Jan. 16
] Van Nuys — Jan. 14 (] Sacramento — Jan. 15 1 Newport Beach — Jan. 23

Return to: WMA Long-Term Lease Seminar, ¢/o Local Government Division, 1121 L Street, Suite 400, Sacramento. CA 95814

Western Mobilehome Association "
FIRST CL/ SS

1121 L Street, Suite 400 U.S. Postage

|
{
Sacramento. CA 95814 PAID )
Sacramento, Calif. |
Permit No. 451
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SUBJECT MATTERs MOBILE HOME PARK LEASES

I am Sol Becker, Alternate Director in Reglon Two and a member
of Golden State Mobilhome Owners League. I reside in Marin County.

ST VI N RADGy DR, NUOTATe, €4 ¢4y T

In the course of my activitles, I attend many meetings at various
Mobile Home Parks.

Leases are currently the most vital toplc. We are not against
leases, but we want leases that are fair and equitable., We are
against leases belng sligned under threat or fear of harrassment.
Some of the leases, landlords referred to them as falr, places
one hand in your pocket and the other on your throate.

Automatic rent increases are without rhyme or reason. They are
confiscatory and abhorrent. At best, 1f leases must be increased
annually they should be tled to a very small percentage of the
CPI, not over 50%.

We hear the old cry, that landlords are subsidizing the moblle-
home owner. Bediculous, the business is so bad they keep buying
more parks. Paying outrageous prices knowing that all they have to
do i1s ralse the rent, what can the poor suckers do?

Another troublesome area, known as Pass Thru Capital Improve-
ments, We find landlords calling a variety of maintenance items
as Capital Improvements. Depreclation over the years should pro-
vide an owner with ample provislon for replacements of roofs,
motors, pumps and the like.

No capital improvement over $5,000 should be permitted without
homeowners approval since they are called upon to pay for same.

The cost of capltal improvements should be spread over a perilod
of time, no less than, the schedule used by the government (IRS).

We have many communities in the state that have enacted rent
ordinances at a time when the CPI was in the 18 and 20% area,
and homepwners were glad to accept 8 and 9% increases, Now they
f£ind themselves up against it and must seek further review.

One and only one solution appears to be avallable and that 1s
for the government to provide ample funds so that the residents
may purchase their parks and end this murderous cycle of rising
rents.

Members of the Senate Select Committee, the ball is in your park.
Thank you for listenlng.






HaRRY M. FOULKS
220 CaALTFORNIA LOOF
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Maw 12 1784

Committes on Mobiletomes

Foom 511
PEELA

Desr Sermetor Craverd

I sttended the hesrine held by the Select Commibtltee on
Maw S 1986 bt haed not made an advance recuest to he
rlaced o the zseends. When the hesring was sbout to
achiourne the hour waes so lete T did rnot recuest time for
remarksy Dot thowant this letter to the committee miaht e
tree Leful,

1. The besckaeround rarer distributed by the committee
seems Lo drndicste thet & lesse sareemernt cdurineg its first
wesr stiouwld (smorne other thines) not conteain g mormtbhls
rerntal rate different thar the morthls rete for z mornth Lo
morbh tensnew. The remarlks made bw Mr. Brent Swarnson (WM
) drnddiceate that & surerior court Jdudee has helds in
effecty that the word different as uwsed in the statute does
riat mesn different but mearns thst the loncer lesse rate
carmot differ bw being "more®s Dot it casn bhe "less”.

If the Jdutdee was wrone in the interrsretstion and the
legislature sctuslly measrt the worag different to mesn
gifferentes it would arresr thsat arn smendment be sddine
after the word differert the rarernthetical shrasse (neither
more rnor less) would smely clarife the statute.

2o I cormection with the subdect wmatter in division
Ly sbover Mr. Swanson rointed owt thast & rnumber of obher
rractices could be devised to skirt the lesislastive internt
evern thouwah the surerior court Judse had not held zs
incdicated. It would seem that if the lecislsture internds
(s I would hore would be the csse) that this differernce in
rental rates and other matters is rot to be svoided bw
these indirect devicess thern there should be rrovided some
generasl and brosdly inclusive laneusce bo srevent such
sohemes .,
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arvd received our corw tosebther with s corw of th rules and

16
regulations and the 1989 Mobilehome Mesidency Lasw.

T Decomberys 199% we received g notice thaet we could
2 % wesr lesse srorosed by bthe masnasdement (in which
: out rernt would e incressed by srrrodimately six
warcent) but if we did oot sccert our rent would be

i saaec bw o sbhout 12 rercent,. The new rentsals to be
effective on Mscoh 1.

T wrote the msneseenernt sodintine out thet I hed resd
the Mobdlehome Residencw Law and thet [ noted thet thew hed
feiled to offer & 1 weasr lesse ae mandsted by the lasw anag T
Felt that T wass entitled to & one wesr terwm-—---in whiloh
case me Lerm would not exelre so thet 3 raise in rental
shouwlad not he effective om Mareh L---bot thaet the dete of
commencenent of amy new term would rmot be o wntil Mesw Lo

1984,

initialed & rarserast i bhe
sBe Frovicded @

The rersly was that [ hed
oriaimsl rentael s ement which Farsar :
mortbhn bo month tersnow sned thaet X ohed thervefore orted for
tLhat twee of tensnow. Deserite the fact that I believed the
controlineg cuestion was manscement's neclect to sctuslle
gffer the one wesr term ss mandsted by lawe I discorntirooed
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Paso Robles, CA
May 1, 1986

Senate Select Committee
State Capitel - Room 3070
Sacramento, CA 95814

To Committee Members

RE: The issue of long-time mobilehome
park leases.

We, as residents in a mobilehome
park and members of GSMOL, are extremely
interested in the above issue due to the
following circumstances.

Our park management told us that
if we signed a five or ten year lease
our rent, beginning April 1, of this
year, would be $212.67.

If we were to sell our home, the
purchaser would pay 10% more than the
$212.67 if he assumed the lease. If we
did not sign the lease a purchaser would
have to pay a monthly rent of $262 and
if he or she wished to sign a lease at
the time of purchase, the rent still
would start at $262.

This is, we believe, intimidation,
and it is going on in many other parks
besides the one in which we live.

Therefore, we hope you will consider
these facts during your committee meeting.

Sincerely, .
‘[7/ "/‘#/(" 5‘{2 3 ?‘
ce C{’,L.,-,Txc;a,é?& A &4«#’41
)

Senator William Craven
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April 26, I

“enator 7111 Craven R-Oceanside
18th “enate Tistrict

“tate Tapitol, Rm, 3070
“acramento, Za. 9584

Near “enator Clraven,

“3r, I wich I were able to be at the MobhleHome Hearings, starting
on YMay 5th, I08A. There is much you c¢o not know of and are unaware

of, regarding long term leases teing offered MobleHome Owners,

We received through Marie Malone, GEMOL Ttate President, some of your
statements and thoughts on long term leases. You ask in this

release if, residents are told they will have to sign these leases

as month to month will no longer be offered, or where month to

month tenacies are =till offered, they will be charged HIGHER rent

than 1F they signed the lease. You then state 'if true' these

nractices are against the State Law.

Well “ir, not only are they true, but much worse, in our own park,

you either sign the unfair and unreasonable lease, as some I3 attorneys
have =aid it is, or if you want to sell, they have put the space rent
to a new buyer so high there is no way you can sell., The owner has plain
vut a zun to you saying, sisn or else. The horror stories g0 on and on.
Just the tip of the iceberg, and you would be shocked and appalled to

know what is really happening

I would as most in our Tark would be happy to fill you in on the real

truth, if you are ever by our way.

Tincerely, C/ W{J\—“"‘/Z/
John G. Carmichael ‘;)é/il”’/ (v

Rancho Paso MobleHome Park
Theatre Drive, Snace 102

Paso Robles, California 93444
1-805-238-7485
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Senator William A. Craven May lst, 1986

Senate Select Committee
State Captol- Room 3070
Sacramento, California 95814

Dear Senator Craven:

Je would like to bring to your attention some of the facts about
about the long term lease that was offered in our park.

The lease that was offered to us was for five years,-
It called for a ninety cercent(90% ) of C.P.I. raise in rent each year.

In addition we were tp yay for all expenditures in the park,-

(namely Capital Improvements, Maintenence of tha park, Water we

use in our coach, water for common area) ( such as pool watering

of the green areas of the park, taxes of the park, insurance of the par
etce.o.s

Because we could not afford to sign this lease we chose to remain
under lleasure " A " .

Ne have our home up for sale, if we had signed the l2ase,the rent
to the New Owner would be 10% above what we pay now( We are paying
$218.84) but because we did not sign the lease , the rent to the
New Owners will be $262.00 a lionth.and will be raised evry three
months by 8% until we sell our home.

We were told by the management that they could raise the rent to the
New Owner to any amount they wanted to. Thus we feel that this is a
deterant to the selling of our home. Please bear in mind the we are
not TENANTS we are home owners...Also that weare responsible for

our own little plot of ground and in it's upkeep. We also pay taxes
on the home each and every year,

The Management has now statedthat there will be no more leases offered
to the present residents of .he park...( THOSE WHO DID NOT SIGN THE

LEASE) ...

SINCERELY,

S h :
L“?ﬁ&f%i(ﬁfzat41,/)Z;)Yggii;ézggf?
WILLIAN D. FULTZ

ELDINE M. FULTZ _J

RANCO PASO MOBILE HOME PARK
SPACE # 10
PASO ROBLES, CALIFORNIA 93446
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To: The Honoravle W.A. Craven Chairman
and Members of the Senate Select
Committee on Mobilehomes.

From: Clifford Roland President
G.5.M.0.L. District #4 Southbay.

Dear Senator Craven:

I was prevaleged to have attended your Senate Select Com—
mittee on Mobilehomes meeting May 5, 1986 pertaining to long
term leases. I came away convinced more than ever that 1t is
not the intent of the Park Owners to give their Homeowner re-
sidents any kind of protection with their so-called long term
leases, but instead the intent is to circumvent rent control
that exists in at least 50 cities and or counties in the state
of California.

Jith the passage of 3B I352, sign alease and you are not covered
by Rent Control.

Section 798.17 states: The first paragraph of a rental agreement
entered into pursuant to this section shall contain a provision
notifying the homeowner that the agreement will be exempt from
any Ordinance,rule, regulation, or initiative measure adopted
by any local governmental entity which establishes a maximum
amount that a landlord may charge for rent.

Park owners here in the National city,Imperial beach and Chula
Vista areas have gone to almost any llength to coeriece lobile
home owners to sign leases because of their fear of Rent Control.

The Park Owners Association(#MA) has been defeated time an again
in court fighting the Rent Control initiatives, they are now taru
intimadation,coercion, threat of eviction, excessive rent increases
demanding that we must sign the leases that they are offering,
they have also devised what we beleive to be an illegal two tiexr
rent structure, sign a lease and pay less than those that will

not sign.

I strongly feel that this is a local matter and that the State

- should not become involved in the matter of vertually killing
local Rent Control issues. Each city where Rent Control exisists
has its own unique problems anthis must remain a local issue.

If any law is to written, it should be the change of Section
798.18= B. No such agreement shall contain any terms or cond—
itions with respect to charges for rent, utilities,or incidental
reasonable service charge that would be different during the
first I2 months of the agreement from the corresponding terms or
conditions that would be offered to the Homeowner on a month to
month basis.
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AS the President of District # 4 Golden State Mobile Home
Owners Leauge Inc, and the recommendation of the District
4 council we are asking your very serious consideration to

repeal of section 798.I8- B of the civil code and in its place
replace it with.

NO SUCH AGREENENT SHALL CONTAIN ANY TZRxS OR CONDITIONS AITH
RESPLCT TO CHARGES FOR RENT,UTILITIES,O0R INCIDENTAL REASCNABLE

ERVICE CHARGzS THAT «#CULD Bn DIIF&REIT FROM THE CORRESPCNDING

Tmﬂkb OR CCNDITIONS THAT WOULD BE OFFERZD TO THE HCME CWNER ON
A NMONTH TC MCNTH BASIS.

Resoectfulld submltted

ﬁ/wﬁ Lat/k
Clifferd Roland

II00- I-6 Industrial blvd
Chula Vista, Ca. 920II
(6I9) 420 90I4
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NOTICE OF RENT INCREASE;
NOTICE OF ADOPTION OF NEW FORM OF RENTAL AGREEMENT

DATED March 2( , 1985

Rent Increase

You are hereby notified that, in accordance with
California Civil Code Section 798.30, effective . June ’ 1, 1986
your monthly rent will be increased by 9% from your current.
monthly rent of $ . . Accordingly, effective June
1, 1986, your monthly rent will be the sum of §$ 257. 02, not
including such other costs or other expenses (such as
utilities) which are also payable under the terms and
conditions of your tenancy.

The rent increase effective June -1, 1986 is in part
required by the Park to recover the increased cost of premiums
paid by the Park for liability insurance coverage. Such
premiums have increased over S % from the prior year.

Adoption of New Rental Agreement

You are hereby notified that effective June 1,
1986, each tenant at Brentwood Mobilehome Park (the "Park") (
that has resided at the Park for 12 months or longer shall be’
required to enter into and sign a new forff*6f Rental ‘
Agreement. Each tenant shall be offered a rental agreement
with a term of (i) 12 months, (ii) less than 12 months, (iii) a
month-to-month tenancy, or (iv) 36 months. Each tenant shall
have the option to select the length of the term.

It will be necessary for each tenant to come to the
Park clubhouse prior to June l, 1986 in order for that
tenant to enter into and execute a new Rental Agreement. You
are requested to contact the Park Office at 422-4645 in order
to schedule an appointment as soon as possible or if you have
any questions concerning this Notice.

Tenants that have not resided at the Park for at least
12 months shall be required to enter into the new form of
Rental Agreement on the first anniversary of their tenancy.

Apart from the difference in length of the term, the
primary difference between the new forms of Rental Agreements
is that the 36 month Rental Agreement provides for an annual
rental increase of gnly 7% on the anniversary date of the
Rental Agreement.

BRENTWOOD MOBILEHOME PARK

52-6
10/9/85
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13401 San Pablo Ave. Sp. #35
San Pablo, Ca 94806
May 8, 1986

Mr. Bill Craven, Senator
38th Senate District
State Capitol, Room 3070
Sacramento, Ca 95814

Dear Senator Craven:

My husband and I were the managers of Grace Lane Management
(formerly Bishop El1 Rancho Mobilehome Park) where Mr. Dale Clute

is a resident.

We offered all residents a 5-year Lease to our Park. Mr. Clute

was offered the same Lease as all other tenants. My husband I

were both present in our contacts with Mr. Clute. 1In no occassion
did we threaten nor did we in any way coerce Mr. Clute into

signing the Lease. In fact, Mr. Clute did not sign the Lease
because, according to him, he felt he would be betraying the

'pack' (group of tenants opposed to park owners in any way).

He thanked us for our friendly attitude and he left our office
saying that he now regarded us as ''friendly enemies" (in his own

words) .

Mr. Clute does not want to resolve issues; he wants to create
problems. As he himself has said: "I am retired and I have

all the time in the world to fight you'.

Please take this letter into consideration when you evaluate
Mr. Clute's testimony as well as those of other tenants who
like Mr. Clute have made it their objective to instigate unrest

and to create problems for park owners and park residents as well.

Sincerely yours,

Joann and Charles Jacobson
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INDIAN HILLS MOBILE HOME VILLAGE
11401 N. TOPANGA CANYON BLVD., CHATSWORTH, CA 91311
341-0017

May 19, 1986

Select Committee on Mobile Homes
1100 "J" Street Room 511
Sacramento, California 95814

Attention: Senator Bill Craven
Re: Hearing on or about May 5, 1986
Dear Senator Craven:

On or about May 5, 1986 a tenant from Indian Hills, the park I own, testified
before your committee. Brent Swanson, the park attorney, and Frank Ford, a
representative of WMA, were at the hearing. They related to me what was said
by the tenant from Indian Hills. According to what they told me, there were
many misrepresentations made about the operation of Indian Hills and the
leases which were signed by a majority of the residents of Indian Hills.

I am presently working with WMA to present information to correct the misrepre-
sentations made by the Indian Hills tenant. I think this approach will best
answer the misrepresentations made and do it with a minimum of time expended
by your committee and staff.

Senator Craven, thank you for taking your time to read this letter. Should
you wish to speak to me about any matter related to the testimony, please
call me at (818) 709-3513.

Sincerely,

INDIAN HILLS MOBILE HOME VILLAGE

PETER J. NOUGUIER,

General Partner

PJIN:pm
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LAW OFFICES OF
CoNTRA CoSTA LEGAL SERVICES FOUNDATION

MAIN OFFICE
1017 MACDONALD AVENUE. P. O. BOX 2289

RICHMOND. CALIFORNIA 94802
MARK GOLDOWITZ TELEPHONE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (415) 233-9954

TESTIMONY OF MARK GOLDOWITZ
RE PR(BLEMS WITH LONG-TERM LEASES IN MOBILEHOME PARKS

BEFORE THE SENATE SELECT COMMITTEE ON MOBILEHOMES
MAY 5, 1986

My name is Mark Goldowitz. I am an attorney with, and the
Executive Director of, the Contra Costa Legal Services
Foundation. I am here today on behalf of low-income residents
of mobilehome parks in the City of San Pablo.

I want to bring to your attention problems currently being
experienced by low income mobilehome residents in San Pablo. I
believe that most of these problems have been caused by the new
Civil Code Section 798.17, and urge the members of this
Committee to sponsor and support legislation to repeal that
prov ision.

Section 798.17, passed last year, allows leases in excess of
12 months to supersede local rent regulation protections for
mobilehome residents. I believe repeal of this provision is
necessary for at least two important reasons: one philosophical
and one practical.

First, 798.17 establishes a special rule for mobilehome
residents, and treats them as second class citizens. For no
other tenants in the State of California may the conflicting and
less protective provisions of a lease prevail over any local
rent protection ordinance. Only mobilehome residents suf fer

this fate. This conflicts with the fundamental pol icy statement
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that the Legislature made when enacting the Mobilehome Residency
Law, which was that the special problems and circumstances of
mobilehome residents require unique and additional protections
for mobilehome residents. Given that correct policy
determination, certainly mobilehome residents should be no less
entitled to protections under local ordinances than any other
tenants.

Second, the practical ef fect of this subsection is to
subject mobilehome residents to unreasonable pressure from park
owners who now want residents to sign long term leases so local
rent protections will not apply.

For instance, no rent protections are currently on the books
in San Pablo, but an initiative ordinance to establish them is
on the ballot on June 3. In an effort to prevent mobilehome
residents from enjoying any protections fram the proposed
ordinance, should it pass on June 3, mobilehome park owners in
San Pablo have engaged in a systematic campaign of threats and

A prmIT20C RGwT ) ¥ CREASES
intimidation,ﬂto coerce residents into signing onerous
multi-year leases.

At the largest mobilehome park in San Pablo, Circle S,
prior to December 1985, residents had never been of fered a
written rental agreement. In November 1985, mobilehome
residents began circulating an initiative petition for a
Mobilehome Residents Protection Ordinance. On December 31,
1985, Circle S sent residents a letter saying that the park
would be closed unless they agreed to sign a long-term lease.

(See Exhibit A.)
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On January 13, 1986, Circle S sent residents a copy of a
proposed 5-year lease. (See Exhibit B.) The proposed lease
contained a number of objectionable provisions. Most
significantly, the lease mandated rent increases for increases
in the Consumer Price Index as well as for any increase in
operating expenses, thus double charging residents for the same
expenses. (See Paragraph 3.) The lease also required signers to
falsely state that they had previously received copies of the
Mobilehome Residency Law (see Paragraph 21) , which was not true;
nor was a copy of this Law attached to the lease, as reguired by
Civil Code Section 798.15(c).

The park management engaged in a campaign of threats and
intimidation to force residents to sign the proposed lease. The
witnesses that follow me will also testify about this. 1In
addition to the threats that the park would be closed, residents
were told by management that if they didn't sign the lease their
rents could be increased every 60 days and would be increased
more than they would be for those who signed the lease. The
assistant manager at Circle S told residents that if they didn't
sign the lease, they would have to pay subsequent rent
increases, and could possibly lose their mobilehome. She also
told residents that if they did not sign the lease they were not
wanted at Circle S. Residents were constantly pressured to sign
the lease. These tactics put intense emotional pressure and
stress on park residents, many of whom are elderly and very
vulnerable.

Residents who did sign the proposed lease were given a $10

per month rent increase, which was softened by a rebate of

-3-
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one-hal f month's rent. The combined ef fect was that for the
first 12 months of the lease term, the rent increase for those
that signed the lease was only about $3 per month.

Because of the problems with the lease, many park residents
refused to sign it. On January 30, 198, those residents who
had not signed the lease received a notice that their rent would
be increased $25 per month. This notice was accompanied by a
letter from the park owner explaining that "this rent incr ease
is only for those mobilehome owners who have not signed the
lease agreement we have of fered park resident. 1If you have
signed the new lease agreement or will sign it, of course, this
rent increase will not apply to your space." (See Exhibit C.)

Thus, residents who did not sign the lease were being forced

punITTVE
to payArent increases more then eight times greater than the
ones given to those who did sign the lease.

Similar and worse has occurred at other parks in San Pablo.
At El1 Rancho, management called residents in to the of fice and
insisted that they sign the lease right then. Residents were
not allowed to take a copy of the lease out of the office to
show to a lawyer or friend. At Kimball's park, residents were
given blank leases and tald that they must sign them within
three days.

If this pattern of events has occurred in a community which
does not even have a rent control ordinance on the books, I
shudder to think what has been happening and will happen in the
forty communities which do have local rent protections on the
bo oks.

To protect mobilehome residents against these kind of

practices, I urge you to repeal Civil Code Section 798.17.
—-4-
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Sober! f. Johanson

5%ﬁanycd‘6hw
520 Second Sireef
W()c/eo, CA 94572

(415) 799-1600 o (415) 232-3010

December 31, 1985

Tenants' Committee

Circle S Corral Mobile Home Park
13613 San Pablo Avenue

San Pablo, California 94806

Dear Committee Members:

This letter is in response to the issues raised in our
meeting of December 17, 1985. From my perspective, it appears
that a review of Mr. Selix's notes of our meeting clarifies most
issues. If we are able to reach agreement on a lease then
certainly the park will not be closed. If an agreement cannot be
reached, and the park residents want to promote passage of a rent
control ordinance, then the only other alternative is to give

notice the park's u:eMuLLLWQQ,Qhanged to a commercial
development. T

On the issue of security, I have not been able to obtain
estimate as to what a security patrol would run (because of
holiday vacations) but am willing to pursue the issue for the
benefit of the majority of park residents.

Concerning what costs are fixed, I am not aware of any
costs that are absolutly fixed. The City of San Pablo levies a
tax on the number of mobile homes in the park, and this amount is
fixed as of this date. Most other expenses are somewhat fixed,
but certainly vary depending on factors presently unknown (e.g.
maintenance, repairs, utilites, garbage, etc.). That is, we have
no long term contracts for the providing of certain services
that would tell us today what something will cost us next year.
Note: The front area of the park will be adequately maintained
in the future, once this issue of a loan is resolved.

Lastly, the issue of past and current rent increases. As I
informed you, it was management decision in 1984 to bring up the
rents in order that they reasonably reflect rents charged in
other parks in the Bay Area, and, in addition, provide an
adequate return in consideration of the value of the land. As
stated before, to attempt to sell the park at the previous low
rents was not in the best interests of ownership.

EXHIBIT A
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Tenants' Committee
December 31, 1985
Page Two

We consider the value of the park to be quite high. It is
within walking distance to shopping, City services,
Medical/Dental care, Brookside Hospital, Interstate 80, and will
be across the stsreet (almost) to the new 15-20 acre shopping
center in San Pablo. Many residents have informed us they enjoy
living at our park, wish to continue living here, are quite
pleased with the management, and feel very secure and safe in
their homes. Note that a small 2 bedroom apartment in the San
Pablo area will rent for $450.00/month, minimum. To respond to
the 1984 rent increases please be reminded that when inflation
was around 12% in the late 1970's, the rents were not increased
in a like manner.

Very truly

s

ROBERT p. JOHANSON

RHJ:1p

EXHigT
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MOBILE HOME PARK LEASE

MULTI-YEAR LEASE

PARK: CIRCLE S CORRAL MOBILE HOME PARK
OWNER: WALDO F. BECK MANAGER: URCLE RAY LONG

SPACE NO.:

LESSEE(S):
INITIALS:

INTIALSS:

THIS LEASE WILL BE EXEMPT FROM ANY ORDINANCE, RULE, REGULATION,
OR INITIATIVE MEASURE ADOPTED BY ANY LOCAL GOVERNMENT ENTITY
WHICH ESTABLISHES A MAXIMUM AMOUNT THAT A LANDLORD MAY CHARGE A
TENANT FOR RENT.

THIS LEASE, made and executed effective with the commencement
date set forth below by and between Park Owner as set forth
above, hereinafter referred to as Lessor, and the Resident Home
Owners listed above, hereinafter referred to as Lessee.

1. DESCRIPTION OF THE PREMISES:

Lessor leases to Lessee and Lessee leases from Lessor the
space indicated above within Lessor's Mobile Home Park to be used
as a residence by Lessee and for no other purpose without prior
written consent of Lessor.

2. TERM:

This Lease is a year lease and shall commence on February
1, 1986, and end by T2:00 midnight on January 30, 198 .

3. RENT:

(a) Monthly Rent: The monthly rent for the period
February 1, 1986 through January 30, 1987, will be $ .

EXHIBIT &
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The monthly rent for each of the remaining
years of this lease will be increased on February Tst of each
year (i.e.,in 1987, 1988, etc. by the percentage

change in the Consumer Price Index ("CPI") for the San Francisco,
Oakland area (All Urban Consumers) for the twelve month period
ending three months before the increase is due to take effect

(e.g., for the _ 1, 1985 increase, the
percentage change 1n the CPI for the period 1,
198, through November 31, 1985) under the folTowing formula:
(i) 100% of any CPI increase up to 5%, plus
(ii) /5% of any CPI increase from 5% to 10%; plus
(iii) 60% of any CPI increase above 10%.

(b) In addition, for each of the remaining years

of this lease, Lessee will be charged on February 1st of
each year a monthly amount to reflect Lessee's pro rata portion
of the following, as incurred by Lessor for the twelve-month
period ending three months before February 1st of each year;

(i) Any increased costs incurred by Lessor due to a
governmental act or regulation;

(ii) Any increased operating expenses incurred by Lessor;

(iii) Any increases in Lessor's debt service expense incurred
by virtue of variable rate financing in existence on the
commencement date of this lease; and

(iv) All costs incurred by Lessor for capital improvements,
including financial costs, which are under a cumulative sum of
five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) or are required to comply with
a governmental act or regulation, and all costs incurred by
Lessor for other capital improvements cumulatively costing in
excess of $5,000.00, so long as same have been previously
approved by a fifty percent plus one (50% + 1) vote of the total
number of occupied spaces within the Park. All such capital
improvement costs shall be amortized over a five year period and
any charges for same shall end upon their amortization.

4. UTILITIES

Lessee will pay utilities of gas and electric only that are
presently individually metered to Lessee's residence. Lessee
hereby promises to utilize conservation measures to keep
consumption of non-metered utilities to a reasonable minimum.

5. SUBLETTING:

Lessee may sublet the premises or any mobile home located
thereon in the event of personal hardship such as illness, death
or incapacity, but only with the prior written consent of Lessor.
Any sublease permitted by Lessor shall have a minimum duration of
three months. In the event of any such subletting, Lessee
remains responsible for performance of all obligations of this

EXNIBIT B
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Lease, including without limitation, compliance with rules and
regulations, maintenance of the space and payment of rent.

6. USE PROHIBITED:

Except as otherwise specifically permitted by the California
Mobilehome Residency Law, Lessee shall not use or permit the
premises or any part thereof to be used for any purpose other
than as a residence for the persons listed above, nor shall any
other person reside at the premises without the prior written
permission of Lessor.

/7. WASTE AND NUISANCE PROHIBITED:

During the term of this lease, Lessee shall comply with all
Park rules and regulaitons, which may be changed from time-to-
time pursuant to the California Mobilehome Residency Law as same
may be modified from time-to-time, and pursuant to Paragraph 18
of this lease.

8. ABANDONMENT PROHIBITED:

Lessee shall not vacate or abandon the premises at any time
during the term of this lease. If Lessee shall abandon, vacate
or surrender the premises, any personal property belonging to
Lessee left on the premises shall be deemed to be abandoned at
the option of the Lessor.

9. LESSOR'S RIGHT OF ENTRY:

Lessee shall permit Lessor and the agents and employees of
Lessor to enter into and upon the space at all reasonalbe times
for the purpose of inspecting the same and for the prupose of
posting notices of non-responsibility for alterations, additions
or repairs without any rebate of rent and without liability to
Lessee for loss of quiet enjoyment. Lessor shall not enter into
Lessee's mobilhome except in cases of emergency or with the prior
consent of Lessee.

10. ATTORNEY'S FEES AND COURT COSTS

If an action at law or equity shall be brought to recover
any rent due under this lease or on account of any breach of, or
to enforce or interpret any of the covenants, terms or conditions
of this Lease or the Park rules and regulations for the recovery
of possession of the premises, the prevailing party shall be
entitled to recover from the other party as part of the
prevailing party's costs reasonable attorney's fees, the amount
of which shall be fixed by the court and made a part of any
judgment or decree rendered.
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11. SALE:

In the event Lessee sells the mobilehome located on the
premises to a third party during the term of this lease or any
renewal or extension hereof, Lessee shall give notice to Lessor
of Lessee's intent to sell the mobilehome as required by the
Mobilehome Residency Law. Unless and until this lease has been
validly assigned or terminated, Lessee shall continue to be bound
by all provisions of this lease.

12. ASSIGNABILITY OF LEASE UPON RESALE:

During the first year of this lease, Lessee shall have the
right to assign this lease without any increase in rent other
than those provided in Paragraph 3 hereof. During the second
year and thereafter the Lessor and Lessee shall consider rents
paid in other Parks in the area and, if area rents for comparable
mobilehome parks exceed those charged under this lease at that
time or are expected to exceed same in the future, this provision
will be renegotiated to provide for a reasonable additional rent
increase on resale during the remaining years of this lease. 1In
the event of any assignment of this lease, the person or persons
to whom this lease is assigned must be approved by the Park
management and must assume all of the obligations of the Lessee.
Such approval will not be unreasonably withheld so long as the
person or persons to whom this lease is assigned have the
financial ability to pay the rent and charges under this lease
and will comply with all rules and regulations of the Park.

13. CANCELLATION OF LEASE UPON REMOVAL:

In the event Lessee decides to remove the mobilehome coach
fromthe Park, Lessee may cancel this lease upon giving Lessor 60
days' notice in writing of such removal and cancellation.

14. WAIVER

The waiver by Lessor or Lessee of, or the failure of Lessor
or Lessee to take action with respect to, any breach of any term,
covenant or condition herein contained, shall not be deemed to be
a waiver of such term, convenant or condition herein contained.
The subsequent acceptance of rent by Lessor shall not be deemed
to be a waiver of any preceding breach by Lessee of any term,
covenant or condition of this lease other than the failure of
Lessee to pay the particular rent so accepted, regardless of
Lessor's knowledge of such preceding breach at the time of
accepting such rent.

15. EFFECT OF LESSEE'S HOLDING OVER:

Any holding over after the expiration of the term of this
lease shall be construed to be a tenancy from month-to-month at
the same monthly rental as required to be paid by Lessee for the
period immediately prior to the expiration of the term hereof.
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The amount of rent for such period of holding over may be altered
only by mutual agreement or pursuant to applicable law.

16. RESPONSIBILITY OF LESSOR AND LESSEE:

(a) It is the responsibility of Lessor to provide and
maintain the physical improvements and the common facilities of
the Park in good working order and contition. Lessor and Lesse
shall comply with the requirements as set forth in the Mobilehome
Residency Law.

(b) Lessor and Lessee agree to negotiate such
differences that may occur between them regarding the
implementation, interpretation or renewal of all or any part of
this lease in a timely and business-like manner. Any negotiated
agreements shall be subject to ratification by seventy percent
(70%) of Circle S Corral Lessees.

17. SERVICES PROVIDED BY LESSOR:

The services to be provided by Lessor during the term of
this lease, unless changed as provided under this lease or by
law, are as follows: water, trash pick-up, sewer, night security
patrol, lighting and laundry facilities.

18. NOTICE OF CHANGE:

Upon request by Lessor or at lest 10 tenants of the Park,
Lessor or Tenants shall, after having provided the other party
with at least ten days prior written notice of the matter to be
discussed, meet and consult on the following matters regarding
general Park operation:

(a) Amendments to the Park rules and regulations;

(b) Standards for maintenance and physical
improvements in the Park;

(c) Additions, alterations or deletions of services,
equipment and physical improvements.

19. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE:

Time is of the essence of -this lease and for each and every
covenant thereof.

20. SECTION CAPTIONS:

The captions appearing under the section number
designations of this lease are for convenience only and are not
part of this lease and do not in any way limit or amplify the

terms or provisions hereof. ,
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21. INCORPORATION OF RULES AND LAW:

Lessee hereby acknowledges that the rules and regulations
of the Mobile Home Park have previously been received by Lessee,
as have copies of the Mobilehome Residency Law and that these
documents are incorporated by reference into this lease and are
made a part of it as though set forth in full.

22. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Lessee agrees that this lease contains the entire agreement
between the parties relating to the lease of space within
Lessor's Mobile Home Park. All prior negotiations or
stipulations concerning this matter which preceded or accompanied
the execution herein, are conclusively deemed to have been
superseded hereby. However, this lease may only be altered by
written agreement of the parties.

LESSEE(S): LESSOR:

By:

Manager
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January 29, 1986

Dear Resident:

Attached is your rent increase notice. Please be informed
that this rent increase is only for those mobile home owners who
have not signed the lease agreement we have offered all Park
residents. If you have signed the new lease agreement or will
sign it, then, of course, this rent increase will not apply to
your space.

If you would like to discuss the lease agreement with me I
will certainly be happy to review it with you by telephone, or
personally. As the great majority, (over 75%) of the residents
have signed the new lease I am convinced it is to your benefit to
sign, but you will have to decide that for yourself. Please note
that if the rent control initiative is defeated, delayed, or
found illegal the present lease agreement WILL NOT be offered in
the future.

Very truly yQur

A N bl e

ROBERT JOHANSON

RHJ:mr
Encl
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NOTICE OF RENT INCREASE

. ) )
T0: e > R
13613 SAN PABLO AVENUE ’
SPACE NO. /. D/
SAN PABLO, CALIFORNIA

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that beginning on April 1, 1986, which is
60 (sixty) days from the date of this notice, the rent for the
premises in the mobilehome park which you are now leasing,

/ , = / 57

SPACE No. /. - 7. , will be § ~ ~.0 27 per month,
to be paid in advance in monthly installments of $ /’?P:é »?7;.
This represents an increase of $25.00 over the rent presently in

effect.

Dated: January 29, 1986.

CIRCLE S CORRAL MOBILE HOME PARK

GRSy D=

Manager/Owner
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STATEMENTS FROM RESIDENTS OF CIRCLE S MOBILEHOME PARK:
(S A /’Aﬂcu/(,H

I signed the lease because it was causing me sleepless
nights, and couldn't really do any diffrent. My income won't
let me pay much more for rent, my health isn't very good, and
this was causing me a lot of nervous tension and worry.

SIBYL LYLES, Circle S, #153, 2-3-86.

I was told that if I didn't sign the lease, my rent would be
raised. I would have to pay garbage and water. I thought about
it for 3 days. I came to the conclusion, that I didn't know
which way to turn. I am a widow and live alone on a small
income. I really wouldn't know where to go. I'm not in the
best of health and all this hasn't help me any.

PAULINE DI MARINO, Circle S, #63, 1-31-86.
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On January 20, 198, Joyce Hairgrove came to my house to ask
me to sign the new lease. I told her that "I had not made up my
mind yet." She told me that I would get a thirty dollar rent
increase if I did not sign. I asked her how come and she told
me that a notice was sent to some of the people to tell them
that if you didn't sign your rent would go up. I told her I
never got the notice and she said well some did and some didn't.
she also said that he will raise it each month, cut of f my
garbage and make me pay for water if I don't see it his way. I
asked how much and was told "maybe fifty bucks each month or
until I move out". I said that it sounds like a terrorist act
and she told me that's what it is. He wants to terrorize us
into the new lease. I asked her if we are good tenants and was
told that "he did not care one way or the other™ that all he
wants to do is to force us off the land and sell it to the city.
She then told me she and her husband signed the lease only
because Johanson told her if she didn't she would be out of a
job. Also that Johanson did not own the park but was acting for
Mr. Rick. I said I would think about it and let her know. My
neighbor and her granddaughter heard the whole thing from her
front roam window and came over after Joyce left and told me
that the Hairgroves tried the same thing on them about the
unfair rent raise.

ROBERT L. GALLAGHER, Circle S, #207.
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CASA DEL LAGO MOBILE HOME PARK

MOBILEHOME RENTAL AGREEMENT

This Agreement is made on the date specified below by the parties identified as “Owner” and “Lessee” and on
the following terms:

1. PARTIES:
“Owner” -~ San Jose Investments, Ltd., a California limited partnership doing business as Casa Del Lago Mobile
Home Park,\ f) , ) / o
“Lessee” N ttes T ¥ )&,4// )Cﬁmw

2. SPACE NO. =§5/£ , located at 2151 Old Oakla/d Road, San Jose, California 95131.

Please Note: Subject to legal requirements, Casa Del Lago is divided into two sections, the “Adult Only”
section where all permanent residents must be sighteen (18) or older and the “Family” section where residents of any age
may live. The "Family” section is Space numbers 1 through 247, inclusive and the “Adult Only” section is Space numbers
248 through 618. No more than four (4) persons may regularly occupy the mobilehome in the “Adult Only” section and no
more than two (2) persons per bedroom may regularly occupy the mobileshome in the “Family” section.
3. RENT & TERM: (Check one block only)

Lj/i This Agreement is for i{ months beginning (é//zf. / .19 g
7

and ending January 31, 1989.

|J The initial monthiy rent shall be $ ’54?,5 .90 . Annual rent increases and
adjustments will be as specified in Exhibit "A° which is attached and incorporated by this
reference.

| 8. This Agreement is a month-to-month tenancy beginning s
) 198____. The rent shall be $ ____ per month. This base rent may be increased at
any time upon sixty (60) days notice to Lessee from Owner (applicable only to month-to-month
tenancies).
4. OTHER CHARGES: (Please see Paragraph 11 for explanation of these charges.)

A. Storage charge: $ o2 per month for each vehicle stored.

B. Guest charge: Two Dollars ($2.00) per day for each person.

C. A late or handling charge of Ten Dollars ($10.00) will be required for rent and other charges not
paid by the 5th of the month, and $2.00 per day thereafter. There shall be a handling charge for all checks
dishonored by the bank upon which they are drawn of $10.00 plus bank charges, plus the foregoing late charges if
applicable. :

D. If Lessee fails to maintain Lessee’s Space, Mobilehome or other improvements, landscaping, accessory
equipment or structures in accordance with the Park Rules and Regulations, then the Owner may elect to give Lessee
written notice as required by law requiring Lessee to either immediately do the work necessary or to hire someone
to do this work. |f Lessee fails to comply with this notice, then the Owner may either have its personnel, or
another party hired by the Owner perform the necessary work. If the Owner or a party hired by the Owner performs
the work, then Lessee will be billed for this maintenance at an hourly rate which shail not exceed Thirty Dollars
($30.00) per hour for all hours actually worked plus the actual cost of all materials used. This option of the
Owner to give Lessee this notice and to perform the work on behalf of the Lessee does not have to be exercised and
is in addition to the Owner's other remedies at law, including the Owner’s right to terminate Lessee's tenancy.

5. UTILITIES:

A. The following are provided and included within the monthly rent: Trash, water, sewer and 8 channel

master antenna system.

B. The following ars billed separately and are payable as additional rent: Electricity and natural gas.

C. The following are not provided and can be obtained independently: telephone, stc.

6. RENT OF SPACE:

Owner grants to Lessee the use and possession of the space in the Park, specified above, which is referred to
in this Agreement as “SPACE", for the Term specified, subject to the restriction, limitations and obligations of Lessee,
all of which are provided in this Agreement.

7. INSPECTION OF THE SPACE:

By signing this Agreement, Lessee has acknowledged that Lessee has carsfully inspected the Space to be rented
and all the Park services and facilities and has found them to be in every respect safe and as represented by Owner to
the Lessee either orally or in writing, and to the extent that they are not exactly as represented, either oraily or in
writing, accepts them as they are.

8. RENT:

8.1 Lessee shall pay to Owner the rent and all additional amounts provided in this Agreement each month as and
for rent. Rent is payable in advance, without demand, on the first day of each calendar month without any set off or
deduction whatsoever. The rent shall be paid at the office of the Park Manager located within the Park or wherever
Owner shall designate from time to time in writing.

8.2 All rents payable hereunder shall be paid IN FULL by check or money order. Owner may, upon ten (10) days’
written notice to Lessee require payment be made in cash or equivalent. The acceptance by Owner of any late payment
shall not constitute a waiver of any breach of any term or provision of this Agreement or any rule, regulation, term or
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provision contained in any document referred to in this Agreement, nor shall it reinstate, continue or extend the term
of this Agreement or affect any notice, demand or suit hereunder
9. UTILITIES:

In addition to the rent to be paid to Owner, Lessee will pay for those utilities set forth above, which will
be billed monthly by Owner. Where applicable said billing will be made at the rate set by the Public Utilities
Commission or any other governmental entity having statutory authority thereof and shall be based upon the applicable
schedules of the Public Utilities Commission or other governmental entity as they relate to the total units of energy
consumed. Owner shall post the applicable utility rates as required by law. In the event of non-payment, Owner shall

repairs, strikes, lockouts or other labor disputes of any character, or by any other cause, similar or dissimilar,

beyond the reasonable control of Owner (Please Note: The provisions of the paragraph entitled “INDEMNIFICATION" of
this Agreement apply to this paragraph.) Lessee shail not connect, except through existing electrical, cable television
lines, sewer outlets or natural gas outlets or water pipes on the Space, any apparatus or device for the purpose of
using television transmissions, electric current, natural gas or water.

10. TAXES:

10.1 Lessee shall pay directly to the assessing body or party when due all municipal, county, state and
federal, property taxes on Lessee’s mobilehome and other property owned by Lessee, and other taxes (except for Owner's
“Property Taxes” and Owner's income taxes and franchise taxes) levied upon the Premises, Lessee, or Owner in connection
with the use and occupancy of the Premises by Lessee. This includes without limitation, the payment of property taxes
and personal property taxes on accessory equipment and structures (including without limitation awnings, skirting,
storage sheds, steps, porches) and other improvements made or installed by Lessee, former Lessees, or by persons other
than Owner.

11. PAYMENT OF OTHER CHARGES:

Lessee agrees to pay to Owner on or before the first day of each and every calendar month during the term
hereof the applicable charges set forth in paragraph 4 "OTHER CHARGES" above. The “Guest” charge shall not be
applicable to extra Guests staying less than a total of twenty (20) consecutive days or a total of thirty (30) days in a
calendar year. This additional charge shall not apply if the extra Guest iS a member of Lessee’s immediate family as
defined by the Mobilehome Residency Law. All charges listed in paragraph 4 “OTHER CHARGES” above may be incrased upon
sixty (60) days notice to Lessee. In the event of non-payment Owner shall have the same rights with respect to such
non-payment as it has with respect to the non-payment of the basic Space rent to be paid by the Lessee pursuant to this
Agreement. Lessee shall not be entitled to occupy any vehicle in the storage area. Storage of vehicles in the storage
area will also be subject to the terms of a separate agreement which Lessee will be required to sign.

12. RESIDENT MEETINGS:

The Management of the Park shall mest and consult with residents as required by the Mobilehome Residency Law

13. CHANGES IN RULES AND REGULATIONS., STANDARDS OF MAINTENANCE, SERVICES, EQUIPMENT OR PHYSICAL
IMPROVEMENTS:

The Park Rules and Regulations, may be changed from time to time during the term of this Agreement at Owner's
sole discretion. It is understood, however, that if any change is made, Owner will comply with the applicabie
provisions of the Mobilehome Residency Law and other applicable law. No such changes shaill be made to the amount of
rent or other charges made by the Owner to Lessee unless permitted by the other provisions of this Agreement.

14. HOLD-OVER TENANCY:

If Lessee’s tenancy hereunder is longer than a month-to-month tenancy and if Lessee remains in possession of
the Space after expiration of the term of this Agreement and has not executed a new occupancy agreement with respect to
the Space, said possession of Lessee shall be deemed a month-to-month tenancy. Owner may, on sixty (60) days notice,
increase the rental rate and other charges of the Park charged Lessees who are on a month-to-month tenancy.

15. INDEMNIFICATION:

OTHER DUTY OWED BY THE OWNER, THE PARK OR ANY OTHER PERSON TO LESSEE OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON.

15.2 Owner and Park shall not be liable for any loss, damage or injury of any kind whatsoever to the person
or property of any Lessee or any of the employees, guests, invitees, permittees or licensees of any Lessee, or of any
other person whomsoever, caused by any use of the Park or Space, or by any defect in improvements erected thereon, or
arising from any accident on the Park or Space, or any fire or other casualty thereon, or occasioned by failure on the
part of Lessee to maintain said Space, or any part thereof, in a safe condition, or by any nuisance made or suffered on
the Park or Space by any act or omission of any Lessee, or any employees, guest or invitee thereof or arising from any
cause whatsoever, unless resulting from circumstances described in paragraph 15.1 above. As a material part of the
consideration of this Agreement, Lessee hereby waives all claims and demands against Owner and the Park and hereby
agrees to indemnify and save Owner and the park free and harmiess from liability for all claims and demands for any such
loss, damage or injury, together with all costs and expenses arising therefrom or in connection therewith, unless
resulting from the circumstances described in paragraph 15.1 above. ’

16. LIENS AND CLAIMS:

Lessee shall not suffer or permit to be enforced against Owner’s title to the Park, or any part thereof, any
lien, claim or demand arising from any work of construction, repair, restoration, maintenance or removal as herein
provided, or otherwise arising and Lessee shall pay all such liens, claims and demands before any action is brought to
enforce the same against said Park. Lessee agrees to hold Owner and the Park free and harmiess from all hability for
any and all such liens, claims or demands, together with all costs and expenses, including but not limited to,
attorney’s fees and court costs incurred by Owner in connection therewith.

17. DAMAGE TO MOBILEHOME:

In the event the mobilehome shail be damaged by fire, earthquake, the eiements, or other casualty, the
provisions of this section shall apply:

17.1 In the event the whole or partial destruction of the mobilehome is such that it may be repaired,
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reconstructed, or restored within a period of sixty (60) days, Lessee shall promptiy commence the work of repair,
reconstruction, and restoration and shall diligently prosecute the same to completion at Lessee’s expense, and this
Agreement shall continue in full force and effect.

17.2 in the event the whole or partial destruction of the mobilehome is such that it cannot be repaired,
reconstructed, or restored within a period of sixty (60) days, then in such event Lessee shall remove the mobilehome
from the Park at Lessee’s axpense. |f Lessee fails to do so, within ten (10) days of written notice from Owner to
remove same, then Owner may, without further notice, remove it and the actual costs thereof shall be due and payabie
forthwith. Upon such removal, this Agreement shall terminate, unless Lessee elects to continue this Agreement by
performance of all of his terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

18. LESSEE'S OPTION TO TERMINATE UPON REMOVAL OF MOBILEHOME:

Subject to the provisions of Paragraph 20, this Lease and the Lessee’s tenarcy may be terminated at the option
of the Lessee on sixty (60) days writtan notice providing the Lessee moves from the Park and removes the mobilehomae and
all accessories and buildings from the Park. Upon removal of the mobilehome, this Lease shail be deemed terminated, the
Space shall revaert to Owner’s control and Owner may Lease or rent the Space to any party on any terms he chooses.

19. SUBLETTING OR ASSIGNING:
19.1 No subletting:

Lessee does not have either the right or power to sublease or sublet the Space or the mobilehome located
thereon. Any sublease or subletting shall be void and shall, at the option of Owner, terminate this Lease. Provided,
however, if during the term of this Lease, or any extensions thersof, State Law is changed so as to require subleasing,
then, Owner will consent to a sublease subject to the same conditions for an assignment, as hereinafter provided in
paragraph 19.2 as though the sublessee were an assignee.

19.2 Assignment:

Lessee shall not assign this Lease, voluntarily or by operation of law, or any interest therein, or any
right or privilege appurtenant thereto, without the written consent of Owner first had and obtained; and a consent to
one assignment, shall not be deemed to be a consent to any subsequent assignment. Any such assignment without such
consent shall be void and shall, at the option of Owner, terminate this Lease. Subject to the foregoing, Owner will
consent to an assignment, provided all of the following conditions have been satisfied: :

19.2.1. Notice of the sale or transfer together with a completed Application for Tenancy shall have been given
by Lessee or Lessee’s agent to the Owner prior to the close of sale or transfer in sufficient time to permit the Owner
to make reasonable investigation of the proposed assignee as provided for investigation of a proposed purchaser in the
Mobilehome Residency Law ; and

19.2.2 Owner shall have approved of the proposed assignee; and

19.2.3 The proposed assignee shail have executed prior to sale and possession an Assumption of this Lease, in
a form satisfactory to Owner, which Assumption shall provide, among other things that the prospective assignee will
abide by the Park Rules and Regulations, including those limiting residency to adults (to the extent permitted by law),
and agree to pay rent at the rate provided in Paragraph 19.2.8 or, at Owner’s option, a new Lease agreement shall be
entered into between Owner and assignee upon the same terms and conditions as set forth herein with the same remaining
term of Lease but with rent as determined pursuant to paragraph 19.2.8; and

1924 The mobilehome shall not be subject to removal as provided in the Mobilehome Residency Law, this ~
Lease, or other applicable law, and

19.2.5 Lessee shail have permitted reasonable access to the mobilehome for purposes of determining compliance
with the limitations of the Mobilehome Residency Law, Section 798.73 (a) through (d), inclusive; and

19.2.8 All of Lessee’s responsibilities and liabilities to Owner regarding rent, utilities, compliance with
Park Rules and Regulations including reasonable maintenance of the mobilehome and its Space shall have been satisfied.
As used in this Paragraph 19.2 the term “assignee “ does not include a sublessee (except as provided in paragraph 19.1),
or an “heir or joint tenant”, whose rights are provided in Section 798.78 of the Mobilshome Residency Law, or a “Legal
Owner”, whose rights are provided in Section 798.79 of the Mobilehome Residency Law, except that if such Legal Owner
forecloses on the security, such Legal Owner shail be deemed an assignee; and

19.2.7  Any assignee shall at Owner's request pay to and deposit with Owner an amount equal to the initial
rent for the first full month following the date of assignment. Said sum is to be held by Owner as security for the
faithful performance of all of the terms, covenants and conditions of this Lease on assignee’s part to be performed.
Owner shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to apply all or any portion of said deposit to the fulfillment
of any of assignee’s obligations or liabilities under this Lease and the curing of any defaults of assignee heresunder.

The balance of said security deposit shall be refunded to assignee at the expiration of the term of this Lease, provided

there is then no default under this Lease. The right to apply the security deposit as hersinabove set forth is in
addition to any other rights and remedies which Owner may have by reason of any breach by assignee of the covenants,
conditions and restrictions of this Lease. If Owner shall sell or transfer the reversion herein, Owner may transfer and
deliver said security deposit to the purchaser of the reversion and thereupon be discharged from any further liability

with reference thereto. In the event security deposits are outlawed, this provision shall be of no force or effect.

1928 The rental rate for the assignee shall be that specifiad in Exhibit "B”, which is attached and
incorporated by this reference. :

19.3 No Waiver:

Except as specifically provided in paragraphs 19 and 19.2, wherein Owner may consent to an assignment, the
acceptance of rent from the Lessee, or any assignee or subtenant of Lessee, after any such assignment or subletting
shall not constitute a waiver of the provisions hereof. The listing of any name other than that of the Lessee, whether
on the doors of the Space or on the mailbox or otherwise shall not operate to vest any right or interest in this Lease
or in the Space in any person other than the Lessee, it being expressly understood that any such listing is a privilege
extended by the Owner, revocable at will by written notice to the Lessee.

20. REMEDIES OF OWNER ON DEFAULT:

In the event of default at any time by Lessee in the payment of the rent herein provided for, or any part
thereto, or in the performance of any other of Lessee’s agreements herein contained, or if Lessee vacates or abandons the
Leased Space then Owner, besides other rights or remedies he may have, shall have the immediate right of re-entry; if
the Space is vacated or abandoned. Owner may remove all property from the Space: (such property may be removed an
stored in a public warehouse or eisewhere at the cost of and for the account of Lessee). Should Owner elect to re-
enter, as herein provided, or should it take possession pursuant to legal proceedings, pursuant to any notice provided
by law, it may either terminate this Lease or may from time to time, without terminating this Lease, relet said Space or
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any part thereof for such term or terms (which may be for a term extending beyond the term of this Lease) and at such
rental or rentais and upon such other terms and conditions as Owner in its sole discretion may deem advisable with the
right to make alterations and repairs to said Space; upon each such reletting (a) Lessee shall be immediately liable to
pay to Owner, in addition to any indebtedness other than rent due hereunder, the costs and expenses of such reletting
and of such aiterations and repairs, incurred by Owner and the amount, if any, by which the rent reserved in this Lease
for the period of such reletting (up to but not beyond the term of this Lease), exceeds the amount agreed to be paid as
rent for the demised Space for such period on such reletting; or (b) at the option of Owner, rents received by Owner
from such reletting shall be applied: First, to the payment of any indebtedness, other than rent due hereunder from
Lessee to Owner, second to the payment of any costs and expenses of such reletting and of such aiterations and repairs;
third, to the payment of rent due and unpaid hereunder, and the residue, if any, shall be held by Owner and applied in
payment of future rent as the same may become due and payable hereunder. If Lassee has been credited with any rent to
be received by such reletting under option (a) and such rent shall not be promptly paid to Owner by the new tenant, or
if such rentals received from such reletting under option (b) during any month be less than that to be paid during such
month by Lessee hereunder, Lessee shall pay any deficiency to Owner. Such deficiency shall be calculated and paid
monthly. No such re-entry and taking possession of said Space by Owner shall be construed as an election on its part to
terminate this Lease unless a written notice of such intention be given to Lessee or uniess the termination thereof be
decreed by a court of competent jurisdiction. Notwithstanding any such reletting without termination, Owner may at any
time thereafter elect to terminate this Lease for such previous breach. Should Owner at any time terminate this Lease
for any breach, in addition to any remedy it may have, it may recover from Lessee damages it may incur by reason of such
breach, including the cost of recovering the Space, and including the worth at the time of such termination of the
excess, if any, of the amount of rent and charges equivalent to rent reserved in this Lease for the remainder of the
stated term over the then reasonable value of the Space for the remainder of the stated term, all of which amount shall
be immediately due and payable from Lessee to Owner. In addition to the rights and remedies herein granted, the
voluntary or other surrender of this Lease by Lessee, or a mutual cancellation thereof. shall not work a merger, and
shall, at the option of Owner, terminate all or any existing subleases or subtenancies, or may, at the option of Owner,
operate as an assignment to Owner of any or all such subleases or subtenancies.

21. PROHIBITED USE:

The mobilehome and Space shall be used only for private residential purposes and no business or commercial
activity of any nature shall be conducted thereon. No persons other than those listed on the first page of this
Agreement, and Lessee’s guests, may reside at the Space without the prior written consent of the Owner. No person may
regularly occupy the mobilehome unless they meet the age and other requirements specified in paragraph 2 for the “Adult
Only” and “Family” sections of the Park. Owner may demand proof of age of any Lessee, guest or other persons. Lessees
shail not abandon the Space at any time during the term of this Agreement or renewal or period of holding over. At all
times at least one of the parsons listed in the first page of this Agreement as a Lessee must be the “legal” or
“registered” owner of the mobilehome which occupies the Space.

22. REMOVAL ON SALE:

The Owner will, in order to upgrade the quality of the Park, require the removal of mobilehomes from the Space
upon their sale or transfer to a third party, in accordance with the provisions of the Mobilehome Residency Law and
other applicable law.

23. TERMINATION OF TENANCY BY OWNER:

This Agreement at the sole option of the Owner may be declared forfeited and/or the tenancy may be terminated
and/or Lessee’s right to possession or to renew Lessee's tenancy terminated in accordance with the provisions of the
Mobilehome Residency Law and other applicable law.

24. EMINENT DOMAIN:

If the entire Park, or a portion thereof so that in Owner's sole opinion the balance remaining is not suitable
for a Park, is taken under the power of eminent domain, or is sold to any authority having the power of eminent domain,
either under threat of condemnation or while condemnation proceedings are pending, then this Agreement shall
automatically terminate as of the date the condemning authority takes possession. Any award for any taking of all or
any part of the Space under the power of eminent domain shail be the property of Owner, whether such award shall be made
as compensation for diminution in value of the Leasehold or for taking of the fee. Nothing contained herein, however,
shall be deemed to preciude Lessee from obtaining, or to give Owner any interest in, any award to Lessee for the loss of
or damage to Lessee’s mobileshome or other removable personal property.

25. TRANSFER OF OWNER'S INTEREST:

In the event of any sale or conveyance by the Owner of the Park, or any part thereof containing the Space,
Owner upon notice to its transferee of the existence of this Lease shall be and is hereby entirely freed and relieved of
all liability under any and all of its covenants and obligations contained in or derived from this Agreement arising
out of any act, occurrence or omission occurring after the consummation of such transfer; and the transferee shall be
deemed, without any further agreement between the parties or their successors in interest or between the parties and any
such transferee, to have assumed and agreed to carry out any and all of the covenants and obligations of the Owner under
this Agresement.

26. SUBORDINATION AND ATTORNMENT:

26.1 Owner hereby reserves the right to lease, place liens on, encumber, mortgage, or convey by deed of trust, the
Park or any part containing the Space, and in such event this Agreement and the Leasehold interest hereby created shall
at Owner’s option, be subject and subordinate thereto and to any renewals, extensions, amendments, modifications or
replacements thereof.

26.2 Lesses agrees to, and shall on written request of Owner to do so when and as required by him, execute,
acknowledge and deliver to Owner. or to the recipient designated by him, all documents required to subordinate Lessee's
rights under this Agreement to any such lease, lien, encumbrance, mortgage, or deed of trust. as the case may be.

27. ATTORNEYS FEES AND COSTS:

In any action arising out of Lessee's tenancy, this agreement, or the provisions of the Mobilehome Residency
Law, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys fees and costs. A party shall be deemed a
prevailing party if the judgment is rendered in his favor or where the litigation is dismissed in his favor prior to or
during the trial, uniess the parties otherwise agree in the settiement or compromise.

28. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE: ’
Time is of the essence of this Agreement and for each and every provision hereof.
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29. WAIVER OF DEFAULT:

No delay or omission in the exercise of any right or remedy of Owner on any default by Lessee shaii impair any
such right or remedy or be construed as a waiver. No waiver by Owner of Owner’s right to enforce any provision haereof
after any default on the part of Lessee shall be effective unless made in writing and signed by Owner nor shail it be
deemed a waiver of Owner’s right to enforce each and all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other default on
the part of Lesses. The acceptance of rent hersunder shall not be, or become construed to be, a waiver of any breach of
any term or provision of this Agreement or any rule, regulation, term or provision contained in any document referred to
in this Agreement, nor shall it reinstate, continue or extend the term of this Agreement or affect any notice, demand or
suit hereunder.

30. SUCCESSORS:

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties herein and to their heirs,
assigns and successors in interest. Nothing contained herein shail be deemed to give Lessee the right to assign,
sublet, or transfer the Space except as expressly authorized by this Agreement.

31. COMPUTATION OF PERIODS:

All periods of time referred to in this Agreement shall include all Saturdays, Sundays and state or national
holidays, provided that if the date or last date to perform any act or give any notice with respect to this Agreement
shall fall on a Saturday, Sunday or state or national holiday, such act or notice may be timely performed or given on
the next succeeding day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or state or national holiday.

32. HEADINGS:

The word titles of the paragraph and subparagraph designations contained hersin are inserted solely for
convenience and under no circumstances are they or any of them to be treated or construed as any part of this Agreemen
33. ENTIRE AGREEMENT:

This Agreement and the documents referred to herein constitute the entire agreement between Lessee and Owner
pertaining to the subject matter contained herein and supersedes al! prior and contemporaneous agreements,
repressntations and understandings of the parties, whether written or oral.

34. ALTERATION OF THIS AGREEMENT:

This Agreement may be altered only by written Agreement signed by Owner and Lessee.
35. NOTICES:

All notices or documents of any kind which Owner may be required or may desire to searve on Lessee under the
terms of this Lease may be served (as an aiternative to personal service upon Lessees) by leaving a copy of such notice
or document, addressed to Lessee, in the “notice tube” at the Space or by mailing a copy thereof at any post office in
the State of California, addressed to Lessee at the Space. Service shall be deemed complete at the time of leaving the
notices or documents or within three (3) days after the mailing thereof. All notices of documaents of any kind which
Lessee may be required or may desire to serve on Owner under the terms of this Lease may be served (as an alternative t
personal service upon Owner) by mailing a copy thereof by registered maii in any post office in the State of California,
addressed to Owner at the Park office. Service shall be deemed complete within three (3) days after the mailing
thersof. Either Owner or Lessee may change its mailing address by notifying the other party in writing as to such new
address. o
36. FORCE MAJEURE:

Any failure or delay on the part of Owner, or of his agents, servants or employees, in the performance of any
obligation contained in this Agreement shall be deemed excused if such failure or delay is due to causes beyond their
reasonable control.

37. INSURANCE: : : N

Owner does not carry public liability or property damage insurance to compensate Lessee, Lessee’s guest or any
other person from any loss, damage or injury except those resulting from those situations where Owner would be iegally
liable for such loss, damage or injury. Lessee is responsible, therefore, for obtaining at Lessee’'s own cost, extended
coverage for Homeowner, fire and other casualty insurance on the mobilehome, other improvements and contents to the fu
insurable value and such other insurance as is necessary to protect Lessee, Lessee’s guest or others-from loss or
liability. Lessee shall neither bring nor keep on the Space anything that will cause an increase in the insurance
premiums on the Park, nor shaill Lessee use the Space in any manner or for any purpose that will cause either an increase
in insurance premiums, the cancellation of any insurance coverage, or the refusal of any insurance carrier to ingsure the
Park against the specified hazards, and Lessee shall not permit his Guests, or others within the Park upon his authority
to do any of the acts prohibited to Lessee herein. In the event Lessee engages in activities prohibited by the
foregoing, Lessee shall be liable to Owner for all damages arising therefrom, including without limitation, the
increased costs of insurance premiums.

38. DEFINITIONS:
The Definitions of the terms used in this Lease are contained in the First Addendum.
39. OWNER’'S APPROVAL:

Whenever the terms “Owner’'s approval” or “approval of Owner”, "Owner's consent” or “consent of Owner” or othe:
similar terms are used in this Agreement or in other documents referred to in this Agreement or as provided by law, they
mean that the owner’s prior written approval must have been obtained by Lessee. if Owner's prior written approval is
required, Lessee shall submit a written request to Owner which describes the action Lessee proposes to take and requests
Owner to give prior written approval. :

40. CHOICE OF LAW: .

This Agreement and all documents referred to in this Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance
with the laws of the State of California.
41. ENTRY UPON LESSEE'S SPACE:

The Owner shail have a right of entry upon the Space at any reasonable time for maintenance of utilities,
reading of meters, for the protection of the Park, and for maintenance of the Space, Mobilehome or other improvements,
accessory equipment or structures in accordance with the Rules and Regulations of the Park when the Lessee fails to so
maintain these items, but not in a manner or at a time which would interfere with the occupant’s quiet enjoyment. The
Owner may enter a mobilehome without the prior written consent of the occupant in the case of an emergency or when th
occupant has abandoned the mobilehomae.
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42 ACKNOWLEDGMENT:
Lessee acknowledges that he/she has read, understands and received copies of this Agreement, together with a
copy of the Park Rules and Regulations and all other residency documents referred to in this Agreement, including
exhibits hereto, and a copy of the Mobilehome Residency Law, and further, that he/she has read and understands each of
these documents and the other Rules and Regulations posted in and about the Park, Lessee understands that by executing
this Agreement he/she will be bound by the terms and conditions thereof.
43. INFORMATION PROVIDED TO OWNER:
Concurrent with Lessee’s execution of this Lease, Lessee shall provide Owner with the following listed
information. In addition., Lessee shall during the term of this Lease be required to keep this information correct by
giving Owner written notification within ten (10) days of any change:
fa) A photocopy of the registration or ownership certificate pertaining to the mobilehome; and
(b) The name and address of all lien holders and persons claiming any rights or interest in the
mobilehome whatsoever; and
(c) Names and ages of all occupants, pet descriptions, and descriptions of vehicles of Lessee and his
Guests.
44. INFORMATION PROVIDED TO LESSEE:
Pursuant to the requirements of the Mobilehome Residency Law Owner is notifying Lessee that the property upon
which this Park is located is zoned APD and there is a conditional use permit without a termination date. This
Park is on a Ground Lease which expires November, 2013. Owner makes no warranty or representation concerning any

continued zoning of the Park.

45. MAJOR DESTRUCTION:
If, during the term of this Lease, the Space or the Park shall be destroyed by fire, flood, earthquake, ground

fault or movement, act of God, or by any other causes (hereinafter referred to as “casualty”), either Owner or Lessee
shall have the right to terminate this Lease upon ninety (30) days notice of one to the other. If. during the term of

this Lease. the Space or the Park shall be damaged to the point that the Space or Park becomes economically unfeasible
to operate or replace, Owner shall have the right to terminate this Lease upon ninety (90) days notice to Lessee. Upon
any such termination, rent shall cease upon Lessee’s removal of the mobilehome and all other property from the Space.

DATED:

SAN JOSE INVESTMENTS, LTD.
doing business as
Casa Del! Lago Mobilehome Park

DATED:

By:
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EXHIBIT A
CASA DEL LAGO MOBILEHOME PARK LEASE

RENT

The rent and rent pass-throughs payable by Lessee to Owner during the term of the Lease are expressed below
in simplified language in Paragraph A (General Provisions). Exhibit A-1 attached hereto reflects, in general, rent
increases and rent pass-throughs for various rent levels as of January 1984. A more detailed and technical description
follows in Paragraph B (Detailed Provisions). In the event of a conflict. the Detailed Provisions shall prevail.

A. GENERAL PROVISIONS.
A.1 The base monthiy rent under the Lease shall be as follows:

(a) Commencing February 1, 1985, the base rent shall be (i) Lessee’'s base rent as of January 1984, pius
(ii) $37.00 plus (iii) 11% of the sum of (i) and (ii), which is the “Initial Monthily Rent”.

(b) Commencing February 1, 1986, the base rent shall be increased by 7.5% of the base rent in effect as
of January, 1986.

(c) Commencing February 1, 1987, the base rent shail be increased by 7.5% of the base rent in effect as
of January 1987.

(d) Commencing February 1, 1988, the base rent shall be increased by 7.5% of the base rent in effect as
of Janaury, 1988.

A2 It is agreed that Owner is entitied to a $37.00 per month rent increase for the year commaencing February
1. 1984; provided, however, from February 1, 1984 Lessee has been obligated to pay only an 8% increase. Ownar agrees
to accept the 8% increase for the period February 1, 1984 through October 31, 1984 in return for Lessee’s agreement to
pay the difference between $37.00 and 8% for the months of November, December 1984 and January 1985; such amount t
paid over 12 equal monthly instalilments commencing February 1, 198S.

A3 In addition to the rent specified above, Lessee’s rent shall be increased on a per space basis (divided
by 618 spaces), by any of the following costs, which are incurred or paid, during the term of the Lease:

(a) Any new governmental imposition, tax, assessment, utility charge, or the like in excess of $10,000
per item in any calendar year over the prior year;

(b) Increase in any imposition, tax, assessmant, utility charge or the like in excess of $10,000 per
item over the prior year’s; and

(c) Costs, in excess of $10,000 per occurrence including reasonable interest and financing charges, as a
result of any damage or destruction to the Park (whether insured or not) in excess of insurance proceeds, exclusive of
deductible, or other third person recoveries to effect any capital reconstruction, like replacement, repair, or
restoration, except as required by law. Such amounts shall be calculated based upon an amortization schedule of five
years.

B. DETAILED PROVISIONS.

B.1 Definitions:
As used in this Exhibit, the terms listed below shall have the following meanings:

B.1.1 The term " Retroactive Rent” means the aggregate difference between $37.00 per month and 8% of the
January, 1984 base space rent payable by Lessee to Owner for the months of November and December 1984 and January
198S.

B.1.2 The term “Monthly Governmental Imposition Pass-Through Amount” refers to a possible rent increase due
on each February 1 of the term of the Lease, to be determined pursuant to paragraph B.4 below.

B.1.3 The term “Monthly Damage Pass- Through Amount” refers to a possible rent increase due on each February
1 of the term of the Lease, to be determined pursuant to paragraph B.5 below.

B.2 Payment of Space Rent; Waiver of Receipt.

Owner and Lessee acknowledge and agree that the rent Owner is entitled to hereunder during the term of the
Lease is equal to Lessee’s January 1984 rent for each month of the Lease plus all rent increases and pass-throughs
thereafter. Owner and Lessee or representatives of Lessee have negotiated extensively concerning payment of such rent
increases and pass-throughs in light of Owner’s increased debt service for 1984. Although all of such rent increases
and pass-throughs are currently due as a result of such increased debt service, Owner agrees that so long as Lessee
complies with the payment terms of the Lease, Owner shail waive portions of such rent increases and rent pass-throughs
due from time to time by granting a temporary discount in return for Lessee's promise to pay rent each month in
accordance with the following:

B.2.1 From February 1, 1985 through January 31, 1986, monthly rent shall be the Initial Monthly Rent

B.2.2 From February 1, 1986 through January 31, 1987, monthly rent shall be equal to the sum of (i) the
“February 1986 Base Rent”, which is the initial Monthly Rent increased by 7.5% plus any Monthly Governmental
imposition Pass-Through Amount which initially becomes effective on February 1, 1986 , and (ii) all Monthly Damage

7
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Pass-Through Amounts.

B.2.3 From February 1, 1987 through January 31, 1988, monthly rent shall be equal to the sum of (i) the
“February 1987 Base Rent”, which is the February 1986 Base Rent increased by 7 5% plus any Monthly Governmental
Imposition Pass-Through Amount which initially becomes effective February 1, 1987 , and (i1) alil Monthly Damage Pass-
Through Amounts.

B.2.4 From February 1, 1988 through January 31, 1989, monthly rent shall be equal to the sum of (i} the
“February 1988 Base Rent”, which is the February 1987 Base Rent increased by 75 % plus any Monthly Governmental
Imposition Pass-Through Amount which becomes effective on February, 1, 1988 , and (ii) all Monthly Damage Pass-Through
Amounts.

8.3 Payment of Retroactive Rent.

In addition to the rent specified above, Lessee shall pay monthly, as additional rent, from February 1, 1985
through January 31, 1986 1/12th of the Retroactive Rent.

8.4 Monthly Governmental Imposition Pass-Through Amount.

At any time during the Lease term, if any utility, water, sewer, street or special assessment district, or if
the United States Government, or any state, county, city or any political subdivision thereof in which the Park is
situated, levies, assesses, creates or increases a real or personal property tax or assessment, or excise tax on rent,
or any other tax, charge, fee, tariff or assessment however described, against the Park (including the improvements,
furniture and fixtures thereat) or against Owner with respect to the Park, referred to as a “Governmental Imposition”,
then such Governmental Imposition shall be a pass- through to Lessee as additional rent in accordance with the
following:

B.4.1 The amount of any new Governmental Imposition which may be passed through to Lessee commencing Februar
1 of any year shall be equal to 1/12th of 1/618th of the amount of such Governmental Imposition paid or incurred in
the preceding calendar vyear in excess of a total Park-wide amount of $10,000 per item.

B.4.2 The amount of any increased Governmental Imposition which may be passed through to Lessee commencing
February 1 of any Lease year shail be equal to 1/12th of 1/618th of the amount of such increased Governmental
Imposition paid or incurred in the first preceding calendar year in excess of a total Park-wide amount of $10.000 over
the second preceding calendar year.

; B.4.3 Resident agrees to pay Owner commencing February 1 of each year and continuing throughout the remaining
Lease term, the applicable Monthly Governmental Imposition Pass-Through Amounts pursuant to paragraphs B.4.1 and
B.4.2, referred to as the “Monthly Governmental Imposition Pass-Through Amount”, upon notice given as to any such item
not less than 60 days prior to the February 1 on which such amounts are to become effective.

8.5 Monthly Damage Pass-Through Amounts.

B.5.1 As used in this paragraph, the terms listed below shall have the following meanings:

(a) The term “Damage or Destruction” shall mean every type of damage, destruction or loss affecting the
spaces, the facilities, the Park, or any portion thereof, arising from any cause whatsoever, whether insured or not.

(b) The term “Damage Costs” means all actual amounts incurred or expended by Owner, or reasonably
anticipated to be incurred or expended by Owner, for capital reconstruction, like replacement, repair or restoration
arising from any Damage or Destruction. In addition, the term also includes costs of financing incurred, expended, or
reasonably anticipated to be incurred or expended, including interest and points, broker’'s fees and commissions, and
loan charges and fees.

BS5.2 If there is any Damage or Destruction during the Lease term (whether insured or not) which Damage or
Destruction results in Damage Costs in excess of $10,000 per occurrence, such Damage Costs in excess of the sum of
$10,000 per occurrence, net insurance proceeds (exclusive of deductible) and other third-person net recoveries, shall
be passed through to Lessee on a per space basis and based upon a five-year amortization schedule.

B.5.3 Lessee shall pay Owner commencing each February 1 during the Lease term, the monthly amount of Damage
Costs to be passed through to Lessee pursuant to Paragraph B.5.2, above, arising from Damage Costs upon 60 days
written notice given prior to any February 1. The amount to be passed through commencing any February 1 during the
Lease term is herein referred to as the “Monthly Damage Pass-Through Amount.” Anticipated Damage Costs shall be
adjusted upward or downward upon determination of actual Damage Costs.

B.5.4 Insurance Condition.

As a condition to the Owner being entitled to obtain any specific Monthly Damage Pass-Through Amount pursuant
to paragraph B.S5, above, Owner shall maintain insurance coverage and limits of liability which are satisfactory to
John Hancock Mutual Life Insurance Company under the Lease dated as of September 19, 1973 for operation of the Park
between it and Owner's predecessor. Such policy is not required to insure against the specific casualty which caused
the Damage or Destruction. Owner will maintain a copy of the policy or abstract of the policy for review by Lessee in
the Park office; provided. however, that breach of maintaining such policy or abstract for review shall not be deemed
a condition to Owner receiving the Monthly Damage Pass-Through Amount.
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EXHIBIT B /

CASA DEL LAGO MOBILEHOME PARK LEASE
RENT INCREASE UPON ASSIGNMENT OF LEASE

B.1 Subject to the provisions of Paragraph B.2, hereof, the monthly rent to be paid by any "“New Lesgea”
upon assignment of the Lease pursuant to paragraph 20.2.8 of the Lease shall be determined as follows:

B.1.1 If the assignment becomes effective on the first day of any February during the term hereef \the
monthly rent shall be that which the “Former Lessee" would have paid on such February 1 increased ch
February thereafter, monthly rent shall increase as provided in Exhibit A of the Lease.

B.1.2 if the assignment becomes effective on any day other than as set forth in B.1.1, above, during the
term hereof, the following shall apply:

(a) Commencing on the date of assignment until the second succeeding February 1 after the
assignment, the monthly rent shail be equal to the sum of (i) the Former Lessee's monthly rental rate immediately
prior to assignment increased by 18% pius (ii) such increased amount multiplied by the “Annualization Adjustment” As
used in the foregoing sentence, the term “Annualization Adjustment” means 7.5% multiplied by a fraction, the numerator
of which is 12 and the denominator of which is the sum of 12 plus the number of full months between the assignment
date and the next February 1. The reason for using the Annualization Adjustment for rent increases upon assignment is
to prorate rent increases over a period of longer than 12 months in order to annualize rents on February 1 and avoid
more than one increase within a 12-month period.

(b) Commencing on the second succeeding February 1 following the assignment date, and upon each
February 1 thereaftar, the monthly rent for the New Lessee shall be increased by an amount necessary to raise the
monthly rent to the level that the Former Lessee would have paid had the Former Lessee's rent been increased by 18% on
the assignment date. Such increased amount includes ail applicable pass-through amounts and the 7.5% rent increases
applicable to each February 1 after the assignment date.

B.2 The increases provided for in paragraph B.1 shall be in addition to ail other increases contemplated
pursuant to Exhibit A of the Lease such as Monthly Governmental Imposition Pass-Through Amounts, Monthly Damage Pas
Through Amounts and Retroactive Rent: provided, however, that the 18% increases reflected in paragraphs B.1.1 and
B.1.2 which apply to any assignment, shall not be applied to any Monthly Damage Pass-Through Amounts or Retroactive
Rent; provided, further, that if the date of assignment occurs prior to February 1, 1986, the New Lessee shall remain
liable for any Monthly Retroactive Rent payable pursuant to Exhibit A from February 1, 1985 through January 31, 1986.
Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Exhibit B, Owner shall not be bound by any limitation on any rent
increase set forth in this Exhibit B upon the expiration or earlier termination of the term of the Lease.

B.3 The following is an example of the application of Paragraph B.1, above:

ASSUMPTIONS:

1. Monthiy Rent before assignment: $300.00.

2. Date of assignment: August 1, 198S.

3. Pass-throughs: None
SOLUTION:

A. The monthly rent for New Lessees commencing August 1, 1985 is $371.70 = $300.00 + $54.00 (18% x
300.00) + $17.70 (7.5% x 12/18).. Such monthly rent ghall continue in effect until February 1, 1987.

B. The monthly rent for New Lessee commencing February 1, 1987 is $409.09 derived by calculating the
amount of rent the Former Lessee would have paid in accordance with paragraph B.1.2(b), as follows:

(1) 300 x 18% = 354.

(2) (354 x 7.5%) + 354 = 380.55.
(3) (380.55 x 7.5%) + 380.55 = 409.09.
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FIRST ADDENDUM TO LEASE AGREEMENT
CASA DEL LAGO
BASIC SERVICE LEVEL

This First Addendum to the Lease, made on the Effective Date of the Lease, by and between SAN JOSE
INVESTMENTS, LTD. a California Limited Partnership, doing business as CASA DEL LAGO MOBILEHOME PARK. hereinafter
referred to as "Owner”, and the individualis) who have executed the Lease to which this Addendum s a part, referred
to as “LESSEE", is as follows:

RECITALS

A. Owner and Lessee are entering into a written mobilehome park rental agreement or Lease, which is referred
to in this Addendum as “Lease”, concerning the use and occupancy of a mobilehome park Space specifically identified
therein; and

8. The said Lease provides pursuant to Section 798.15 of the California Mobilehome Residency Law that the
Owner shall set forth the services and facilities to be provided to Lessee; and C. The City of San Jose Rent Dispute
Mediation and Arbitration Ordinance (Chapter 17.23, hereinafter referred to as “the Ordinance”) and the regulations
promulgated thereunder by the City of San Jose Advisory Commission on Rents (hereinafter refarred to as “the
Regulations”) provide that the basic level of services can be established by the express or implied agreement of the
Owner and Lessee; and

D. Owner and Lessee desire to fully and specifically set forth in this Addendum the services and facilities
to be provided as the basic service level of Casa Del Lago Mobilehome Park with the understanding that no other
services or facilities are to be provided.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing facts and the mutual covenants and agreements herein
contained parties agree as follows: )

ARTICLE |
AMENDMENTS TO LEASE

1.1. INCORPORATION:

The recitals of this Addendum are incorporated herein by this reference as though set forth in full
Paragraph 7 of said Lease is deleted and, in place of Paragraph 7, the provisions of this Addendum are substituted.
All the terms, covenants, and provisions of said Lease shall remain in full force, except Paragraph 7, and those in
conflict with the provisions hereof, in which case the provisions of this Addendum shall prevail.

1.2 DEFINITIONS:
The terms used in this Lease, all Addenda and attachments thereto shail be governed by the definitions set

forth hereinafter.

Basic Service Levei: _
This term means the services and use or enjoyment of facilities provided by Owner to Lessee during

the term of the Lease as specifically set forth in this Addendum.

Common Area:
The term common area or common facilities shall refer to all streets, street lighting, lakes,
fountains, decorative lighting, parking areas, recreational facilities, clubhouses, lawns, storage
areas, and laundry facilities, and all other places in the Park , excluding all Spaces and those
areas designated for management use only.

Contractor:
This term shalil refer to persons or companies who render services and/or supply materials to Park.
Facilities:
This term means the structures, property and improvements described in Appendices E through P,
inclusive.
Guest:
This term means all of Lessees, agents, employees, invitees, permittees or licensees or
otherpersons in the Park or on the Space at the invitation, request or tolerance of Lessee.
Lessee:
This term refers to each aduit person who signs the Lease and his or her spouse.
Owner:
The term owner shall refer to the Owner of the Park, including Owner's partners, directors.
representatives, officers, and their agents and employees, including the resident manager and off-
site manager of the Park, and the successors of each or all.
Park:
The use of the term “park” or “the Park” refers to the entire Casa Del Lago mobilehome community,
including both Spaces and common area.
Reduction:

This term means a material, measurable and unreasonable deprivation of Lessee’s Basic Service Level
caused by an act or omission of Owner.

Rules and Regulations: .
This term shail refer to the rules of conduct applicable to Lessee and Guests.

Services:
This term means those services described in Appendices A through E inclusive and Q, and the
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supervision, maintenance and repair described in Appendices E through P inclusive.

Space:
The term Space rafers to the entire area from curb (including side curb), to rear lot line and side
vard party lines, including the driveway, vards, parking areas, and the area upon which the
Lessee’'s mobilehome is located; and whenever the context concerns conduct upon the Space the term
shall also include conduct and activities within the mobilehome itself. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the term Space does not apply to the common area adjoining those spaces adjacent to Club
Drive.

Title 28: .
This term shall refer to the provisions contained in Title 25 - Housing and Community Development -
of the California Administrative Code and the Mobilehome Parks Act contained in the California
Health and Safety Code commencing with Section 18000.

ARTICLE il
LESSEE'S INSPECTION
OF
SERVICES AND FACILITIES

2.1 INSPECTION OF PARK AND SPACE:

Lessee agrees that his exacution of the Lease or taking possession of his Space shall constitute his
acknowledgment that the Park and Space are in a good and tenantable condition and that there are no service
reductions, violations of the Municipal Code of the City of San Jose, violations of Title 25, or any other city,
county, state or Federal laws or regulations, or any other breaches or matters, including breaches of the warranty of
habitability, whether applicable to services, facilities, or otherwise, which constitute the providing of less than the
Basic Service Level. Moreover, Lesses acknowiedges that he has found the Park and Space safe and habitable in every
respect and as represented by Owner, sither orally or in writing, and to the extent that the Park or the Space is not
exactly as represented, accepts the services and facilities as they are.

ARTICLE Il
SERVICES AND FACILITIES
PROVIDED TO LESSEE

3.1 RESPONSIBILITY OF OWNER:

The sole responsibilities of Owner to Lessee in relation to maintaining the physical improvemaents of the Park
in good working order and repair and providing services during the term of said Lease shall be satisfied by providing
the Basic Service Level as stated in this Addendum and the Appendices hereto. .

3.1.1 Deterioration and Wear and Tear of Facilities:

Normal and abnormal deterioration and/or obsolescence of facilities is expected and shall not constitute a
Reduction. However, Owner shall maintain each facility in a usable condition, including such periodic maintenance
tasks as painting, cleaning, grouting, replacement of broken windows or fixtures 3o as to maintain each facility only
as set forth in the Appendices.

3.2 SERVICES AND FACILITIES PROVIDED:

The Basic Service Level provided by the Owner to the Lessees is particularly described in the following
Appendices to this Addendum, which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as though set forth in
full:

SERVICES
Appendix A Security Services
Appendix B Street Cleaning
Appendix C Rubbish Removal
Appendix D Recreational
Appendix E Utilities (Services)
Appendix Q Management

FACILITIES

Appendix E, Utilities (Facilities)
Appendix F Aduit Clubhouse
Appendix G Adult Swimming Pool
Appendix H Family Clubhouse
Appendix | Family Swimming Pool
Appendix J ' Lake
Appendix K Laundry Facilities
Appendix L Storage Facility
Appendix M Recreational Areas
Appendix N Guest Parking
Appendix O Streets, Signs & Lighting
Appendix P Landscaping

3.3 SERVICES AND FACILITIES NOT WITHIN THE BASIC SERVICE LEVEL: :

Only the services and facilities specifically set forth in this Addendum constitute the Basic Service Level
The following listed facilities and services are specifically not for the use or enjoyment of the Lessee and do not
come within the Basic Service Level. These facilities are reserved for the sole and private use of the Owner in any
manner he sees fit.
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3.3.1 Maintenance Facilities:

The maintenance facilities include all areas used for the storage of Qwner’s tools, equipment, supplies and
materials used for the maintenance and operation of the Park and its facilities and which are not available for the
use of Lessee, including but not by way of limitation the restroom facilities located at the Northern laundry facility.

3.3.2 Tools, Supplies, Equipment and Vehicles:

All of Owner's tools, supplies, vehicles and equipment.

3.3.3 Management Facilities:

The management facilities, including the offices located in the adult and family clubhouses; the closets and
storerooms therein; the supplies and equipment, including office and duplicating machines; except, however, that the
Residents’ Social Club has use of certain storage rooms as provided in the Appendices.

3.3.4 Security Facilities:

The security facilities, including, but not limited to the entry gatehouse and the office in the family
clubhouse.

ARTICLE IV
LIMITATIONS APPLICABLE TO
BASIC SERVICE LEVEL

4. LIMITATIONS:
The Basic Service Level provided to Lessee, as specifically set forth in the this Addendum, s further
subject to the limitations set forth in this Article.

4.1 LESSEE'S ENTITLEMENTS:

Lessee’'s entitiement to the Basic Service Level is subject to the limitations and Lessee’s performance of his
obligations contained in the Lease and the Rules & Regulations of the Park, as they currently exist, or may be amended
pursuant to the law, together with any other obligations of Lessee as provided by law.

4.2 GUESTS/MINORS:

This Addendum creates absolutely no rights for any minors or Guests of Lessee. Their rights to services and
use of the facilities are derived from Lessee, but do not constitute any continuing right to use or enjoy facilities
or services.

4.3 MATTERS BEYOND OWNER'S CONTROL:

Owner shall be deemed to be providing the Basic Service Levei even though there is any failure, suspension,
stoppage or interruption of the use or enjoyment of services or facilities, or the repair, replacement, restoration or
maintenance thereof, caused by riots, strikes, labor disputes, fire, flood, earthquake, ground fauits or movement,
acts of God, accident, weather conditions, unavailability of materials, delays, or any other cause or causes beyond
the reasonable control of Ownaer. Moreover, it is Owner's right, in the event of any of the foregoing, to suspend or
discontinue any affected service or facility, during the continuance of any such event and that any such suspension or
discontinuance which affects any service or facility shall not be deemed or construed as a Reduction.

4.4 IMMATERIAL CHANGES IN BASIC SERVICE LEVEL:
Owner reserves the right to make immaterial alterations, changes, and substitutions and deletions
(“Immaterial Change”) in the Basic Service Level without liability for a Reduction.
4.4.1 Immaterial Change:
An immateriai change is any change which does not result in an unreasonable, material, and measurable
deprivation of the Basic Service Level, or any change required by law.
4.4.2 Examples:
Examples of immaterial changes are the following:
(a) A change in the Rules and Regulations by reason of a judicial decision affecting the “adult
only” provisions of the park.
(b) A change in the Rules and Regulations by reason of a change in law.
(c) A change in the Rules and Regulations to regulate behavior within the Park.
(d) A decision to substitute an employee or contractor for any reason.
(e) A change in the method of maintenance or timing of maintenance procedures.
(f) A substitution of like equipment, plants or accessories.

4.5 CONDUCT OF LESSEE:

Owner’'s obligation to provide the Basic Service Level does not include providing services or the use or
enjoyment of facilities when Lessee’s or any Guest's usage thereof reasonably exceeds the normal and customary usage,
or when Lessee or any Guest does some act which will in any way increase Owner's obligation to provide the Basic
Service Level.

4.6 CONDUCT OF OTHER RESIDENTS:

Owner's obligation to provide the Basic Service Level to Lessee includes enforcement of the Rules and
Regulations only to the extent provided in the Appendices. To the extent that the conduct of another resident or his
Guest causes _essee to be deprived of a service or the use or enjoyment of a facility, beyond enforcement by Owner in
accordance with the provisions in the Appendices, such conduct is a private matter between Lessee and such other
person and shall not be deemed a Reduction.

4.7 VOLUNTARY DISCONTINUANCE OF SERVICES OR FACILITIES:

Subject to the following provisions, in addition to the provisions of Paragraph 4.4 of this Addendum. Owner
may voluntarily elect to discontinue any material and measurable service or facility (except utilities) upon 60 days
written Notice of Intention to Discontinue to Lessee:
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4.7.1 Minimum and/or Non-use:

Owner shall be entitled to discontinue any service or facility, without liability for a Reduction, if there
is a significant decrease in the use or enjoyment of a service or facility by the residents of the Park.

4.7.2 Unforseen/Extnordinarv Expenses or Replacements:

Owner shall be entitled to discontinue any service or facility, without liability for a Reduction, if to
continue to provide and maintain a service or facility would require extraordinary or unforseen expense or cost of
replacement to the Owner. An extraordinary or unforseen expense or cost of replacement is deemed to exist if the
ensuing annual anticipated expenditures therefor are 250% more than the average annual amounts expended by the Own
over the three previous calendar years (to the extent records are available) for the facility or service.

4.7.3 Amount of Credit:

Should Owner elect to discontinue a service or facility under this Paragraph 4.7, Lessee shall be entitled
during the term of the Lease to a monthly credit equal to 1/12th of 1/618th of the average annual amounts expended by
Owner for the three previous calendar years (to the extent records are available) for the service or facility, which
credit shall be deemed full and complete compensation for the discontinued service or facility.

4.7.4 Notice of Intention to Discontinue:

Owner shall give Lessee not less than 60 days written notice of his Intention to Discontinue. In said Notice
Owner will specify the reason for the discontinuance and the amount of monthly credit which will be given to Lessee
during the term of the Lease as a result of the discontinuance.

4.7.5 Restoration of Basic Service Levei:

The discontinuance of a service or facility pursuant to this section shall not preclude Owner from restoring
the service or facility and thereupon eliminate the credit given.

ARTICLE V
SUPERVISION OF BASIC SERVICE LEVEL

5.1 SUPERVISION OF BASIC SERVICE LEVEL:

The services provided and the facilities to be maintained in the Basic Service Level shall be supervised by
Owner only in the manner and to the extent described in this Addendum and in the Appendices. So long as Owner
supervises in the manner set forth, then Owner shall be providing the agreed Basic Service Level, as to supervisory

obligations.

5.1.1 Termination of Contractor or Employee:
Owner shall, without liability for a Reduction, be entitled at any time and for any reason, to terminate and
substitute a contractor or employee. In the event of any such termination, then Owner shall be entitled to a

liability for Reduction.

ARTICLE Vi
MISCELLANEOUS

6.1 NEW SERVICES OR FACILITIES:
Owner shall, from time to time, be entitied to add new services or facilities and increase the Basic Service

Level. However, such voluntary conduct on Owner’s part shall not in any way compel Owner to continue any such added
services or facilities. A subsequent termination or discontinuance of a new service or facility shall not in any way
be deemed a Reduction.

6.2 CONSTRUCTION:
This Addendum shall be liberally construed as a whole and in accordance with its fair meaning and intent, the

captions being for convenience only and not intended to fully describe or define the provisions in the portions of the
Addendum to which they pertain. Any uncertainty or ambiguity, if any, existing herein shall not be interpreted against
either party but rather in accordance to the applicable rules for interpretation of contracts.
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APPENDIX A

SERVICE OR FACILITY: SECURITY SERVICES

BASIC LEVEL OF SERVICES OR FACILITIES:

The Owner shall provide a guard/security service to perform the following services for the Park. Owner shall
be deemed to have fulfilled and complied with its obligation to provide guards/security services if it hires a
licensed guard/security company which assigns its employees to duties specified herein for the following periods,
subject to reasonable breaks and emergencies:

Entry Guard:
24 hours Daily

In-Park Rover:
Monday through Friday
One 6 hour shift daily
Commencing between 7 and 9 PM

Saturday and Sunday

One 6 hour shift daily
Commencing at the end of the
Adult Clubhouse guard shift.

Adult Clubhouse Guard:
Saturday and Sunday
One 7 hour shift daily
Commencing between Noon & 1 PM

Family Clubhouse Guard:

Sept 10 through June 18

Saturday:
11 AM - 5 PM
6 -10 PM

Sunday: Closed

June 16 through Sept 9
Mon thru Sat:

11TAM -5 PM
6 -10PM

Sunday: Closed

DUTIES OF GUARD/SECURITY COMPANY

1. The entry guard shall be physically posted at the main entrance of the Park. His duties are to monitor
entry into the Park by residents and guests. He shall obtain the identification and destination of each non-resident
who seeks admission to the park, which information shall be maintained in an entry log containing the following
information: the date, time, name, license number, and destination. Upon obtaining the specified information from the
entrant, the guard shall issue to the entrant a temporary entry pass , which in the case of an admitted vehicle is to
be displayed in the front window. The entry pass shall state the following:

“PARKING ON THE STREETS IN THE MOBILEHOME PARK IS PROHIBITED. YOU MAY PARK ONLY
IN DESIGNATED GUEST PARKING FACILITIES UNLESS YOU ARE RESPONDING TO AN EMERGENCY
CONDITION, OR HAVE MADE PRIOR ARRANGEMENTS WITH THE MANAGER OF THE PARK. FAILURE
TO ABIDE BY THIS RULE AND REGULATION OF THE PARK WILL SUBJECT YOUR VEMICLE TO
IMMEDIATE TOW-AWAY, THE COST THEREOF TO BE PAID BY YOU PRIOR TO RELEASE OF YOUR
VEHICLE FROM A STORAGE FACILITY. THIS NOTICE IS GIVE TO YOU IN COMPLIANCE WITH
CALIFORNIA LAW. THE ADDRESS OF THE LOCATION OF YOUR STORED VEHICLE MAY BE
OBTAINED FROM THE MANAGER OR GUARD AT THE ENTRANCE TO THE PARK.”

2. The duties of the In-Park Rover are to drive through the Park during the times specified above. for
purposes of observing illegal or suspicious conduct in the nature of burglary or malicious mischief. The In-Park Rover
shall at least one time each evening, (i) drive through all of the streets in the Park; (ii) check the storage
facility to determine that the gate is locked and the perimeter fence and barbed-wire are intact; (iii) assure that
the family and adult clubhouses are locked at their closing time; (iv) assure that the family and adult swimming pools
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are locked at their closing times; (v) spot check 3 non-resident vehicles to determine if they are located at or near
the proximity of the deciared destination. The In-Park Rover shall also (a) visit the adult clubhouse twice each
evening prior to closing to determine whether minors or unauthorized persons are using the facility; if they are found
therein then the guard will request that they vacate the premises and report their names, if available, to the manager;
and (b) tag parking violations during his rounds and cause tow-away as provided in the Rules and Regulations. In this
regard, his duties are limited to calling the designated tow service and upon request informing a person whose car has
been towed of its location.

3. The duties of the adult clubhouse guard are to walk through the adult clubhouse facilities at least one
time per hour during the times set forth above to determine if unauthorized persons are using the facilities. The
adult clubhouse guard will have satisfied the Basic Service Level with respect to this duty by inquiring of a
suspected unauthorized person whether he is authorized to use the facilities and requesting unauthorized persons to
leave the facility. During time not required at the adult clubhouse, the adult clubhouse guard shall perform the
duties described in clauses 2(i), 2(v), and 2(b) of this Appendix A.

4. The family clubhouse guard is limited to the family clubhouse and adjacent areas with duties as follows:

(a) He is to observe that all persons are obeying the Park Rules & Regulations.

(b) He shall be deemed to have performed his services if he excludes from the clubhouse. on a
temporary basis, all persons, whether they are residents or guests, when they are disorderly or
causing destruction to the facilities.

(c) He is not obligated to supervise or assure the safety of all persons using the family swimming
pool. The swimming pool is an unsupervised facility use of which is subject to the limitations and
restrictions contained in the Park Rules & Regulations.

(d} He is obligated to monitor the facility to determine that it is not being used by unauthorized
persons. In this regard his duties are the same as the adult clubhouse guard with respect to
inquiry of suspected violators.

S. The guard/security personnel are not peace officers and they are neither obligated nor is it their duty to
perform any of the functions of a peace officer, including arrest or detention. Their duties are satisfied by
reporting suspicious activities observed by them to the San Jose Police Department, and by notifying Owner that such a
call was made to the Police. The security personnel are not Park employees, but rather, are independent contractors
performing guard/security services and duties as set forth above. They are not charged with the observation or
enforcement of any of the Park Rules & Regulations except as specifically set forth in this Appendix A.

6. The swing arm gate at the entrance is ineffective and inoperative. Owner shall not be liable for a
Reduction by discontinuance of its use.

7. Prior to January 15th of each year, Owner will re-issue to Lessee one vehicle sticker for each vehicle

registered with the Park.
SUPERVISION OF GUARD/SECURITY SERVICES:

Owner shall supervise the level of performance of the guard/security service in the following manner:

A. At least once a month determine that the entry gate guard is maintaining a visitors entry log.

B. Four times a month, twice during regular office hours, and twice between 7:00 p.m. and midnight,
drive through the Park for purposes of determining that parking violations are being reported.

C. Twice a month observe that the In-Park Rover is driving through the Park on his rounds.

D. Twice a month observe that the family clubhouse guard is supervising the conduct of persons in
the Family Clubhouse.

E. Twice a month observe that the adult clubhouse guard is monitoring the adult clubhouse, as
specified above.
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APPENDIX B8

SERVICE OR FACILITY: STREET CLEANING

SERVICE LEVEL:

The Owner shall provide a street sweeping service company to sweep the streets of the Park. Owner shall be
deemed to have fulfilled and complied with this obligation if it hires a company which regularly performs street
sweeping services once each week, subject to reasonable delays, holidays and weather conditions, and supervises the
service as provided herein.

DUTIES OF STREET SWEEPING SERVICE:

1. The street sweeping service shall sweep all of the streets within the Park. The duty to sweep is from
gutter to gutter for the removal of leaves, vegetation, and debris. It is acknowledged that mechanical means will be
‘employed by the service to perform this sweeping and that all leaves, vegetation, and debris cannot be removed.
However, notwithstanding the foregoing, the service will be required to utilize manual means at those particular areas
which cannot be generally swept with the automatic sweepers. )

2. It is acknowledged that weather conditions such as winds and rain immediately following a regularly
scheduled sweeping, may deposit an abnormal amount of debris in the streets. It shall not be deemed a Reduction to
allow these accumulations to remain in the street until the next regularly scheduled sweeping uniess the accumui an
is to the extent that a Lessee cannot gain access to his space in a motor vehicle. Iin such case, and upon notice ° n
the Lessee that such accumulation is preventing access to his space, the Owner will cause such accumuiated deb - to

be removed within a reasonable time.
3. It shall not be deemed a Reduction if the service company fails to remove vegetation or debris placed nto

the gutters by Lessee or any other resident.
SUPERVISION OF STREET SWEEPING SERVICES:

Once a month, following a street sweeping Owner shail determine that the sweeping has been performed as
outlined in “Duties” above.

APPENDIX C

SERVICE OR FACILITY: RUBBISH REMOVAL

BASIC LEVEL OF SERVICE OR FACILITIES:

The Owner shail employ a rubbish removal service company to remove the rubbish in the Park. Owner shail be
deemed to have fulfilled and complied with this obligation if it hires and supervises a company which regularly
performs rubbish removal services on the schedule provided herein as follows:

DUTIES OF RUBBISH REMOVAL SERVICE:

1. Once each week the rubbish removal service will pick up domestic refuse at the curb of each space. No
more than two appropriate covered containers, subject to a 40-pound weight limitation, shall be picked up at each
Space.

2. Three times each week refuse will be removed from the three 8 cubic yard trash bins located in the park
Following each pick-up of the trash bins, Owner will clean up any refuse not removed by the rubbish removal service;
provided, however, that Owner shall not be liable for a Reduction regarding overflow, cleanup or removal of refuse
improperly left by a resident in or around any bin, such as old matresses, furniture or appliances. With respect to
residents, such bins are provided for the collection of a resident’s vegetation refuse, and for no other purpose. With
respect to Owner, the bins may be used for any purpose.

SUPERVISION OF RUBBISH REMOVAL SERVICES:

Twice a month. Owner shall observe that the services are being performed as described in Paragraphs 1 and 2.
above.
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APPENDIX D
SERVICE OR FACILITY: RECREATIONAL SERVICES

BASIC LEVEL OF SERVICES OR FACILITIES:

The Owner provides the following recreational or social services to the residents of the Park, and no othars:
A. 6 - 16-20 Ib. turkeys at Thanksgiving.
B. 50 Ibs. of uncooked boneless hams at Christmas.
C. Owner will coordinate a schedule for special use of recreational facilities, including
clubhouses, to minimize conflicts.

The use of the recreational facilities, more particularly described in Appendices F through P. inclusive, are
available for resident use. None of the activities, either social, business, or recreational are supervised by Owner.
All organized activities, if any, are by the Residents themselves.

Lessee is obligated to inform all his/her Guests that the use of the facilities are not supervised and that
each person who utilizes the facilities must abide by the written Rules and Regulations of the Park as well as all
posted notices in or about the facilities.

L 4 APPENDIX E
SERVICE OR FACILITY: UTILITIES

BASIC LEVEL OF SERVICES OR FACILITIES:

The Owner shall continue to maintain the utility distribution systems in and about the Park, including the
water distribution system, electrical distribution system, gas distribution system, sewage distribution system and
existing in-park 8-channel cable television system.

These utility systems made available to the residents of the Park as provided in the Lease are subject to the
limitations contained therein, as well as the limitations within the Park Rules and Regulations.

The utility systems are, however, subject to break down. Upon notification, Owner will take all reasonable
steps necessary to restore services.

Moreover, all the utilities systems shall be maintained in their current configuration, except that said
systems will be updated or modified only in compliance with the final order or judgment of any appropriate
governmental agency requiring upgrading, or upgraded at the Owner’s discretion.
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APPENDIX F

SERVICE OR FACILITY: ADULT CLUBHOUSE

BASIC LEVEL OF SERVICE OR FACILITIES:

So long as California and federal law permits mobilehome parks to provide adult only facilities, and subject
to the limitations contained in the Lease and the Rules & Regulations, the Owner shall maintain the adult clubhouse
for use by adult residents of the Park and their authorized guests each day from 8:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, use of the adult clubhouse and some or all of its facilities may be restricted for
maintenance, repairs, refurbishment and when reserved for special occasions, as more particularly provided in the
Rules & Regulations.

Subject to the limitations on use provided in the Rules & Regulations, the following facilities within the
aduit clubhouse are available for the use of all adult residents of the Park and their authorized adult guests:

1. Kitchen and Cooking Facilities:

The following appliances are available to residents: double oven, grill, garbage disposal, one table and
four chairs (no utensils supplied); for speciai use, the facility and appliances are subject to a reasonable deposit
and charge for clean up.

2. Coffee Room: (adjacent to kitchen)

This facility inciudes a refrigerator, four tables and twelve chairs.

3. Card Room:

The facility includes four tables and sixteen chairs; facility shall not be used for any illegal activities.

4 Billiard Room:

This facility includes six stools, three pool tables, one bumper pool table and other existing pool room
equipment. The facility shall not be used for any illegal activities and is further limited to the specific rules for
use posted in the Billiard Room.

8. Beauty Shop/Room:

This facility/service is operated by an independent operator for in-park and out-of-park customers. The loss
of such facility shall in no way be deemed to be a Reduction and does not obligate Owner to replace the same service,
or any similar type or substitute in the event of cancellation, or to utilize said space upon cancellation for the use
or benefit of the residents.

6. Men’s and Women's Sauna: )

The saunas shail be kept in a clean and usable condition as more particularly set forth in the following:

(a) The saunas shall be cleaned and swept twice each month.

(b) The equipment shall be maintained in accordance with state and local law pertaining to semi-
public saunas, if any.

(c) Owner shall, twice a month, following a regular cleaning and sweeping, observe the saunas to
determine that the foregoing duties and standards have been met.

7. Main Assembly Hall:

This facility includes a stage, operational public address system, piano, U.S. flag, and coat rack. The main
assembly hall in the adult clubhouse is available for non-business and non-religious purposes of residents during the
adult clubhouse hours (or as may be arranged with Owner), subject to reservation for use and deposits for cleaning.

8. Restrooms:

Two separate men’s and two separate women's facilities are available. One of the men’s facilities and one of
the women'’s facilities includes two operating showers adjacent to each of the saunas.

9. Jescuzxi Room:

The facility includes two redwood benches. The jacuzzi shall be kept in a clean and usable condition as more
particularly set forth in the following:

(a) The jacuzzi shall be cleaned and swept during the period of high use twice each week. During
period of low use (October 1 through April 1), the jacuzzi shall be cleaned and swept once each
week.

(b) The chemical levels shall be maintained in accordance with state and local law pertaining to
semi-public jacuzzis. .

{c) Managument shall, at least twice 8 month, following a regular cleaning and sweeping, observe the
jacuzzi to determine that the foregoing duties and standards have been met.

(d) Ouring the hours that the jacuzzi is open the temperature shall be maintained at 102 degrees

(F), plus or minus 2 degrees.

10. Exerciss Room:

This facility contains the foilowing equipment for residents’ use: one treadmill, one exercycle and the
existing Universal Gym Machine (including slantboard, bench and stool).

11. Bulletin Boards:

The bulletin boards are for use as follows:

(a) Kitchen Bulletin Board: For general Park non-political and non-business use including recognized
residents’ associations.

(b) The Bulletin Board in the Conference Room is for the sole use of the GSMOL Chapter located at
the Park.

12 Conference Room:

This facility includes three tables, eight chairs and two book shelves; the conference room in the adult
clubhouse is available for non-business and non-religious purposes of rasidents during the aduit clubhouse hours,
subject to reservation for use. '

13. Lounge/T.V. Room:

This facility includes one 25 inch color television set, one love seat, four chairs, one coffee table, one
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plant table, and one smail game table with two chairs.

14. Storage Rooms:

The storage room, adjacent to the manager’s office, is for Owner's storage, including tables, chairs and
ladders for use with the Main Assembly Room; Residents’ Social Club shall be entitied to also store equipment and
supplies used for park-wide activities. The cloak room, across the hallway from the Beauty Shop, is for storage of
card tables and game tables. The storage room at the south end of the stage is available for use by the Social Club.
The storage room at the north end of the stage is for limited Social Club use.

15. Public Telephone:

The public telephone located in the south haliway, is available for the general use of residents; this
telephone is owned by the telephone company and its continued availability is subject to the phone company's
discretion, and shall not constitute a Reduction should it be removed by said company.

16. Drinking Fountain:

The drinking fountain located in the south hallway shall remain available for the general use of residents.

1. Outdoor Fountain:

This illuminated fountain and pool in front of the main entrance will be lighted from dusk to 10 PM.

DUTIES OF MAINTENANCE:

1. Twice a week Owner will do routine cleaning consisting of sweeping and/or mopping and vacuuming floors,
dusting furniture, wiping counters, cleaning sinks and drinking fountain, emptying waste containers, washing ash
trays, sanitizing restrooms, cleaning mirrors, refilling dispensers, and dusting and vacuuming pool tables.

2. Once every month, Owner will do routine monthly cleaning consisting of dusting light fixtures, window
ledges, window blinds, cleaning mirrors in conference room, buffing and polishing floors, and cleaning and polishing
chrome stove hoods.

3. In addition to the foregoing, windows shall be washed quarterly and twice a year Owner will strip and wax
the restroom and kitchen floors. At least once every year, Owner will strip and wax the floor of the main assembly
room and the halls.

4. The outdoor fountain will be drained and cleaned quarterly. Granulated “"Cutrime-Plus,” “Bluestone” or
equivalent chemicals will be used once a month.

SUPERVISION OF ADULT CLUBHOUSE FACILITIES:
Once each month, following the routine cleaning, management will inspect the adult clubhouse facilities to
determine that the maintenance as set forth above is being performed.

APPENDIX G

SERVICE OR FACILITY: ADULT SWIMMING POOL

BASIC LEVEL OF SERVICES OR FACILITIES:

So long as California and federal law permits mobilehome parks to provide adult only facilities, the Owner
shall maintain the swimming pool adjacent to the adulit clubhouse for use by adult residents and their adult Guests.
Subject to periods of cleaning, maintenance and restoration, the pool shall be open each day from 9:00 a.m. to 10:00
p.m. (during the period commencing April 1 through September 30) and shall be heated to a temperature of at least 76
degrees (F), plus or minus 2 degrees, and from 9:00 a.m. to 10:00 P.m. upon request (during the period commencing
October 1 through March 31) and shall be heated to a temperature of at least 72 degrees (F), plus or minus 2 degrees.
Owner will post a sign specifying the pool hours. In addition, Owner will provide the following: outdoor furniture,
consisting of three tables with umbrellas, eight lounge chairs and seven chairs, and six benches; outdoor shower and
drinking fountain; the existing thermal pool cover (without obligation to use or replace); and the existing emergency
equipment and pool safety rule signs. Owner will light the pool area from dusk to dawn.

There is no lifeguard on duty at the swimming pool. Lessee is obligated to inform all his/her Guests that the
use of the facilities are not supervised and that each person who utilizes the facilities must abide by the written
Rules and Regulations of the Park as well as all posted notices in or about the facilities.

DUTIES OF MAINTENANCE:

The swimming pool shall be kept in a clean and serviceable condition as more particularly set forth in the
following:

1. The pool shall be cleaned and swept during the months commencing April 1 through September twice each
week. During period of low use (October 1 through March 31), the pool shaill be cleaned and swept once each week.

2. The chemical levels shall be maintained in accordance with state and local law pertaining to semi-public
swimming pools.

SUPERVISION OF ADULT SWIMMING POOL:

Owner, shall, at least twice a month, following a regular cleaning and sweeping, inspect the swimming pool
and adjacent area to determine that the foregoing duties and standards have been met.
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APPENDIX H

SERVICE OR FACILITY: FAMILY CLUBHOUSE

BASIC LEVEL OF SERVICE OR FACILITIES:

Subject to periods of cleaning, maintenance and restoration, the limitations contained in the Rental/Lease
Agreement and the Rules & Regulations, the Park shall provide the family clubhouse for the use by all residents of the
Park and their authorized Guests each day according to the following schedule:

Sept 10 through June 15
Mon. thru Thurs:
2 -5PM
6 -9PM

Friday:
2 -5PM
6 -10 PM

Saturday:
11 AM - S PM
6 -10 PM

Sunday: Closed

June 16 through Sept 9
Mon thru Sat:
1MTAM -5PM
6 -10PM

Sunday: Closed

However, use of the family clubhouse and some or all of its facilities may be restricted for maintenance,
repairs, refurbishment and when reserved for special occasions.

Subject to the limitations on use provided in the Rules & Regulations, the following facilities within the
family clubhouse are available:

1. Kitchen and Cooking Facilities:
The following appliances are available to residents: stove, refrigerator and garbage disposal, (no
utensils supplied). For special use, the facility and appliances are subject to a reasonable deposit
and charge for clean up.

2. Billiard Room:
This facility includes two pool tables with appropriate existing equipment. The facility shaall not be
used for illegal activities and is further limited to any specific rules for use posted in the Billiard
Room.

3. Game Room:
The facility includes one ping-pong table (with equipment for two players).

4. Restrooms:
A separate men's and women's facility is available.

§. Storage Rooms:
The storage rooms in the family clubhouse are available only for use of Owner and recognized resident
associations.

6. Main Assembly Hail:
This facility includes one 25 inch color television set and furniture consisting of two sofas.

DUTIES OF MAINTENANCE:

1. Twice a week Owner will do routine cleaning consisting of sweeping and/or mopping and vacuuming floors,
dusting furniture, wiping counters, cleaning sinks and drinking fountain, emptying waste containers, washing ash
trays, sanitizing restrooms, cleaning mirrors, refilling dispensers, and dusting and vacuuming pool tables.

2. Once every month, Owner will do routine monthly cleaning consisting of dusting light fixtures, window
ledges, window blinds, buffing and polishing floors, and cleaning stove hood.

3. In addition to the foregoing, Owner will wash windows quarterly and twice a year strip and wax the
restroom and kitchen floors. At least once every vear, Owner will strip and wax the floor of the main assembly room
and the halls.

SUPERVISION OF FAMILY CLUBHOUSE FACILITIES:

Once each month, following the routine cleaning, Owner will inspect the family clubhouse to determine that
the maintenance as set forth above is being performed.
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APPENDIX 1|
SERVICE OR FACILITY: FAMILY SWIMMING POOL

BASIC LEVEL OF SERVICES OR FACILITIES:

The Owner shall provide the swimming pool adjacent to the family clubhouse for the use of all residents and
their Guests. Subject to periods of cleaning, maintenance and restoration, from April 1 through September 30. the pool
shall be open each day from 9:00 am to 9:30 pm. The pool shall be closed from October 1 to March 31. Owner will post
the hours of operation. During periods of use the temperature shall be maintained at 72 degrees (F), plus or minus 2
degrees.

In addition, Owner will also maintain the existing emergency equipment and pool safety rules signs. Night
lighting of the pool area will be from dusk to dawn. Owner is not obligated to provide a thermal cover for the family
pool. No pool or patio furniture is available.

DUTIES OF MAINTENANCE:

The swimming pool shall be kept in a clean and serviceable condition as more particularly set forth in the
following:

1. The pool shall be cleaned and swept twice each week, from April 1 to September 30, and at least once each
month from October 1 to March 31.

2. The chemical levels shall be maintained in accordance with state and local law pertaining to semi-public
swimming pools.

SUPERVISION OF FAMILY SWIMMING POOL:
Owner shall, at least twice a month, following a regular cleaning and sweeping, inspect the swimming pool and

adjacent area to determine that the foregoing duties and standards have been met.

APPENDIX J
SERVICE OR FACILITY: LAKE

BASIC LEVEL OF SERVICES OR FACILITIES:
The Owner shall provide the existing lake for the aesthetic enjoyment of residents. Swimming, boating or

fishing is not permitted. Lake will be maintained at its current level, subject to subterranean seepage and
evaporation. Aiso included are the existing lake fountaing and waterfall, with night lighting from dusk to 10 pm.

DUTIES OF MAINTENANCE:

1. Owner will, once a month, skim off the excessive loose growth and debris from the surface of the lake. The
lake is a natural bottom type; it is normal and usual for accumulations of algae and other lake growth to float upon
the surface. This growth does, at times, particularly during the warm weather months, discharge a certain amount of
odor.

2. Owner will, once a month, add appropriate amounts of granulated “Cutrime—-Plus” or Bluestone”, and
“Symazine” or equivalent chemicals to the lake.

3. Owner will, at least once every 2 weeks, replace any burned-out spot lights in and around the lake.

4. Owner will maintain, subject to interruption of service caused by renovation and repairs, the lake
fountains and waterfall in a serviceable condition.

5. Owner shall not be liable for a Reduction as a resuit of debris deposited into the lake by lakeside
residents or the failure of lakeside residents to clean their spaces of weeds adjacent to the lake.

6. Water seepage which measurably interferes with an adjoining resident’s use of space will be corrected.

SUPERVISION OF LAKE:
Owner will inspect the lake at least once a month to determine that the fountains and waterfall are

functioning properly and that the foregoing duties and standards have been met.
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APPENDIX K

SERVICE OR FACILITY: LAUNDRY ROOMS

BASIC LEVEL OF SERVICES OR FACILITIES:

Subject to the limitations of the agreements with the contractor of laundry room services. including the
right of termination, Owner will provide three laundry rooms for coin-operated washing and drying machines. Owner or
contractor may reduce the number of machines because of a reduction in their use. The charge for operation of the
machines is subject to change at the discretion of Owner or contractor.

DUTIES OF MAINTENANCE:

1. Owner will clean the laundry rooms twice each week. Cleaning will consist of wiping off the tops of the
appliances and mopping the floors. Cleaning of the appliance fiiters is the obligation of each user.

2. Once every 3 months, Owner will remove excess dust from the room and wash and clean the windows.

SUPERVISION OF LAUNDRY ROOM FACILITIES:
Once each month, following the routine cleaning, Owner will inspect the laundry rooms to determine that the
maintenance as set forth above is being performed.

APPENDIX L
SERVICE OR FACILITY: STORAGE FACILITY

BASIC LEVEL OF SERVICES OR FACILITIES:

Owner shall provide an outdoor Storage Facility at the southwest corner of the Park for the uses provided in
the Park’s standard storage agreement, and for no other reasons. The Storage Facility shall be fenced and lighted from
dusk to dawn. Access to the Storage Facility is by key, issued to the user by Owner. It is the user’'s responsibility
to lock the gate after each use.

Owner does not assure or guarantee the security of the facility. Any loss or damage to any person’s property
within the storage area is at the user's risk.

DUTIES OF MAINTENANCE:

1. In May of each year, Owner will cause the appropriate areas of the storage facility to be sprayed with a
weed abatement chemical. Maintenance shall include repair of the existing perimeter fence and barbed-wire and
replacement of floodlights, as needed. This is the only maintenance which will be performed within the Storage
facility.

2. Upon written notice of deficiencies, Owner will commence repairs within five (5) business days.

SUPERVISION OF STORAGE FACILITIES:

Following the annual weed abatement spraying, Owner will semi-annually observe that the chemical has been
effective to control the growth of weeds, and once a month Owner will observe that the foregoing duties and standards
have been met.
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APPENDIX M

SERVICE OR FACILITY: OUTDOOR RECREATIONAL FACILITIES

BASIC LEVEL OF SERVICES OR FACILITIES:
Owner will provide the following outdoor recreational facilities:

putting green

tennis court
multi-purpose court
shuffleboard courts
children’s playground
two barbeque grills
patio area

horseshoe area

There is no supervisor on duty at any of the outdoor facilities. Lessee is obligated to inform his/her Guests
that the facilities are not supervised and that each person who uses the facilities must abide by the written Rules
and Regulations of the Park as well as all posted notices in or about the facilities.

DUTIES OF MAINTENANCE:

1. All accumulated debris on these facilities will be removed once each month, or as needed.

2. The basketball and tennis court nets will be replaced only when they are no longer serviceable, regardless
of their aesthetic appearance. The nets may be constructed of metal and are not required to meet any of the
requirements of any sports sanctioning body.

3. The surface of the courts, except shuffleboard, will be replaced or repaired only if they contain potholes
or are buckling. Existing markings on courts will be renewed as needed.

4. The fencing around the playing courts will be maintained in its existing condition.

5. The surface of the putting green will be swept once a month and washed twice a year as needed. Flags are
not provided.

6. The children’s playground will be maintained in its existing condition.

7. Lighting: Existing night lighting for use of the multi-purpose court, tennis court, shuffleboard courts,
and patio area will be available upon prior request from dusk to 10:00 PM.

8. The surfaces of the shuffleboard courts will be sealed and marked as needed. Owner will provide equipment
sufficient for eight (8) players.

9. The patio area consists of a gas operated fire pit, two natural gas barbeque units, three tables with
three umbreilas and ten chairs, and will be maintained in a useable condition.

10. Owner will provide existing horseshoe equipment.

11. Subject to deposits, recreational equipment is available from the manager’s office only during regular
office hours.

SUPERVISION OF RECREATIONAL FACILITIES:

Once a month Owner will inspect the outdoor recreational facilities to determine that maintenance of the
facility as outlined above is being performed and that the condition of the surfaces and fences meets the requirements
specified herein.

APPENDIX N

SERVICE OR FACILITY: GUEST PARKING

BASIC LEVEL OF SERVICES OR FACILITIES:

The Owner shall provide the existing guest parking spaces for use by Guests Lessee Is permitted to use Guest
Parking spaces adjacent to the clubhouse and recreational facilities only during the hours that the particular
clubhouse or recreational facility 1s being used by Lessee.

SUPERVISION OF GUEST PARKING:

Owner will on two (2) unannounced occasions rdch month. observe the guest pa:rking areas to determine whether
or not the parking rules are being violated.
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APPENDIX O

SERVICE OR FACILITY: STREETS, LIGHTING, SIGNS, FENCES

BASIC LEVEL OF SERVICES OR FACILITIES:

The Owner shall provide the current existing internal street system for ingress and egress. In addition the
Owner will also provide all exterior common area lights, light sensors, signs and present common area fences, only as
follows:

Each of the streets will be marked with a street name sign. These streets are not dedicated public streets
and the street designations are for the convenience of residents and their Guests. Existing stop signs will be
maintained in a serviceable condition.

DUTIES OF MAINTENANCE:

1. The streets or any portion thereof, will be repaired, resealed, or slurried at such time as Owner
determines that the conditions are preventing a resident from reasonable ingress or egress into his Space or
constitutes a road hazard. Repairs will be commenced within fifteen business days after written notice. Areas of
hazard will be posted within two business days of written notice, if deemed necessary by Owner.

2. Timer controls for exterior common area lights will be adjusted seasonally to correspond with scheduled
lighting hours.

3. Burned-out lights and inoperable sensors will be replaced or repaired within § working days after
discovery.

SUPERVISION OF FACILITIES

1. Owner will twice a year observe that all of the street signs and markings are legible.

2. Once sach week, Owner will observe that exterior common area lights are working properly.

3. Once each calendar quarter, Owner will inspect the fences and repair all significant damage within two
weeks.

APPENDIX P

SERVICE OR FACILITY: LANDSCAPING SERVICES

BASIC LEVEL OF SERVICE OR FACILITIES:

The Owner shall provide a landscaping service company to care for the vegetation of the common areas in the
park. Owner shall be deemed to have fulfilled and complied with this obligation if it hires and supervises a company
which performs landscaping services as provided herein.

DUTIES OF LANDSCAPING SERVICE:
1. The duty of the landscaping service is to maintain the aesthetic appearance of the vegetation of the
common areas in the Park.
Lessee has the obligation to maintain all of the vegetation upon his/her Space as provided in the Rules and

Regulations. The following duties shall be performed by the landscape company:

A Water as needed and mow the grass once a week during seasons of rapid growth, and every other

week during seasons of slow growth.

B. Remove weeds and debris from common areas once a month during seasons of rapid growth and once

every other month during siow growth seasons.

C. Trim bushes and shrubs growing in common areas twice a year, including trimming bushes which

- obstruct visibility of stop signs and street signs, or interfere with the illumination of common

area street lights.

D. Except for perimeter eucalyptus trees, trim common area trees once every two years if such

trimming is necessary.

E. Cut and remove those perimeter Eucalyptus tree limbs that are touching Lessee's mobilehome or are

interfering with Lessee’s use of the Space. Interference with Lessee’'s use of the Space shail be

deemed to have occurred if a branch and its leaves are less than six feet above ground. Lessee

shaill remove perimeter Eucalyptus tree droppings and debris. '

F. Replace the flowering plants at the Park entrance and clubhouses with the same or similar type

plants during the seasonal planting period.

SUPERVISION OF LANDSCAPE SERVICES:

Owner shall at least once a month observe that the landscape service is performing the duties as set forth
above.
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APPENDIX Q

SERVICE OR FACILITY: MANAGEMENT SERVICES

BASIC LEVEL OF SERVICES OR FACILITIES:

The Owner shall provide the following contractors or empioyees to perform the designated duties and services
as set forth hereinafter. Owner shall be deemed to have fulfilled and complied with its obligation to provide
Management Services if it hires the personnel listed herein, for the hours indicated. and who perform the designated
duties:

Hours Per Day Days of Services

Manager:

8 Monday through Friday
Office Assistant:

8 same as Manager
Maintenance Supervisor:

8 same as Manager
Maintenance Assistant:

4q same as Manager

The office hours are Monday through Friday
9 AM to Noon
1PM to 6 PM

DUTIES OF MANAGEMENT:

The services provided by Owner to the residents are the following, and no other:

1. To deliver a monthly statement of individual rent, utilities and other charges set forth in the Lease. The
statement shall be mailed or delivered to the Resident’'s notice tube.

2. To be reasonably available during office hours to receive rent and other charges and/to discuss the same,
and to receive notices concerning alleged Reductions.

3. Supervise the services and facilities in accordance with the schedules set forth in Appendices A through
P, inclusive. The Park manager shall supervise the performance and duties of other Park personnel as set forth in this
Appendix.

4. The manager shall meet and consult with residents, and/or their representatives, as provided in the
Mobilehome Residency Law. Moreover, the manager is specifically authorized to represent the interests of Owner in the
Dispute Resolution Procedures, including the power to settle all matters with residents, and to fully make decisions
affecting the operation of the Park, as may be specifically authorized from time to time.

5. Subject to the "meet and consult” requirements of the Mobilehome Residency Law, neither Owner nor the
Manager are required to participate in or attend any resident meetings, including meetings of the Tenants Advisory
Committee.

6. Upon written request, Owner will provide recognized resident associations with a list of names and
addresses of those Lessees who have moved into the Park within the prior six months, subject to requests for privacy.

7. Once a month during regular business hours, Owner will permit inspection of Manager’'s Supervisory Log of
Services and Facilities.

DUTIES OF OFFICE ASSISTANT:
1. The Office Assistant shall perform the duties of the manager during the manager’'s absence, except as may

be limited by Owner.

DUTIES OF MAINTENANCE:

1. It is the duty of the maintenance personnel to perform the services of monitoring, maintenance, repair,
and restoration of the facilities under the supervision of the manager as more particularly set forth in those
Appendices dealing with Park performed maintenance. The maintenance personnel are not subject to direction or duty
assignments from residents, and are not designated to receive any type of notice or notification provided to be given
by residents to Owner; notices given to them for any purpose shall be ineffective.

SUPERVISION OF MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL:

1. The supervision of ail park personnel, shall be the responsibility of the Park Manager. Supervision of the
Park Manager shall be the responsibility of the Owner. Any notice concerning the Park Manager shall be in writing and
mailed to Owner at 11340 West Olympic Boulevard, Suite 330, Los Angeles, California 30064, or such other address
designated by Owner, and a copy shall be retained by sender.

ENFORCEMENT OF PARK RULES & REGULATIONS:

1 Responsibility ot Lessee: It 1s the responsibility of Lessee 1o know and obey i Park Rules &
Regulations Lessee 1s also responsible for informing his-her minor  children and Guesit ot tre Park Rules 3
Regulations and shall be heid responsible for the conduct Gt same. In the event that Laossee suspects or (datermines

that an unauthorized person is utilizing any Facihities. or that any resident, or his Guest s violating the Park
Rules, then it is Lessee's obligation to notify Owner.
2. Responsibility of Management: Upon written notice to Owner by Lessee as to any possible violation of the
Rules by other residents or Guests, Management shall make a reasonable investigation of the complaint, inciuding, f
appropriate under the circumstances, a visit to the place or location where the problem or condition is said to exist
3. Discretion of Owner: in the event of any violation of the Rules by any resident, Owner shall be deemed to
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have complied with its obligations to enforce the Rules by giving a “Violation Citation” as described in Paragraph
3(b), below. Any other enforcement of the Rules up to and including the commencement of civil litigation, shall be
within the discretion of Owner, and Lessee shall have no right to compel Owner to take any action other than issuance
of a Violation Citation. This discretion to enforce the Rules shall be exercised in accordance with law. If upon
making a good faith investigation of a written complaint, any action taken thereon, or a decision not to take any
action, shall be written into Park records and shall be available for examination by the complaining resident, subject
to ail legal limitations concerning rights of privacy.

(a) Owner may, in its discretion, inform a resident in a private, informal manner that a violation

or potential violation exists and offer advice in an effort to alleviate the problem. It is only if

private and informal discussions (if conducted) do not remedy the Owner. in its discretion, will

issue a Violation Citation.

(b) As a part of its enforcement policy and commensurate with the severity of the problem existing

at the time of a written complaint, Owner will give to the offending resident a Violation Citation.

A Violation Citation requires a cessation of the prohibited conduct or correction of a prohibited

condition within the time specified in the notice.

(c) Nothing contained in this Paragraph 3 shall be a precondition to Owner's exercise of its rights

and remedies provided in law or equity, including eviction.
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SECOND ADDENDUM TO LEASE AGREEMENT
CASA DEL LAGO MOBILEHOME PARK
DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCEDURE

THIS SECOND ADDENDUM to Lease Agreement, made by and between San Jose Investments, Ltd, a California
Limited Partnership, doing business as Casa Del Lago Mobilehome Park [the “Owner”] and the resident of Casa Del Lago
Mobilehome Park, whose name appears on the Lease to which this Addendum is attached [the “Lessee’] shall be effective
as of the Effective Date of the Lease and shall provide for a dispute resolution procedure as is more fully described
below.

ARTICLE |
GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 DEFINITIONS.

The terms used in the Second Addendum shall be governed by the definitions set forth in the Lease. the First
Addendum thereto ["Basic Service Level”] and all exhibits and attachments thereto and, in addition, by the following
definitions:

1.1.1 "Claim” means a written allegation of a dispute specifying those matters subject to
mediation/arbitration as provided in Paragraph 1.4 of this Article.

1.1.2 "Claimant” refers to either Lessee or Owner, whichever the case may be, who is making a Claim.

1.1.3 "Respondent” refers to aeither Lessee or Owner, whichever the case may be, who is the party against whom
a Claim is made.

1.1.4 "Dispute Resolution Procedure” or the “Procedure” means a two-stage mediation and arbitration process
which is intended to resoive Claims and which is contained in this Addendum.

1.1.5 “Reduction” means a material, measurable and unreasonable deprivation of Lessee’s Basic Service Level
caused by an act or omission of Owner.

1.2 DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCEDURE - PURPOSE.

As part of the Lease Agreement, the parties thereto hereby create a Dispute Resolution Process to resolve
Claims. The Procedure is intended to provide a fair, speedy and inexpensive process through which Claims can be
resolved, and one which is specifically tailored to the needs of the Owner and residents of Casa del Lago Mobilehome
Park, San Jose, California. This Procedure, and the Lease of which it is a part, are contractual in nature and formed
by agreement between Owner and Lessee, and are intended to be substituted for the Rental Dispute Mediation and
Arbitration Hearing Process, provided in Chapter 17.23, San Jose Municipal Code. As a material element of the Lease,
Owner and Lessee agree to use this Procedure exclusively to resolve all Reductions and other disputes over all matters
which could otherwise be considered in the said San Jose hearing process. Owner is only willing to enter into the
dispute resolution mechanism set forth in this Addendum so long as it is understood by all that the cure periods,
notice provisions and other provisions contained in this Addendum are to be followed strictly in order to give Owner
and Lessee sufficient opportunity to remedy any “Claim”. Owner is only willing to enter into the Lease. and follow the
rent levels established in Exhibits A & B thereto, so long as the provisions of this Addendum are valid and
enforceable in their entirety.

1.3 PERSONS WHO CAN USE THE DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCEDURE.
Only Owner and residents bound by a rental agreement containing this Addendum [hereinafter the “lessees’] can
use . the Procedure in the manner and to the extent provided for elsewhere in this Addendum.

1.4 CLAIMS WITHIN THE DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCEDURE.

Claims within the Procedure must arise out of the Lease between Owner and Lessee and are limited to the
following matters:

1.4.1. By Lessee, any alleged Reduction, including any Claim of Housing Code violations.

1.4.2. By Owner, any alleged violation of the Park Rules and Regulations.

1.4.3. By Owner, any “Rent increase Pass-Through” concerning a rent increase noticed by Owner pursuant to
Paragraph A.3 of Exhibit A to Lease.

1.4.4 By Owner, any “Discontinuance”, or dispute concerning the amount of rent credit upon discontinuance, as
provided in Paragraph 4.7 of the First Addendum to Lease.

1.5 CLAIMS NOT WITHIN THE DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCEDURE.

Without limitation, the following matters are specifically excluded from the Procedure:

1.5.1 Claims of personal injury or property damage based on alleged negligence, recklessness or intentional
misconduct of any person;

1.5.2 Claims of consequential personal injuries or property damage alleged to be suffered from Reductions, or
violations of housing codes or the Rules and Regulations including, without limitations, such matters as pain and
suffering, annoyance, emotional distress and the like and such matters as diminuation of the value of Lessee's
Mobilehome;

153 Claims for exemplary or punitive damages arising from intentional misconduct of any party. including.
without himitation, fraud, malice. oppression, deceit, bad faith, and the like.

154 Claims over non-payment, partial payment or late payment of rent;

15.5 Any dispute which alleges that Owner should abate a Reduction by reconstruction. rehabilitation.
rebuilding or making any other capital expenditure; and

1.5.6 Claims made by one lessee against another.
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1.6 OWNER'S RIGHT TO USE PROCEDURE FOR ALLEGED VIOLATIONS OF RULES AND REGULATIONS.

Owner shall have the right, but not the obligation, to use this Procedure to mediate and/or arbitrate, or
abritrate directly, Claims against Lessee for alleged violations of Park Rules and Regulations, provided, however,
Owner may withdraw any such Claim at any time and proceed against Lessee according to law Owner's refusal to use the
Procedure or withdrawal from the Procedure for any alleged violation of the Park Rules and Regulations may not be
asserted by Lessee as a defense or abatement, in any way, in any action at law or equity.

1.7 NON-SUSPENSION OF RENT AND CHARGES.

Neither the filing of a Claim, nor the pendency of any Claim in the Procedure, shall give a right to suspend
or offset any rent or charges payable by Lessee to Owner. Any Notices by Owner pursuant to Paragraph A 3 of Exhibit A
of the Lease which requires Lessee to pay increased rent are due and payable on the date noticed for such increase,
provided however, that reimbursements may be ordered by the Hearing Officer in an arbitration award. as provided
herein.

1.8 ARBITRATION HEARINGS.

There shall be one regularly scheduled mediation/arbitration hearing, or one series of connected
mediation/arbitration hearings, within a 60-day period. A regularly scheduled hearing shall occur on the first Tuesday
of each even numbered month. All Claims which have been filed thirty days prior to that date shall be heard in that
hearing. To the extent possible, hearings shall continue on a consecutive day-to-day basis. Claims filed after the
thirty-day deadline shall be heard at the next scheduled hearing.

1.9 SELECTION OF HEARING OFFICER AND COSTS.

1.9.1 Selection and Replacement of Hearing Officer:

(a) Owner shall retain the services of a Hearing Officer for continuous six-month periods, if possible.

At least 30 days prior to the commencement of each six-month period, Owner shall post on the kitchen bulletin board in
the adult clubhouse a notice specifying the name and resume of the Hearing Officer selected for each such period.

(b) The Lessee may challenge the selected Hearing Officer without cause within 15 days following the
posting of Owner’'s notice by giving written notice of such challenge to Owner signed by lessees who constitute 20% of
the spaces in the Park. In such event Ownar shall select a new Hearing Officer within 15 days.

(c) Should Owner not select a Hearing Officer, then either party may seek the selection of a Hearing
Officer pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure Section 1281.6 of the California Arbitration Act.

(d) Notwithstanding the foregoing, either party may challenge the Hearing Officer for any hearing upon
the grounds of bias, prejudice or competency. Unless otherwise provided by law, such challenge must be made by a motion
prior to the commencement of any mediation/arbitration. If all other parties join in such motion, then it shall be
deemed an agreement between the parties and the Hearing Officer shall immediately withdraw from that particular
hearing.

(i) If the party making the challenge gives all other parties at least 10 days advance notice of his
intention to challenge the Hearing Officer as provided in (d) above. then if such challenge is
successful, or is joined in by all other parties, then Owner shall, if possible, provide another

hearing officer able to commence hearings on the next business day. If, on the other hand, no such
notice is given, then the matter will be continued to the next regular mediation/arbitration

hearing day.

(ii) Any replacement Hearing Officer shall, be appointed for the particular hearing.

(iii)  Notwithstanding anything eise contained herein, a disqualification of a Hearing Officer as

to a particular hearing shall not itself cause disqualification of such Hearing Officer as to all

other hearings for the balance of his term.

1.9.2 Hearing Officer's Fees and Costs:

(a) Owner shall pay the Hearing Officer's fees and costs for hearings, including the time necessary to
hold the hearings, view the premises, read and review materials, write reports, decisions and awards, and other
reasonable costs incidental to these Procedures, but Owner shall be entitled to pass through such fees and costs as
herein provided.

(b) Owner shall be entitied to pass-through all such fees and costs incurred during each calendar year
for Claims initiated by lesseesr, in excess of $6,000.00 per calendar year, to the extent such $6,000.00 is not spent
in a calendar year any surplus shall be applied to subsequent years during the Lease Term. Fees and costs in excess of
such $6,000.00 shall be passed through to all lessees as provided in Section A.3 of Exhibit A of the First Addendum to
Lease , but shall not be subject to the $10,000 limitation referred to therain.

/\ 1.9.3 Parties Attorney’'s Fees and Costs: Except as provided in paragraph 2.2.16(b), neither party shall be
Kentitled to recover their own attorney's fees or out-of-pocket costs from any other party.

ARTICLE 1l
PROCEDURE

2.1 COMPOSITION OF THE DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCEDURE.
The Dispute Resolution Procedure shall consist of a mediation phase and an arbitration phase.

2.1.1 Mediation:

(a) The purpose of a mediation phase is to give the parties an opportunity to resolve their dispute
voluntarily. Only Claims of Reductions by a lessee and, at the option of Owner, violations of Park Rules and
Regulations, subject to Owner's right to dispense with the Procedure as provided in Paragraph 16, shall be the
subject of mediation hearings. Rent Increase Pass-Through and Discontinuance matters shall immediately proceed to

arbitration.

30



-65-

(b) If requested. a Hearing Officer shall meet privately with each side to attempt to achieve 4
voluntary agreement. Private sessions shall not be recorded and confidential information provided during them shall
not be used in decision making by the Hearing Officer. Uniess otherwise agreed by the parties, all matters revealed or
discussed in a private session shall be excluded by the Hearing Officer in making a Mediation Report.

(c) After meeting in private session, the Hearing Officer shall conduct the mediation hearing and
dispose of the Claims the object being to dispense justice promptly between the parties The parties shall have the
right to offer evidence by witnesses at the hearing. The Hearing Officer may consult witnesses informally and
otherwise investigate the controversy. If a party fails to appear. the Hearing Officer shall still require Claimant to
present evidence to prove his Claim. Either party may reserve the right to introduce more evidence, or to conduct
further cross-examination in the arbitration phase.

(d) If the parties arrive at a voluntary agreement which resolves the dispute, the Hearing Officer will
write, or direct the writing of, that agreement, on a form or in a format, designed to make the terms of the agreement
explicit and clear. Any voluntary agreement shall state the nature of the dispute, how the parties have chosen to
resolve it, and the detaiis of any agreed performance. Any alleged breach of a voluntary agreement shall be subject to
mediation upon filing a Claim within 30 days after the discovery of the breach or which, through the use of reasonable
diligence, should have been discovered, whichever is earlier

-(e) If the parties are unable to arrive at a voluntary agreement, the Hearing Officer shall within 10
days after hearing, make a written report which shall state his/her opinion as to whether the Claim is justified and,
if so, shall state the reasonable curative action to be taken by either party and the reasonable time within which to
cure, but the hearing officer shall have no right to make a monetary award or an injunctive order.

(i) The Mediation Report shall also state that either party shail have the right to request
arbitration within 5 days after expiration of the cure period and that, if no request is made

within that time, the mediation report shall be final and the alleged Claim shall be deemed
conclusively cured. |f the Mediation Report does not provide for a cure period, either party shall
have the right to request arbitration within § days after issuance of the Mediation Report. The
Mediation Report shall require the request for arbitration to be in writing and on a form or format
to be specified herein.

tii) Oral statements of intended mediation decisions made at the conclusion of the hearing are
wncoursged.

i)~  Upon stipulation of the parties not to seek arbitration or otherwise sppeal, the parties

mey waive 8 written Medistion Report. -

{iv) If the primary cause of any Reduction found to exist was a failure of an independent
contractor, the Mediation Report shall specify the additions! length of time reasonably necessary
for Owner to obtain trom an existing or new contractor the level of performance required by the

2.9.2 Arbieration:

(3) The purpose of arbitration is (i) to determine the amount of any Rent Increase Pass-Through
requested by Ownar, (ii) to determine any Discontinuance. and (iii) to determine whaether there has been a violation of
the Rules and Regulstions. or a Reduction, and the amount of damages, if any. due aither party.

(b) At any time during the arbitration, the Hearing Officer may, if requested. recess the hearing and
return to a mediation format. including private meetings, in an attempt to achieve a voluntary agreement. This shall be
done without prejudice to the status of the arbitration and without prejudice to the qualifications of the Hearing
Officer to complete the arbitration.

fc) At the close of the arbitration. the Hesring Officer shall prepare a written statement of decision
which shall explain the factual and legal basis of the decision as to each of the principal controverted issues. The
conclusions and award shall aise be specifically set forth.

2.2 NITIATION OF THE DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCEDUNE.
2.2.% Filing or Naticing o Claim:

(a) Lessee may commence the Procedure by filing a written and signed Claim in a form or format provided
for herein. The written Claim shall be delivered to snd receipted by the Resident Manager or his/her designee, during
normal business hours. The Claim shall not be made with any other employee or contractor of Owner such as security
personnel. gardeners. garbage collectors and/or the like.

(b) Owner may commence the Procedure by sending a written Claim in a form or format provided for herein
(i) to all of those residents of the Park who sre subject to 3 Rent Increase Pass-Through or Discontinuance, or (i)
to Lessee in the case of s Claim sgainst Lessee for an alleged violation of the Park Rules and Regulations, with a copy
to any other lessee claiming 3 Reduction caused by the alleged violation.

2.2.2 Contents ot Claim of Reduction:

With respect to the information to be provided by Lesses in the Claim. it is understood that Owner
cannot correct broad allegations of acts or emissions and, therefore. only specific acts or omissions will constitute
valid Claims. For example, allegations that streets are in disrepair, Rutes and Regulations are not enforced. etc..
are insufficient allegations of a Reduction. An example of a sufficient Claim would be that a hole in the street
exists in front of the Aduit Clubhouse. Each Claim of Reduction shall be made within sinty days of actual discovery of
the condition or event constituting the Reduction, or within siaty days after the conditron or event could, with the
exercise of due diligence. have been and should have been discovered. Claims net made within this sinty day period
shall be deemed waived and any Claim therson shall be barred. Each Claim of Reduction shall be made in writing, signed
and ventied by the Lessee and shall state the following: ‘ _

{a) The prier level of service established by Owner for L ‘s mobilehome space and common tacilitites
used by that Lessee. including a reference to the specific Basic Service Levet as defined in the First Addendum to the
Lease,

(b} Tha specitic changes in the Basic Service Level comprising the alleged Reduction as they alfect
Lessee;
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(c) The date the Reduction was first noticed or discovered by Lessee;
(d) The date Lessee first gave written notice to Owner of the alleged Reduction, and to whom the notice
was given; :

(e) When and how Owner responded to Lessee’s notice;

{(f) Whether the condition was improved or corrected and, if so, when and to what extent has it been
improved or corrected;

(g) The status of the condition as of the date the Claim is made by the Lessee; and

(h) How the alleged Reduction affects Lessee. (It is understood Lessee’s use or enjoyment of a Service
or Facility and/or physical proximity thereto is a requirement for any Reduction to be alleged by Lessee. Therefore,
even though a Reduction may exist as to some residents of the Park, unless the impact on Lessee is material and
measurable, the alleged matter shall not constitute a Reduction to Lessee.)

2.2.3 Response to Claim of Reduction:
Within fifteen days of receipt of any Claim of Reduction, Owner shall respond, in writing, to the Lessee
making the Claim and shall state the following:
{a) Whether, when, and to what extent, the Owner has investigated the Claim and whether it 1s valid,
and the reasons therefor;
(b) The conclusions, if any, from such investigation;
(c) What repairs, or other corrective measures, if any, Owner has or will take to restore the Basic
Service Level, and
(d) If corrective measures are to be taken, an estimate of the time needed to restore the Basic Service
Level.

2.2.4 Scheduling of Hearings on Claims of Reduction:

(a) If Lessee disputes the Owner’s conclusions or proposals set forth in Owner’'s Response, or Owner
fails to Respond within said 15 days, the Lessee shall have five days after the Response, or five days after the time
for Response has ended, whichever is earlier, to request that the Claim be mediated. In order to place the Claim on a
schedule for hearing, Lessee must make a signed request for same in a form or format specified herein. That request
need not restate the entire Claim and is sufficient if it only refers to the date and subject of the original Claim
made. The request for hearing shall be delivered to and receupted by the Resident Manager or his/her designee, during
normal business hours. B

(b) If Lessee fails to request mediation wlthm the said five days. the Owner’'s Response shall have the
same binding effect and enforceability as a voluntary. agreement withaut right of arbitration or appeal. As such, the
Owner shall then be required to complete the corrective measures, if any, as specified in the Response. |f the Owner
fails to perform in this fashion, the matter may be taken into mediation as though the breach were a Reduction. A
request for hearing made under this subparagraph 2.2.4.(b), shail be decmcd timely if it is made within thirty days
after the Owner's time estimate to cure has elapsed.

{c) If the Owner denies all responsibility for the alleged Reduction in his Response, and indicates no
intention to take corrective measures, and if Lessee does not request mediation within said five day time period, the
dispute shall be considered resolved and dismissed and Lessee shall be barred from making the same Claim.

228 com.ms of Cisims Made by Owner: :
Owner shall have the right, but not the obligation, to use this Procedure to seek relief from
violations of the Park Rules and Regulations by Lessee and in addition, to proceed against Lessee for all damages
resulting from a Reduction claimed by any other resident, caused in whole or in part by Lessee. However, Owner's use
of the Procedure to seek such relief shail not be a prerequisite to the commencement of a legal action in a court of
competent jurisdiction, including, without limitation, the commencement of an action to terrmnate a tenancv The Owner
shall initiate the Procedyre as to any of its Claims as follows

(a) Claims for rent incresse from a Govommonul Imposition Pas-‘l’hrougn' -

These Claims shall be in writing, signed by Owner, and served on Lessee in the manner reguired for -
service of notices provided eisewhere in the Lease. The Claim shall notify-Lessee of the date,’ time and location of
the arbitration hearing which shall be scheduled by Owner at the time any such rent increase is noticed. The Claim
shall disclose all facts reasonably required to make a determination of compliance with the pertinent provisions of
Exhibit A of the Lease, including, . without limitation, the following: :

" (i) The nature, source and brief history of the new or increased govornmental imposition;

(ii) The total yearly doilar-amount of this imposition;
(iii) The monthly dollar-amount, per space, of this imposition; and
(iv) Its starting date, duration, and.- whether it is to. be compounded in future rent increases.

(b) Claim for rent increase from a Darnm Pass-Through:.

These Claims shall be in writing, signed by Owner, and served on Lesseo in the manner required for
service of notices provided elsewhere in the Lease. The Claim shall notify Lessee of the date, time and location of
the arbitration hearing which shall be scheduled by Owner at the. time any such rent increase is noticed. The Claim
shall disclose all facts reasonably required to make a determination of comphanco with the pertinent provisions of
Exhibit A of the Lease, including, without limitation, the following: ’

(i) Date and nature of loss;

(ii) Estimates of dollar-amounts to reconstruct and/or replace damaged facilities:

(i) Proposed yearly amortized amounts per space;

(iv) The identification of all insurance companies and/or thnrd parties to whom' any Claim for
indemnity or compensation has been made; N

(v) Brief description and dates of Claims or proofs of loss made to any insurance compames and/ar
demands to third parties for indemnity. or compensation;

(vi) A brief description of all written responses from such insurance compames and/or thlrd
parties, if any;

(vii) Details of any fmancmg arranged or antnclpated to be arranged for the reconstruction and for
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replacement of damaged facilities; and
(viii) A brief status of any pending litigation over the loss and the identity of the attorney for
each party thereto.

(c) Claims for violation of Rules and Regulations:
These Claims shall be in writing, signed by Owner and served on Lessee in the manner required for

service of notices provided elsewhere in the Lease. The Claim shall notify Lessee of the date, time and location of
the mediation or arbitration hearing which shall be scheduled by Owner at the time the Claim is made. The Claim shall
disclose all facts reasonably required to place the Lessee on notice that he/she has violated the Rules and
Regulations and that the Lessee may be subject to financial liability, an order to compel performance and/or a
termination of tenancy, including, without limitation, the following:

(i) The nature of the aileged violation and the date on which it began, specifying the Rule or

Regulation at issue;

(i) The date on which the violation has stopped or, if continuing, an indication of its current

status and magnitude;

(ili) A brief summary of all prior attempts to compel correction;

(ivl An estimated dollar-amount, necessary to remedy the violation, or to compensate for a Reduction

for which a Claim has been made, and if a composite figure, a breakdown of each such amount into

its components;

(vl A statement of what performance or forebearance of Lessee will be necessary, to remedy the

violation; and

(vi) The identity and status of any other medition/arbitration proceedings which have been commenced

on any issue pertinent to the Claim.

(d) Claims for Discontinuance of Services or Facilities:

These Claims shall be in writing, signed by Owner, and served on Lessee in the manner required for
service of notices provided eisewhere in the Lease. The Claim shail notify Lessee of the date, time and location of
the arbitration hearing which shall be scheduled by Owner at the time any such Discontinuance is noticed. The claim
shall disclose all facts reasonably required to make a determination of compliance with Paragraph 4.7 of the First
Addendum [Basic Service Levell of the Lease. including, without limitation, the following:

(i) A description of the Services or Facilities which the Owner is proposing to Discontinue;
(i) As to each such Service or Facility, the date or dates on which it will be discontinued and the
duration of any such discontinuance;
(i) For the maintainance and operation of each such service or facility, the average annual amount
expended by Owner for the three previous calendar years and the source of this information;
(iv) As for each such Service or Facility, the monthly credit to which Lessee is entitled;
(v) As for each such Service or Facility proposed to discontinue for minimum and/or non-use:
(aa) The extent to which there has been a significant decrease in the use or enjoyment of the
Service or Facility by residents and the period of time during which this decrease has occurred; and
(bb) A brief description of the manner in which this decrease was measured or observed and the
identity of the persons who compiled these facts; and
{vi) As for each such Service or Facility Discontinued for unforseen or extraordinary expenses:
(aa) The amount of the anticipated annual expenditure for maintenance and/or replacement and
the source of this information.

2.2.6 Group Claims:
Subject to the limitations in this paragraph, any Claims by Owner shail be consolidated at its option. and
group Claims may be filed by lessees or any Claims may be consolidated on motion of any party as provided herein.
(a) Group or consolidated Claims are permitted to the extent that:

(i) Each Claim is based on the same operative set of facts. even though in the case of each alleged
Reduction the impact may not be the same on each lesses:
lii) Each lessee has given written and signed authorization to a representative or a smalil group of
representatives in the form of a proxy or power of attorney which includes the power to represent
lessee in the procedure and the power to settle, compromise or dismiss the Claim;
{iii) There are no later amendments of Claims through which one or more lessees amend their Claims
to include or match Claims made by other lessees who all have the same representative; and
(iv) All Claims are timely and adequately made.

(b) Each representative of a group shall have the burden of proving at the beginning of the hearing,
facts supporting the consolidation of Claims, and his/her authority to represent Claimants, as required in this
Paragraph. At the beginning of the hearing, the Hearing Officer shall determine the composition of each group and the
identity of its representative.

(c) Notwithstanding the above, the Hearing Officer must make individual findings and awards as to each
lessee in a group or consolidated Claim. In the case of an alleged Reduction, each lessee in a group or consolidated
Claim bears the burden of demonstrating how and to what extent the Reduction has affected his/her tenancy and what
relief, including any monetary award, is appropriate to compensate him/her for any such loss. The Hearing Officer
shall make an individual finding as to each lessee included within a group or consolidated Claim.

2.2.7 Conduct of Hearings:
1a) Notice of Hearings: Notices of all regularly and specially scheduled hearings shall be in

writing, served at least twenty days prior to the hearing in which the Claim will be heard. posted on the kitchen
bulletin board in the adult clubhouse and shall for each claim state the date, time and location of the hearing and,
if known, the identity of the Hearing Officer The notice shall also inform the Claimant of his/her right to attend.
right to representation and that, if the Claimant does not attend, that the hearing will proceed in his/her absence
and that a decision will be made which may affect his/her rights under the Lease and which may result in financial
liability.
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(b) Hearing in the Absence of a Party: The hearing may proceed in the absence of any party who,
after being duly served with notice, fails to be present or fails to obtain a continuance. The Hearing Officer shall
require the Claimant to present evidence to prove his/her Claim. The relief granted shall not exceed the relief
requested in the Claim.

(c) Record of Hearing: The record, with respect to each hearing, shall be maintained as follows:
(i) The Hearing File: The Hearing Officer shall maintain, for at least one year, the original
notices, documents and exhibits concerning each hearing.
(i) The Hearing Record: Owner shall supply a tape recorder and blank tapes for recording all oral
proceedings. The recorded tape of the proceedings shall be kept in the possession of the Hearing
Officer for a period of one year. Any party to a proceeding is entitled to copies of original
notices, documents, exhibits and tape recordings, upon payment of actual costs.
(iii) Court Reporter: Either party may obtain a Certified Shorthand Reporter (C.S.R.) at his/her own
expense provided, however, that if any proceedings are transcribed at the instance of the party
employing the reporter, then an uncertified machine-copied record of the proceedings shall be made
available to any party for the cost of the copying only.

2.2.8 Closed hearings:

Only the parties to a dispute and their representatives and advisors are entitied to be present during the
hearing, except that any advisor shall be excluded on a showing of good cause. Except as may be agreed upon, non-party
witnesses are not permitted to be present during testimony of any other witnesses.

2.2.9 Order of Proceedings:

(a) A hearing shall be opened with an introduction by the Hearing Officer, a request to identify the
parties, a request that any proxies be turned in and representatives identified and an explanation by the Hearing
Officer of the Procedure. The Hearing Officer shail administer an oath to the parties and witnesses. The Hearing Officer
shall record the place, time and date of the hearing, the identity of the parties and witnesses present, and shall
indicate receipt of a statement of Claim and/or response, if any. The Hearing Officer may, at the beginning of the
hearing, ask for statements clarifying the issues invoived.

(b) The complaining party shall then present his/her Claim and proofs and present his/her witnesses who
shall submit to questions or cross-examination. The defending party shall then present his/her defense and proofs and
present his/her witnesses who shall submit to questions and cross-examination. The Hearing Officer may, at his/her
discretion, vary this procedure but shall afford full and equal opportunity for all parties to present any material or
relevant proofs.

(c) Relevant evidence in the form of Exhikits, when offered by either party, shall be received in
evidence by the Hearing Officer. The names and addresses of all witnesses and exhibits, in order, shall be made a part
of the record.

2.2.10 Evidencs:

(a) Each party shall have the burden of proving its case by a preponderance of the evidence. The parties
may offer such relevant evidence as they desire. The Hearing Officer shall be the judge of the relevancy and
materiality of the evidence offered, but subject to the following, conformity to strict courtroom rules of evidence
shall not be necessary. All svidence shall be taken in the presence of the Hearing Officer and all parties, except
where any of the parties are in default or has waived his/her right to be present. Hearsay upon hearsay is not
admissible; moreover, unsupported hearsay, to which a party has objected, is not sufficient to support a finding or
decision.

(b) The Hearing Officer may request the submission of additional documentation or other information.
When this request is made. the hearing may be recessed until the submission deadline for the administrative purpose of
receiving and/or reviewing the additional information. In the event that the requested information is not provided or
is incomplete, the hearing shall resume. Failure to produce information shall not prejudice a party’s case, and a
party’s burden of proof shall not be affected by his/her inability or unwillingness to provide additional information.

2.2.11 Rules of Procedure:
(a) Where not in conflict with the express provisions contained herein, The Hearing Officer shall
conduct all hearings in accordance with the provisions of the California Arbitration Act, C.C.P. Section 1280 et seq.,
and especially C.C.P. Section 1282 et seq..

2.2.12 Pre-Hearing Discovery:
Neither Owner nor Lessee shall be entitied to any type of discovery, except as provided in the following:
(a) Exchange of Information: Either party may, at least 15 days prior to the date on which the Claim is
scheduled for hearing, serve upon the other party a Request for information.
(b) Information Requested: Any or all of the following information may be requested, and no other:
{i) The name, business and residence address of each witness whom the party expects to call in
person.
(i) A brief narrative statement of the qualifications of such witness and the general substance of
the testimony which the witness is expected to give.
(iii) A request to produce reports and writings which the party expects to produce at the hearing.
(c) Production of Information: Not later than 10 days following service of a Request for Information,
the party to whom the request has been made shall use reasonable efforts to produce the requested information. Costs of
copying written materials which exceed $15.00 shall be borne by the requesting party.
(d) Failure to Produce Information: If, for any reason, the party to whom a Request for Information has
been sent fails to produce all or a portion of the requested information, the' requesting party shall be entitled to
justify the request before the Hearing Officer at the commencement of the hearing. The party to whom the request has
been made may respond and shail be entitied to show the Hearing Officer that all or any portion of the information
requested is irrelevant, immaterial, inadmissible or otherwise inappropriate for production. After giving the parties
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a fair, but not an unduly long period of time to discuss these requests, the Hearing Officer may, n his/her
discretion make a request for additional information, as provided for in Paragraph 2.2.10(b) above.

2.2.13 View of Park:
Upon the request of either party, the Hearing Officer shall physically view the specified condition in the
Park.

2.2.14 Extensions of Time:

The parties may modify any period of time by mutual agreement. The Hearing Officer. for good cause, may
extend any period of time established by these rules, except periods of limitations and time for rendering a
decision/award/report. The Hearing Officer shall notify the parties of any extension of time and of the reason
therefor. Provided, however, that if Lessee requests an extension or continuance for any reason, then such period of
delay shall suspend any period to correct a Reduction during the period of the extension or continuance. but shall not
excuse Lessee of making all rent payments including requested pass-through increases. If the continuance is requested
by Owner, such delay shail not extend the period within which Owner shall act to correct a Reduction

2.2.15 Communication with Hearing Officer and Service of Notices:

(a) There shalil be no communication between the parties and the Hearing Officer over unresolved issues
or Claims, other than at scheduled hearings. Any such oral or written communications between the parties and the
Hearing Officer shall be done with a prior notice to all other parties and, to the extent possible, in their presence.
For example, all written communications to the Hearing Officer by one party shall be sent to all other parties, or
their representative(s), and to the extent possible, all telephone communications shall be made with conference cails.

(b) Each party to this Procedure shall be deemed to have consented that all papers, notices, and other
process necessary or proper for the initiation or continuation of the Procedure may be served upon such party as
provided in the Lease, or to such parties representative.

2.2.16 Sanctions or Dismissal without Award:

(a) The Hearing Officer shall be entitied to dismiss a Claim in either the mediation or arbitration
phase without making an award on the merits of the Claim upon a finding that the Claim is not timely or is
insufficient and does not satisfy the requirements of Paragraph 2.2.2, or the Claim is frivolous, petty, not made in
good faith, or made solely for the purpose of harrassment.

(b) As part of a dismissal without award, Mediation Report or Arbitration Award and upon a specific
finding of bad faith, frivolous, harrassment, dilatory tactics, or the like, the Hearing Officer may award the
opposing party costs and a reasonable attorneys’ fee actually incurred in opposing the Claim.

ARTICLE 1t
ARBITRATION
AWARDS AND DETERMINATIONS
OF HEARING OFFICER

3.1 TIME OF AWARD.
Each arbitration award shall be made no later than twenty one days from the conclusion or the closing of the

hearing or, if oral hearings have been waived, from the date of transmitting the final statements, reports, briefs and
the like to the Hearing Officer.

3.2 FORM AND DELIVERY OF AWARD.

The award shall be in writing and signed by the Hearing Officer. It shall be delivered to the parties and/or
their representatives by placing a true copy thereof in the mail addressed to each such party or representative at his
or her last known address, or as otherwise provided in the Lease. A written award or portion thereof may be waived by
agreement of the parties.

3.3 AWARD UPON SETTLEMENT.
If the parties settle their dispute during the course of the arbitration, the Hearing Officer, upon request,

shall set forth the terms of the agreed settiement in an award.

3.4 DETERMINATIONS AND AWARD FOR REDUCTIONS.
34.1. If the Hearing Officer finds that a valid Claim for Reduction was timely given and that a Reduction
exists, then the Hearing Officer shall make the following written determinations:
(a) Estimate of the type and extent of repair, restoration or other corrective measures which must be
undertaken to restore the Basic Service Level; and
(b) Time reasonably necessary to complete those corrective measures; and
(c) Whether the primary cause of the Reduction was a failure of an independent contractor and, if so,
any additional length of time reasonably necessary for Owner to obtain from an existing or new contractor the level of
performance to which Owner and Lessee are entitled: and
(d) The monetary value of the Reduction, on a daily or monthly basis, considering the following factors:
(i) The area affected;
(ii) The amount of time the occupant is exposed to the condition:
(iii} The degree of discomfort or hazard that the condition imposes;
livl The extent to which such condition causes Lessee to find the premises unpleasant. untenantable
or uninhabitable with a possible departure; and
(v) Similar factors.

3.4.2 Upon the issuance of the Mediation Report, Owner shall be given the stated period of time to correct
the Reduction, including, if appropriate, the additional time found necessary to make adjustments with an independent
contractor. During this entire time period, starting from the date on which the original Claim was filed, the Owner
shall not be liable for any monetary damages for the Reduction, provided that the Owner shall make a good faith effort
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to correct the Reduction after the Mediation Report is i1ssued.

3.4.3 At the arbitration hearing, concerning any Reduction, the Hearing Officer shall determine whether, and
to what extent, the original Reduction was corrected. If the Hearing Officer determines that it was not fully
corrected within the time allowed, according to the Mediation Report, the Hearing Officer shall award the monetary
damages to Claimant in proportion to that amount of correction actually achieved and over the period of time the
correction was made, to be retroactively applied as of the date earlier set for completion of all corrective measures.
If the Hearing Officer determines that despite a good faith attempt to cure, the Reduction could not be fully
corrected within the time allowed by the Mediation Report, the Hearing Officer shall have the discretion to extend the
time period for correction without imposition of damages. If the Hearing Officer finds that there was not a good faith
attempt to apply these corrective measures, then the monetary damage shall be retroactively applied as of the date on
which the Mediation Report was given. The duration of the award shall be-set by the Hearing Officer and may be for a
stated or indefinite period of time, subject to later review upon motion by the affected party, or its duration
conditioned on future performance by Owner.

3.5 DETERMINATIONS AND AWARD FOR DISCONTINUANCE OF SERVICE OR FACILITY.

35.1 If a Claim is made by Owner for Discontinuance of a Service or Facility under any of the standards or
criteria expressed in Paragraph 4.7 of the First Addendum to Lease, the Hearing Officer shall make the following
written determinations:

(a) The nature and/or extent of the Service or Facility which has or will be discontinued and whether

the Discontinuance is to be permanent; and
(b) Whether the Discontinuance properly falls within the standards and criteria expressed in Paragraph

4.7 of the First Addendum to Lease; and
(c) The monetary value of the Discontinuance on a monthly or yearly basis, as determined pursuant to

Paragraph 4.7 of the First Addendum to Lease.

3.5.2 If the Hearing Officer finds that the Discontinuance is appropriate under the standards and criteria
expressed in Paragraph 4.7 of the First Addendum, an award shall be written, with adequate findings, for the amount, if
any, to which Lessee shail be entitled during the time of the Lease.

3.6 DETERMINATIONS AND AWARD FOR RENT INCREASES BASED ON GOVERNMENTAL IMPOSITION PASS-THROUGH.

3.6.1 If a Claim is made by Owner to increase rents because of a Governmental Imposition specified in Exhibit
A to the First Addendum to Lease, the Hearing Officer shall make a written determination of whether the proposed rent
increase is proper under the criteria specified in Exhibit A.

3.6.2 If the Hearing Officer finds that the proposed rent increase does not meet the criteria specified in
Exhibit A, the increase shall be disallowed, in whole or in part, and further Claims shall be barred except in the
case of material change of facts or circumstances.

3.6.3 If the Hearing Officer finds that the proposed rent increase does meet the criteria specified in
Exhibit A, an award shall be written, with adequate findings, for the amount of the rent increase which shall be due
and payable in the manner provided for in Exhibit A.

3.7 DETERMINATIONS AND AWARD FOR RENT INCREASES BASED ON DAMAGE PASS-THROUGH.

3.7.1 if a Claim is made by Owner to increase rents because of a Damage Pass-Through specified in Exhibit A,
the Hearing Officer shall make a written determination of whether the proposed rent increase is proper under the
criteria specified in Exhibit A. This determination shall include, without limitation, that Owner has met the
insurance coverage burden specified in Exhibit A; provided, however, that the limits of liability and covered risks of
Owner’'s insurance are not subject to arbitration, the amount of any settlement with the carrier, or any third person,
shall be in the sole and exclusive discretion of Owner and not subject to contest, including arbitration, and the
Hearing Officer shall accept no evidence or issue any award or findings concerning such matters.

3.7.2 If the Hearing Officer finds that the proposed rent increase does not meet the criteria specified in
Exhibit A, further Claims shall be barred except in the case of a material change of facts or circumstances.

3.7.3 If the Hearing Officer finds that the proposed rent increase does meet the criteria specified in
Exhibit A, an award shall be written, with adequate findings, for the amount of the rent increase which shall be due
and payable in the manner provided for in Exhibit A. A partial award may be made for partial compensation and findings
with a subsequent award for final determinations.

3.8 DETERMINATIONS AND AWARD FOR VIOLATION OF RULES AND REGULATIONS.

3.8.1 If a Claim is made by Owner that Lessee has violated a Rule or Regulation of the Park, the Hearing Officer

shall make the following written determinations:

(a) The existence and nature of the violation and the duration of time it has existed: and

(b) The identities of all persons responsible and all persons suffering monetary or non- monetary
damages; and

(c) The dollar amount of any monetary damages; and

(d) Performance necessary to cure the violation; and

(e) Other appropriate relief.

3.8.2 If the Hearing Officer finds that a Rule or Regulation has been violated, an award shall be written,
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with adequate findings, which shall direct payment of money to Qwner or to the injured party, and. if appropriate,
shall order an abatement or cessation of the conduct or activity constituting the violation. Provided, however, that
any such monetary award shall not be initially enforced through an increase in rent; rather, the Hearing Officer's
award shall have the status and effect of an “arbitration award” and shall be confirmed through petition to a court of
competent jurisdiction under provisions of the California Arbitration Act, CCP Section 1280, et seq., and, if

confirmed, shall be enforceable as a civil judgment.

ARTICLE IV
APPEALS

4.1 APPEALS THROUGH ADMINISTRATIVE MANDAMUS. CCP SECTION 1094.5.

Notwithstanding contrary provisions of the California Arbitration Act, CCP Section 1280 et seq.. all appeals
from final arbitration awards shall be taken under CCP Sections 10945 (Review of Administrative Orders or Decisions)
and 1094.6 (Judicial Review). All final arbitration awards or directives shall have the instruction for appeal as set
forth below or in words of similar meaning:

Under Sections 1094.5 and 1094.6 of the Code of Civil Procedure, you have
ninety days following the date from which the arbitration award becomes final to
appeal that decision to the Superior Court. These Code sections are applicable
and govern judicial review of all final awards and orders of the Hearing Officer
and of this Dispute Resolution Procedure. If you fail to appeal within the
ninety-day period, you may lose your right to do so and the arbitration award
shall become final and binding upon you, affecting your rights under the Lease,
including financial obligations.

ARTICLE V
MISCELLANEOQUS PROVISIONS

5.1 PUBLIC POLICY - SAN JOSE ORDINANCE:

Owner and Lessee are entering into this Lease, including the Dispute Resolution Procedure of this Addendum,
with knowledge and recognition of the provisions of the San Jose Rental Dispute Mediation and Arbitration Ordinance,
Chapt. 17.23, San Jose Municipal Ordinance. To the extent permitted by law, Owner and Lessee each waives its rights to
seek relief against the other by filing a petition to invoke the Rental Dispute Mediation and Arbitration Process
under the Ordinance. It is understood and agreed that Owner is extending to Lessee the rent levels stated within
Exhibits A and B of the Lease on condition that the Dispute Resolution Procedure contained within this Addendum
remains valid and enforceable throughout the term of the Lease. Owner and Lessee acknowledge that the said Ordinance
declares a waiver by Lessee of rights granted thereunder to be void as contrary to public policy. Owner and Lessee have
drawn and entered into this Lease, and all its exhibits, addenda and attachments, in Recognition and accomodation of
the provisions of the Ordinance. Neither Owner nor Lessee believe or intend that any term of the Lease or the Dispute
Resolution Procedure in this Addendum is contrary to public policy.

5.2 REMEDIES ON BREACH:

In the event Lessee files a petition under the City of San Jose Rental Dispute Mediation and Arbitration
Ordinance, or files an action to declare all or any portion of the Lease null, void or unenforceable, or if a final
judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction declares all or any portion of the Lease null, void or unenforceable,
then in any of these cases Owner shall have the right to take any or the following courses of action in addition to
all other rights and remedies that Owner may have at law or in equity:

5.2.1 Immediately terminate the Lease in its entirety;

5.2.2 Immediately terminate the Dispute Resolution Procedure set forth in this Second Addendum and terminate
the provisions of Exhibits A and B to the Lease so that the Lease shall become a month-to-month tenancy and Owner
shall be entitled to increase rent at any time upon advance notice if otherwise in compliance with law; and/or

5.2.3 File an action against Lessee for declaratory judgment and/or damages arising as a result of Lessee’s
breach of the Lease, including acceleration of any rent waived under this Lease.

5.3 TERMINATION OF LEASE:

Upon expiration or earlier termination of the Lease, all rights and obligations of Owner and Lessee under the
Procedure set forth in this Addendum shall immediately cease and become null and void except that any decision of the
Arbitrator made prior to such expiration or termination may be enforced.

5.4 AMENDMENT OF SECOND ADDENDUM:

Notwithstanding the provisions of Lease Paragraph 34, this Second Addendum may be amended upon the written
agreement of Owner and a majority of lessees. Such amendment shall be binding and enforceable upon all lessees, whether
or not they agreed to the amendment, upon notice given pursuant to the notice provisions elsewhere in the Lease.
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11401 N. Topanga Canyon Blvd.
Chatsworth, CA 91311
April 28, 1986

Senate Select Ccmmittee
State Capitol - Rcom 3070
Sacramento, CA 9581k

Dear Committee Members:

This letter is in answer to the memo of April 15,1986 issued
by Senator William A. Craven regarding the committee hearing
on Mobilehomes.

Enclosed you will find copies of two 25 year lease agreements
that were offered to the homeowners of Indian Hills Mobile
Home Village, Chatsworth, California. The first lease was
offered in January of 1985 and the other, in April of 1986.

Regarding the 25 year lease offered in January 1985, we make
the following comments:

1. The homeowners were offered only the 25 year lease. This
was in direct violation of 798.18 of the Mobilehome Residency
Law, The park owner stated to some of the homeowners that
there was no one year leace.

2. A number of homeowners refused to sign the lease and were
coerced or intimidated into signing. Ccpies of some of the
letters stating that their rent would be increased by exhorbi-
tant amounts are included in this package.

3. A number of people that were forced to sign the lease did
so and noted that it was signed under duress under their sig-
natures.

L., The park owner is-raising the base rent or market value
rent to such a level that it has become increasingly difficult
to find buyers for our homes and those wishing to sell must
take a loss on their investment.



-73-

Page 2 April 28, 1986 11401 N. Topanga Cyn. Blvd.

5. Anyone signing one of these leases surrenders all their
rights under any new law that may be passed to benefit the
homeowners, but the park owner retains the right fto change
the lease to his benefit any time he sees fit.

Regarding the 25 year lease offered in April, 1986.

1. On April 24, 1986, a 25 year lease was received by the
homeowners.

On page 2 of this lease, you will see that the present
rent is $379.85, as of July 1, 1986 the rent will be raised
to $395.04 per month. This is an increase of $15.19

2. On April 28, 1986 (L4 days later!)a letter was received
from the management stating that the rent as of July 1, 1986
would be $417.00. This is an additional increase of $22.06

In a matter of 4 days the rent has been increased a total of
$37.25 to the same homeowner.

3. This new lease has been sent to all homeowrers whe did not
sign the 25 year lease offered last year and has been followed
up with a similar rent increacse letter.

These two leases are not agreements, they are dictates. This
practice must be ended!

The park owners who show such a flagrant disregard for the law
should be brought to task.

One suggestion of hcw %o accomplish this is for the HCD to have
the power to fine any park owners 1f they do not adhere to the
MobileBome Residency Law.

We have a number of intimidating letters sent to the residents
of this park and will be glad to supply them and any other
additional information upon request.

YoBgs truly,

p I
) =

Patricia A. Lowery, Vice Prgsident

Golden State Mobile Homeowners Ledgue

Indian Hills ""obilehome Village

Homeowners Association

Space #126
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INDIAN HILLS MOBILE HOME VILLAGE
11401 N. TOPANGA CANYON BOULEVARD
CHATSWORTH, CALIFORNIA 91311

January 17, 1985

All Indian Hills Residents
11401 N. Topanga Canyon Boulevard
Chatsworth, California 91311

Re: Long-Term Lease Offer
Dear Residents:

Enclosed is a long-term lease. In this letter, we describe the lease and
its many benefits. It is important for you to understand that all of the
terms of this lease are within the guidelines adopted by the Los Angeles
County Board of Supervisors.

WHY A LONG-TERM LEASE?

It has been evident for some time that the vast majority of you want a
long-term lease. We’ve put a great deal of time, effort and money into
developing this lease. We think the final, finished product is a good one and
represents an exceptional alternative and opportunity for all of you.

Both residents and owners in the mobilehome park industry in California
have recently recognized that leases are beneficial for both the residents and
the park. Because of this, leases that run for several years are becoming
more and more common.

As explained in detail in the following, the biggest benefit of the lease
for those of you who have been under rent control is that it provides a 5-year

phase-in period to bring your present below-market rent up to the amount now

paid by residents not covered by rent control. This is an extremely important

benefit to you and represents a substantial concession by us. A concession
the law does not require and one which will be of significant economic

detriment to us.

Before turning to the specifics of your long-term lease, you need to
understand that during the last few years, over 40% of the spaces in Indian
Hills have been decontrolled. In other words, people moving into the Park
during these last several years have paid a fair market rent which was much
higher than the rent paid by you and the other residents whose rents were
still controlled by the ordinance. These new residents’ rents are, today,
approximately $90.00 a month higher than the rent you now pay. What this
means in a nutshell is, that over the past several years you have paid far
less than the true market rent for your space. You have, in fact, saved
somewhere between $50.00 to $90.00 per month on the rent you paid these past
several years.
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Even those residents who are paying approximately $90.00 a month more
than you are receiving an exceptionally good housing value. A recent survey I
have made of other parks in the county comparable in quality to Indian Hills
indicates that their rents for decontrolled spaces begin at $395.00 per month
and go as high as $550.00 a month. This means that our rent range for
decontrolled spaces of $330.00 to $360.00 per month is well below a fair
market rate.

The lease will begin on the date you sign it and end on June 30, 1990.
This does not mean you have to obligate yourself to live here during the
entire period of the lease. You may cancel the lease without any obligation to
us if you sell your mobilehome or move it out of the Park. The same is true
of your family. If, because of your illness, death, or other reasons, your
family takes over responsibility of your mobilehome, the lease can be
canceled by them on the same terms.

Your present rent will remain the same until July 1, 1985. Beginning on
that date andon every July 1st. from 1986 to 1989, we will have a rent
adjustment as we have had in years past.

The formula for the rent adjustment is set out in detail in the enclosed
lease and you should read it carefully, as we are only briefly summarizing its
provisions here. Basically, there are three items which affect your rent
adjustment and they are described below.

The first item is a $20.00 increase each year to catch your rent up from
its present below-market, controlled rent, to the rent now paid by the non-
controlled spaces. As we said a moment ago, this is a very important
feature and of substantial benefit to you. We could elect to bring your
rent up to market during the 1985 phase—out provisions of the Los Angeles
County ordinance. Instead of doing this, we are offering you the
opportunity to take five full years before you will pay the full rent for
your space. We don’t see how we could be any fairer as this is a
substantial concession and costs the Park a great deal of money.

The second rent adjustment item is a Consumer Price Index (CPI)
adjustment. The way this works is that if the CPI has increased by more than
6% but less than 12%, your rent will be adjusted by that amount. If, however,
the CPI increases by leas than 6%, the rent adjustment will be 6%X. On the
other hand, if the CPI goes up by more than 12%, the rent adjustment will be
limited to 12% The CPI adjustment would be made on the market rent as
determined and agreed upon in the lease. Again, this is a substantial
concession by us, particularly as many are predicting a return to inflation
rates well in excess of 12%. Even if inflation doesn’t go up that much, this
adjustment factor compares very favorably to the 9% adjustment the L.A. County
ordinance now allows.

The third item adjusts your rent for certain increases in basic operating
expenses. Commonly, these provisions are known as "pass-throughs"”. They will
consist of passing along increases in the cost of government services,
property taxes, capital improvements and uninsured losses.
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RENT ASSISTANCE

Although we do not believe the rent increases in the lease will work a
hardship on any of you, we do not know the exact personal financial condition
of each and every resident. Therefore, it is possible we may have overlooked
someone. If so, if any of you will truly be unable to pay the new rent, then
please let the Park Manager know, so that we may contact you individually and
attempt to provide assistance.

There are various government programs you may not be aware of that
provide rent assistance. Family members are also often available to provide
help. If these traditional sources of assistance that Americans have relied
on for years are not available to you, we would encourage you to apply to our
new rent assistance program.

Obviously, the Park can’t subsidize anyone unless they truly have no
other place to turn. We do believe our voluntary program is an important

"safety net" to help those who have no other resources and have accepted the
lease. More importantly, as many of you do not know what is available, we’ll
help you contact governmental agencies and suggest other alternatives.

OTHER RESIDENT ASSISTANCE

Some of you may want to continue to spend as little as possible on rent
so that you can have more money left over to do other things. If so, we have
developed another idea to help you. Under a new section of the Mobilehome
Residency Law which went into effect the first of this year, you can share
housing with another person and reduce your monthly payments. This new law,
Civil Code Section 798.34(b) reads as follows: '

T e "The Homeowner who is living alone and who wishes

w\ to share his or her mobilehome with one person may
=\ do so, and a fee shall not be imposed by management
~N - for such person.

Such person shall be considered a guest of the Homeowner
and the agreement between the Homeowner and such person
shall not change the terms and conditions of the rental
agreement between management and the Homeowner. Such
guest shall comply with the provisions of the rules and
regulations of the mobilehome park.”

What this simply means is that if you are now living alone, you can have
a friend help you pay the rent, utilities, and other expenses. The friend can
be someone who does not now live in the Park. Or, if two existing residents
want to live together, gﬁ/& can sell their mobilehome and move in with the
other. In either case, there will be no extra rent or guest charge you’ll
have to pay. This new law was supported by both GSMOL and WMA at the
encouragement of residents from all over California. We think it is a good
idea, not just to reduce housing costs, but also to have a friend live with
you to keep you company.

To help you find someone to share housing with, we are asking all
interested residents to give their names to the Park Manager. He will then
make up a list of everyone who is interested and give a copy to you upon your



-77-

request so that you may contact one another and work out your own
arrangements. You can also contact friends and relatives, residents of other
mobilehome parks, members of your church, etc.

Although there are only a very few parks of comparable quality which
charge less rent than we do, these parks do have resales available for you to
buy. There are also apartments and senior citizen housing in Los Angeles
County and elsewhere. If you are interested in finding out about one of these
other parks, an apartment, etc., we sugg<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>